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DEFINED TERMS

Please refer to the "Glossary of Terms" in Schedule "A" for a list of defined terms used in this annual information
form.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual information form contains forward-looking statements. Statements other than statements of historical
fact contained in this annual information form may be forward looking statements, including, without limitation,
Management's expectations, intentions and beliefs concerning the transportation industry, its competitive landscape
and the general economy, statements regarding the amount and timing of the payment of distributions by the Fund
and the future financial position or results of the Fund, business strategy, proposed acquisitions, growth
opportunities, budgets, litigation, projected costs and plans and objectives of or involving the Fund or the
Partnership. Readers can identify many of these statements by looking for words such as "believe", "expects”, "will",
"intends", "projects”, "anticipates”, "estimates"”, "continues" or similar words or the negative thereof. There can be no
assurance that the plans, intentions or expectations upon which these forward looking statements are based will
occur. Forward looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions and should not be read as
guarantees or assurances of future performance. Accordingly, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance
on any forward looking information contained in this annual information form. Statements containing
forward looking information reflect Management's current beliefs and assumptions based on information in
its possession on the date of this annual information form. Although Management believes that the expectations
represented in such forward looking statements are reasonable, there can be no assurance that such expectations will
prove to be correct. '

Statements containing forward-looking information by their nature involve numerous assumptions and significant
known and unknown facts and uncertainties of both a general and a specific nature. Some of the factors that could
affect future results and could cause results to differ materially from those expressed in the forward looking
statements contained herein include risks relating to: general economic conditions; the competitive environment;
reliance on major customers and contract renewals; dependence on personnel; labour relations; insurance matters;
reliance on information technology; reliance on third party transportation providers; exposure to litigation; weather
conditions; the regulatory environment in which the Partnership operates; environmental regulation and potential
environmental liability; potential unknown liabilities; the timing and amount of capital expenditures; leverage and
restrictive covenants in agreements relating to current and future indebtedness of the Partnership; the availability of
future financing; the ability to sustain and manage growth; absence of an operating history as a public company;
dependence on external funding sources; the dependence of the Fund on ATSOT and the Partnership; absence of a
prior public market for the Units; unpredictability and potential volatility of the trading price of the Units including
the effect of market interest rates on the price of Units; the nature of the Units; cash distributions are not guaranteed
and will fluctuate with the Partnership's performance; cash-on-cash yield as a measure of performance; the legal
attributes of the Units; the restrictions on the potential growth of the Partnership as a consequence of the payment by
the Partnership of substantially all of its operating cash flow; income tax related risks; future sales of Units by the
Vendor; ability to recover from the Vendor for breaches of the Acquisition Agreement; conflicts of interest; possible
limits on Unitholder limited liability; the distribution of securities on redemption or termination of the Fund; dilution
of interests of Unitholders; and restrictions on non-resident Unitholders and liquidity of Units.

The information contained in this annual information form, including the information set forth under "Risk Factors",
identifies additional factors that could affect the operating results and performance of the Fund and the Partnership.

The forward looking statements contained herein are expressly qualified in their entirety by this cautionary
statement. The forward looking statements included in this annual information form are made as of the date of this
annual information form and, subject to applicable law, neither the Fund nor any other party assumes any obligation
to update or revise them to reflect new events or circumstances.

NON-GAAP MEASURES

References in this annual information form to:



"EBITDA" are to net income before provision for interest, income taxes and depreciation and amortization.
Management believes that in addition to net income or loss, EBITDA is a useful supplemental measure of cash
available for distribution before debt service, changes in working capital, maintenance capital expenditures and
taxes.

"Distributable cash" are to cash available for distribution to Unitholders in accordance with the distribution policies
of the Fund described in this annual information form. Distributable cash of the Fund is a measure generally used by
Canadian open-ended trusts as an indicator of financial performance and Management believes that investors may
consider the cash distributed by the Fund relative to the price of the Units when assessing an investment in Units.
The Fund's method of determining. distributable cash is derived from- EBITDA, which in turn is derived from net
income, a measure recognized under GAAP.

EBITDA has been used as the basis for the calculation of distributable cash as Management believes that it is
comparable to cash from operating activities before changes in working capital. As the Fund intends to distribute in
the range of 80% - 90% of its available cash on an ongoing basis (after providing for certain amounts described
elsewhere in this annual information form), Management believes that EBITDA is a usefu} .measures in evaluating
the performance of the Fund and in determining whether to invest in Units of the Fund. Specifically, Management
believes that EBITDA is the appropriate measure from which to make adjustments to estimate the distributable cash
of the Fund.

EBITDA and distributable cash are measures that are not recognized by GAAP and do not have standardized
meanings prescribed by GAAP. Therefore, EBITDA and distributable cash may not be comparable to similar
measures presented by other issuers. Investors are cautioned that EBITDA and distributable cash should not be
construed as alternatives to net income or loss determined in accordance with GAAP as indicators of the Fund’s
performance or to cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities as measures of liquidity and cash
flows. These non-GA AP measures should only be used in conjunction with the financial statements of the Fund.

MARKET AND INDUSTRY DATA

Unless otherwise indicated, the market and industry data contained in this annual information form is based upon
information from independent industry and other publications and Management's knowledge of and experience in
the markets in which the Fund operates. While Management believes this data to be reliable, market and industry
data is subject to variations and cannot be verified with coinplete certainty due to limits on the availability and
reliability of raw data, the voluntary nature of the data gathering process and other limitations and uncertainties
inherent in any statistical survey. The Fund has not independently verified any of the data from third party sources
referred to in this annual information form or ascertained the underlying assumptions relied upon by such sources.

TRADEMARKS

The "ATS" logo is a trademark owned by the Partnership. All other trademarks used in this annual information form
(if any) are the property of their respective owners.



CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Name, Address and Formation

ATS Andlauer Income Fund (the " Fund")
Suite 600, 190 Attwell Drive
Etobicoke, Ontario M9W G6HS8

The Fund is an unincorporated open-ended trust established under the laws of the Province of Ontario by the
Declaration of Trust. There have not been ay material amendments to the Declaration of Trust since the Fund

became a reporting issuer on September 22, 2005.

Intercorporate Relationships

Public Unitholders

100% (Units)

ATS Andlauver
Income Fund
(Ontario)

100% (ATSOT Units)

100% ATS Andlauer
(GP Common Shars_sl Transportation Services '
ATS Andlauer > GP Inc.
Operating Trust (Canada)
(Ontario)

19.9% 30. 1%

100%
(GP Units)

ATS Andlauer Transportation
Services Limited Partnership
{Manitoba)

The following chart illustrates the structure of the Fund as at the date hereof.

Notes:
¢)] Ordinary LP Units, representing 80.1% of the LP Units.
2) Exchangeable LP Units representing 19.9% of the LP Units. Each Exchangeable LP Unit is exchangeable into one

Unit, subject to customary anti-dilution adjustments. The holders of Exchangeable LP Units also hold one Special
Voting Unit for each Exchangeable LP Unit held. The Special Voting Units entitle the holders of Exchangeable LP
Units to such number of votes at meetings of Voting Unitholders as is equal to the number of Units into which the



related Exchangeable LP Units are then exchangeable. See "Retained Interest and Exchange Rights” and "ATS
Andlauer Income Fund — Units and Special Voting Units".
(3) The Vendor is owned by the Existing Shareholder.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
General Overview

The Canadian freight transportation industry can be defined by two categories: the business-to-business segment and
the business-to-consumer segment. The business-to-consumer segment includes goods shipped between businesses
and individual consumers. The business-to-business segment includes the transportation of goods between
businesses. The Fund is focused exclusively on the business-to-business segment of the transportation industry.

The Canadian Freight Transportation Industry

The transportation of goods and the provision of distribution services between businesses are essential in the
functioning of an economy. A country's trade and economy are dependent on its transportation and distribution
capabilities as companies rely on. these services and related infrastructure to conduct their businesses and to
distribute their products to retailers and end-users.

~The commercial freight transportation industry in Canada is segmented into various modes of transportation: air,
rail, marine, trucking, and other ground transportation.

Trucking Segment
The Canadian commercial trucking industry is typically separated into three main segments: courier services, for-
hire trucking and private trucking. These segments are increasingly being supported by a fourth segment, logistics

and value added services.

Courier Services

Courier services represented approximately 10% of the Canadian trucking industry in 2003. Management believes
that the courier services segment is the fastest growing segment in the Canadian commercial trucking industry.
Courier services include the transport of envelopes, packages and other items at an expedited rate.

The courier service industry may be divided into two major segments;
(a) Overnight or later delivery: Shipments that are delivered at least one day after the day they are picked up.
This segment of the market includes shipments delivered within Canada, to the United States or other

countries around the world. This segment represents the majority (85%) of market activity.

(b) Same day/messenger: Shipments that are delivered the same day they are picked up. By definition, these
tend to be primarily local and/or regional deliveries.

Typical courier service providers limit the weight of packages to 70 pounds, while more specialized courier service
providers such as the Fund may also provide the flexibility to distribute packages in excess of 70 pounds.

The typical courier service providers offer both business and consumer deliveries and limit package size due to the
physical design of their conveyor and handling systems.

For-Hire Trucking
For-hire commercial trucking, representing approximately 45% of the Canadian trucking industry in 2003, involves

freight transportation services offered to third parties in exchange for compensation. The for-hire trucking segment
is typically separated into two areas: TL and LTL services.



TL carriers are those that move large shipments (greater than 10,000 pounds) on irregular routes providing service
on a point-to-point basis with no intermediate stops or handling. LTL carriers pick up smaller shipments (less than
10,000 pounds) and consolidate the goods to fill a trailer. These goods are then taken to a final destination terminal
at which they are sorted and distributed. LTL services are often provided on scheduled routes.

The Canadian for-hire trucking industry is diversified across the country with a majority of traffic operating within
the borders of Ontario and Quebec.

Private Trucking

Private trucking, which involves freight transportation services conducted by a company transporting its own goods,
represented approximately 45% of the trucking industry in 2003. The Fund currently performs no private trucking
services.

Air Cargo and Air Freight Forwarding Industry Segment

The Canadian air cargo industry involves the transport of goods by aircraft at an expedited rate from location to
location. The air cargo industry may be separated into two main segments:

(a) Cargo that is transported on dedicated cargo aircraft by dedicated air cargo companies; and
(b) Cargo that is transported in the cargo holds of passenger aircraft by passenger airline companies.

Each segment of this industry carries cargo on domestic routes between Canadian destinations, and on transborder
(United States) or international routes, between Canadian and non-Canadian destinations. The majority of the air
freight cargo is from domestic transport. '

The Canadian air freight forwarding industry inveolves those companies such as the Fund that do not transport cargo
themselves, but contract space for their customers from air cargo and passenger airline comp anies.

Logistics Services and Value Added Segment

A relatively recent development in the transportation industry is the growth of the distribution and logistics services
segment. This segment involves the provision of servicés relating to the planning, imp lementation and control of the
flow and storage of goods, services and related information in the freight transportation process between the point of
origin and the point of consumption. Such value added services are essential to the effective and strategic
management of the supply chain and these services integrate and complement the various modes of transport in the
industry.

GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF THE BUSINESS
History of the Vendor

The Vendor was founded in 1991 by the current President and Chief Executive Officer of the GP, Michael
Andlauer. The business began by offering its first customers nationwide air freight forwarding and ground
transportation services through facilities in Toronto, Montreal, Calgary and Vancouver, supplemented by
transportation agents in other locations. Significant demand for its customized services led the Vendor to further
expand its range of service offerings in order to work more closely with its customers in additional areas of their
supply chains.

The Vendor's rapid growth enabled it to expand its distribution network across Canada by strategically establishing
facilities in select markets. This expansion allowed the Vendor to provide greater control and consistency of service
to its customers by reducing its use of agents.



Three Year History of the Fund

On September 30, 2005, the Fund completed its initial public oftering of Units. The Fund issued 9,324,200 Units at
$10.00 per Unit for gross proceeds of $93,242,000. The Fund used the proceeds of the offering to indirectly acquire
an §0.1% interest in the Partnership. The Partnership subsequently used these proceeds and borrowings under its
Credit Facility to acquire certain of the net assets used in the Canadian transportation solutions business (the
"Purchased Assets") from ATS Andlauer Transportation Services Inc. (the "Vendor") for total consideration
consisting of $98,406,551 in cash and 2,316,442 Exchangeable LP Units (collectively, the "Acquisition"). The
remaining 19.9% interest in the Partnership is held by the Vendor, which is controlled by Michael Andlauer, the
President and Chief Executive Officer of the GP, the general partner of the Partnership.

The Units commenced trading on the TSX at the opening on September 30, 2005 under the symbol "ATS. UN".

On December 19, 2005, before the finalization of its aggregate taxable income for the fiscal year ending December
31, 2005, the Fund announced that it intended to make, in addition to its regular distribution of $0.081 per Unit per
month, an estimated one time special cash distribution of $0.321 per Unit and an estimated one time special
non-cash distribution, in the form of Units with an estimated value of $0.065 per Unit, to be paid on March 31, 2006
-to Unitholders of record at the close of business on December31,2005. The Fund is obligated under its Declaration
of Trust to distribute all taxable income earned within a calendar year. Upon finalization of its taxable income, the
Fund increased the special cash distribution to $0.3343 per Unit and the special non-cash distribution in the form of
Units remained unchanged. The Units to be distributed as part of the special non-cash distribution are to be
distributed on a pro rata basis to Unitholders of record on December 31, 2005 and are to be included in Unitholders’
income for the 2005 calendar year. Immediately after the pro rata distribution of Units, the number of outstanding
Units will be consolidated, such that each Unitholder will hold, following the consolidation, the same number of
Units as before the non-cash distribution, and there will be no change in the total number of Units outstanding. The
special distribution was made because available distributable cash generated in the fourth quarter of 2005,
historically the strongest operational quarter of the business, exceeded regular distributions paid in 2005 at the
annualized rate of $0.081 per month. The excess is in part due to the historically strong fourth quarter coinciding
with the Fund's short initial period ot operations for income tax purposes (August to December 2005). As at the date
hereof, the Fund is not aware of any material changes in the Fund's business that the Fund expects will occur during
the current financial year.

Significant Acquisitions
Business of the Vendor

The Fund completed the Acquisition on September 30, 2005. Information in respect of the Acquisition is contained
in the Fund's Business Acquisition Report dated December 12, 2005 and filed on SEDAR at www.sedar.com on
December 13, 2005. The Business Acquisition Report is incorporated herein by reference and forms part of this
annual information form.

Other

As at the date hereof the Fund has not completed any further significant acquisitions for which a Business
Acquisition Report has not yet been filed.

DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS
Overview

The Partnership is a single source, full-service transportation solutions provider for major consumer product
companies requiring value added business-to-business transportation solutions in Canada. The Partnership provides
a broad range of transportation services designed to deliver reliable, flexible, and cost-effective distribution services
that fulfill its customers' specific needs. These services are provided using courier, air freight forwarding, LTL and
TL transportation modes, and include a full range of value added specialized service and logistics capabilities. The



Partnership has experienced strong growth through its ability to identify and service select consumer product
industry segments that require specialized supply chain service, efficiency and security. Management believes that
the Partnership's bundled service offering differentiates it from its competitors.

Headquartered in the Greater Toronto Area (Etobicoke), Ontario, -the Partnership currently serves its approximately
1,400 customers from a network of 23 facilities across Canada. The Partnership focuses on the transportation of high
value products that are time sensitive including pharmaceuticals, DVDs, telecommunication devices (such as
wireless handsets and satellite dishes) and cosmetics. The Partnership's customers include major manufacturers and
consumer product companies in the entertainment, healthcare, telecommunications and electronics industries
including Bell Distribution Inc., Buena Vista Home Video, 20t Century Fox Home Entertainment, L'Oreal Canada,
Pfizer Canada Inc., Sony Music Canada and Warner Video. The Partnership has established long-term relationships
with its customers serving some of its major customers since 1991.

Business Strengths

Management believes that the following business strengths set the Partnership apart from its competitors and will
enable it to maintain its leadership position in the markets in which it competes, continue to grow revenue and
maintain cash flow stability.

One Stop Source of Transportation Solutions

The Partnership's broad range of specialized services and its national distribution network of 23 facilities provide its
customers with comprehensive solutions for their product transportation néeds. The Partnership provides courier
services, LTL trucking, TL trucking, air freight forwarding services, and premium value added services such as
temperature management services, returns management and appointment delivery. Management believes that the
Partnership's "one-stop" solution is unique in terms of its value added services in the Canadian transportation
industry, providing it with a competitive advantage that is difficult to duplicate.

Specialized Target Market Segments

The Partnership transports goods for customers with high value products in growing industries, particularly
consumer products industries such as health care and entertainment that require specialized logistics and supply
chain capabilities. Management believes that these customers are willing to pay a premium for the higher quality
and value added services the Partnership provides, as service failures or product damage can be significantly more
costly than transportation costs. These higher-value items include products such as pharmaceuticals, DVDs and cell
phones. The Partnership has experienced strong growth by selectively targeting and servicing these markets.

Variable Cost Model

The Partnership operates on a variable cost business model. Management believes the Partnership maintains fewer
fixed assets than the majority of its competitors, a strategy that it believes allows it to be more flexible and adaptive
to changes in the marketplace. This model also allows the Partnership to focus on its customers' special requirements
and not on the management of owned assets. The Partnership pursues this strategy through several practices:

. The majority of the Partnership's pickup. and delivery drivers are owner-operators. The use of owner
operators allows the Partnership to minimize fixed operating costs and capital requirements associated with
the purchase and maintenance of equipment, as well as maintain flexibility in operations.

. The Partnership leases its terminal facilities.

* The Partnership leases the majority of its equipment in order to limit fixed overhead and to maintain a
newer, more reliable and technologically advanced fleet.



. The Partnership uses Air Canada and Cargojet as its air cargo agents maintaining flexibility over its
integrated competitors, as the Partnership does not own any airplane assets and has the ability to expand
and contract air cargo capacity as necessary.

. The Partnership limits spending on marketing-and advertising, focusing on customer retention ‘and
expanding its service offering to its existing customers and relying more on word-of-mouth referrals for
new customer generation.

. The Partnership uses contract warehouse labour for a portion of its warehouse statfing requirements’
allowing for greater flexibility in-thesize of its labour force. :

Diversified and Long-Term Customer Relationships

The Partnership currently serves a diversified group of approximately 1,400 customers operating in various
industries and across geographic borders. In fiscal 2005, the Partnership's largest customer accounted for 6.98% of
revenue, the top five customers accounted for 26.78%, the top 10 customers accounted for 40.24% and the top 30
custorners accounted for 66.6%. None of the Partnership's other customers accounted for more than 2% of its
revenue in fiscal 2005. The Partnership's customers operate in the entertainment, healthcare, telecommunications
and other industries across Canada and North America. This diversity in customers provides a high degree of
stability to the business. Furthermore, the Partnership's 23 facilities throughout Canada help to limit its exposure to
adverse economic conditions in any geographic market.

The Partnership has established long-term relationships with many of its customers. Management believes that the
Partnership handles the bulk of its clients' domestic transportation requirements. The Partnership continues to
enhance existing customer relationships by delivering value added services and maintaining clear standards of
performance and customer satisfaction throughout its organization. The Partnership's top 30 customers in fiscal 2005

have been customers for an average of approximately eight years and some have been customers since the Vendor's
inception.

Successful Growth Record

The Partnership has demonstrated a sustainable growth strategy with steady improvement in revenue and operating
cash flows. Management has grown the business through significant new customer development and to a limited
extent through strategic acquisitions.

Predictable and Stable Demand

Management believes that demand for domestic transportation and distribution services is supported by economic
trends and the necessity for consumer product companies to provide their products to consumers in a timely manner.
Management believes that demand for the Partnership's services is stable and recession-resistant. Between 2001 and
2003, a period of economic slowdown, the Vendor was able to increase revenue, while continuing to attract new
customers and add facilities.

Strong Management Team and Significant Retained Interest

Led by Michael Andlauer, the President and Chief Exe cutive Officer of the GP, who founded the Vendor and the’
Business, Management of the GP has played a significant role in establishing what Management believes is the
Partnership's leading market position in the national business-to-business transportation of higher value consumer
products. The Partnership has a strong and experienced management team with an average of 18 years of experience
in the transportation industry, many of whom had been with the Vendor almost from inception. The Partnership has
strong central leadership, as well as solid regional management. With the growth of its business, the Partnership has
complemented its longstanding senior management with experienced executives from direct transportation industry
" competitors. )



The Vendor has a 19.9% interest in the Partnership. Mr. Andlauer holds a 100% indirect equity interest in the
Vendor. This retained interest reflects Mr. Andlauer's commitment to the Partnership and, together with
Management's participation in the LTIP, aligns Management's interest with the interests of Unitholders.

Growth Strategy and Competitive Landscape

The Partnership has a strong record of growth. The Partnership's growth strategy has two key components: (i) to
continue to grow revenue and cash tlow organically by focusing on increasing sales to existing customers, obtaining
profitable new customers and improving operational efficiencies across its tleet and national network of terminals;
and (ii) to grow through acquisitions as consolidation continues in the transportation industry. Management believes
that its national scope, focus on quality and reliable service, value added logistical services and integrated air and
ground transportation solutions network provide the Partnership with advantages that differentiate it from its
competitors.

Organic Growth

The Partnership has historically grown organically by responding to its existing customers' evolving service
requirements. The Partnership's strategy is to increase revenue through cross-selling existing and new services to its
large and diverse customer base, to limit the rate of expense growth, to employ technology-driven efficiencies to
increase operating profit and to provide superior service and competitive pricing. The Partnership employs a
disciplined sales approach designed to retain and expand service offerings to existing customers and to develop new
customer relationships. The Partnership will continue to focus its sales efforts on its target customers in the
entertainment, pharmaceutical, healthcare, telecommunications and other consumer product industries by leveraging
its principal competitive strength — its customized, integrated national distribution platform.

Acquisitions

The transportation industry is highly fragmented, with the Partnership being one of the growing participants. The
fragmented nature of the industry provides an opportunity for the Partnership to consolidate smaller regional
distributors that could be strategically integrated into its operations. i

. The industry has already experienced significant consolidation among large operators, but remains fragmented with
many smaller independent and regional operators. The Partnership could enhance its competitive position through
the acquisition of companies that could provide specialized services to its customers or who have customer
relationships that align with the Partnership's target market focus. Management intends to make selective
acquisitions of appropriate businesses to the extent that Management believes that those acquisitions will (1} result in
increased revenue, and (ii) increase or maintain distributions to Unitholders.

Competition and Strategic Positioning

The Partnership offers a suite of transportation services to its customers creating a single source for transportation
solutions to meet their Canadian transportation needs. Management believes that this ability differentiates the
Partnership from its competitors. The most significant competitive factors in the industry are reputation, range and
quality of service and price.

The Partnership competes with many different companies and services on a local, regional, and national basis. The
Partnership's competitors include couriers, LTL carriers, TL carriers, various motor carriers, express companies,
freight forwarders, air couriers and other transportation services.companies. There are national competitors within
each of the types of transportation service that the Partnership offers and there are also a few large regional or
product line specific carriers and many smaller regional and local competitors within each segment. The Partnership
has a strong reputation for providing consistent quality services and for having the ability to adapt to the needs of its
customers. The Partnership differentiates itself from its competitors by being one of the few companies to provide
the full range of courier, LTL trucking and air freight forwarding services on a national basis.



Products and Services

The Partnership offers a suite of ground and air transportation services that provide its diversified customer base
with the ability to source all of their transportation needs from a single transportation solution provider. The
Partnership enhances its service offering with the provision of logistic and value added services. The Partnership's
principal services can be described as follows:

Courier Services

The Partnership has an extensive courier service network providing coast-to-coast courier services to its customers.
The Partnership operates in 23 facilities across Canada processing approximately 25,000 shipments per day (52,000
packages). A significant portion of these shipments is to retail destinations. Its courier network is designed to handle
shipments of up to 300 pounds enabling the Partnership to service a broader range of a customer's shipment
requirements compared to many of its courier competitors (who are generally restricted to smaller shipment weights
of 70 pounds by their distribution infrastructure). The flexibility to service this weight category in a courier format is
a distinctive feature of its operations and a competitive advantage, particularly when considering the trend towards
larger shipments into retail locations. With daily scheduled delivery across the country, Management believes this
service to be a highly competitive method for national delivery of these types of shipments. Intra-provincially, most
points are served overnight through the Partnership's extensive ground operations network.

The Partnership's courier network services customer requirements ranging from the delivery of only a few packages,
to coordinated mass nationwide distributions such as the release of new DVDs and video for its national DVD and
video rental store clients. Every package is tracked throughout the distribution process from pickup to delivery, with
each status change recorded through the use of the Partnership's electronic track and trace system. The system
provides an audit trail for every package to assure secure and dependable service for each transaction, which
Management believes is an important service feature for customers shipping high value and time sensitive consumer
products.

The Partnership's courier services accounted for approximately 35% of its revenue in fiscal 2005 (37% in fiscal
2004). Additional value added services offered to complement its courier services include appointment delivery,
returns management, package tracking systems and temperature management service. See "Description of the
Business — Value Added Services".- :

Less than T ruckload (LTL) Trucking

Through its 23 facilities the Partnership also provides its customers with an expedited and consistent LTL service
processing approximately 1,900 LTL shipments per day (21,400 pieces). By offering its customers both courier and
LTL services the Partnership is able to provide a single source solution to its customers that can reduce the number
of carriers delivering into a consignee's facilities, allowing them to be more efficient. The Partnership has been able
to leverage the track and trace technology developed for its courier shipments and apply it to LTL shipments, a
service that Management believes is provided by few of its competitors.

The Partnership provides this trucking- service to its customers through a combination of owner-operator and
employee drivers. In more remote locations where the Partnership does not currently maintain a commercial
presence, the Partnership complements its services with partnerships or alliances with other carriers. LTL shipments
are typically destined for customers' distribution centres or wholesalers' facilities.

The Partnership's LTL services accounted for approximately 46% of its revenue in fiscal 2005 (47% in fiscal 2004).

Additional value added services offered to complement its LTL services include: appointment delivery, returns .
management, package tracking systems and temperature management service. See "Description of the Business —

Value Added Services".



Air Freight Forwarding

Management believes that the Partnership is one of the largest domestic air freight forwarding companies in Canada,
handling on average approximately 2,000 shipments per day. The Partnership has longstanding relationships and
guaranteed contracted space on selected routes with both Air Canada and Cargojet to meet its customers' air freight
needs. Air cargo shipments are staged at the Partnership's facilities across the country and tendered directly to Air
Canada or Cargojet for airport to airport furtherance. The Partnership's dedicated staft assumes custody of
consignments at the receiving airport, which reduces the risk of third-party caused delays and enhances the security
of the goods. The Partnership's air freight forwarding services accounted for approximately 19% of its revenue in
fiscal 2005 (16% in fiscal 2004).

Value Added Services

The Partnership provides a full range of value added services. to its customers that complement its core
transportation services outlined above. The Partnership differentiates itself from its competitors through its ability to
coordinate nationwide distribution while providing bundled customized transportation solutions to. its customers.
The Partnership possesses a unique ability to adapt and respond to the individual needs of its customers, which is
something Management believes few other transportation and distribution companies are able to do. Some of the
differentiated services available to its customers are outlined below.

Leading Package Tracking Systems

The Partnership's track and trace system allows customers and their consignees to attain shipment status information
including pckup date and time, linehaul scans, out for delivery scans, delivery scans, proof of “delivery and
appointment details on-line or through the Partnership’s customer service department. This service is essential to
customers desiring just-in-time delivery, increased security and full access to shipment information. The Partnership
also provides chain of signature services offering additional security for high value products. Each time a shipment
is transferred to a facility or driver, a signature is obtained to monitor the shipment throughout the supply chain.
While many courier companies provide track and trace and chain of signature services, Management believes that
-the Partnership's ability to offer this service on both LTL shipments and courier shipments differentiates it from its
competitors.

Temperature Management Services

The Partnership offers its customers heated ground transportation services to protect shipments from freezing during
the winter months. The Partnership also offers temperature management services where temperature is maintained
within specified ranges as required by customers with certain types ot higher value goods such as pharmaceuticais or
health care products that are sensitive to temperature and temperature fluctuations. The Partnership has made
substantial investments in temperature management services for its trailers and facilities and now has the capability
to monitor and manage temperature conditions for temperature sensitive products throughout the shipment process,
as well as provide documented proof of the temperature environment for the duration of a shipment. Management
believes that it is at the forefront of developing these services and that this investment will lead to further growth in
its customers in the health care. and pharmaceutical industries. Health Canada regulates storage, transportation
methods and procedures that may affect the quality of a drug, including guidelines in respect of the monitoring of
the temperature of drugs. Management believes these guidelines will continue to develop, creating further
requirements for the transportation ot pharmaceuticals.

The Partnership has 12 facilities with temperature controlled areas, and 44 linehaul trailers and 56 pickup and
delivery ‘units equipped with and qualified to offer temperature management services. The Partnership has
approximately 683 personnel that have been trained in temperature management service related procedures through
an in-house training program.



Appointment Services

As large retailers focus on streamlining their inbound logistics process, Management believes companies are placing
more demands on their suppliers to deliver on time and complete orders. As part of this initiative, many retailers
require -appointment deliveries and may levy significant penalties on suppliers for service failures. Through its
network of facilities and personnel dedicated to this. function, the Partnership offers its customers consistent.
standardized appointment services to all major centres in Canada. The ability to meet such standards, particularly
with respect to high value goods, has allowed the Partnership to consolidate customer relationships. Its ability to
provide reliable appointment service has made the Partnership a preferred carrier for several leading retail and
distribution companies such as Best Buy Co., Inc., Future Shop Ltd., Loblaw Companies Limited, London Drugs
Limited and McKesson Canada.

Returns Management

The Partnership manages both the delivery, return and potential recalls for its customers (e.g.,, DVDs,
pharmaceuticals and other consumer products). Although returns typically make up only a small portion of a-
customer's total shipping volume, they can represent a significant cost if the product is lost or damaged. Returns can
also require a significantly greater effort for the customer to process if proper procedures are not followed by the
transportation service company, particularly in the case of high value and time sensitive products such as
pharmaceuticals. With staff dedicated to this service, the Partnership's ability to effectively manage this process
differentiates-it- from many other transportation companies. Part of the Partnership's success in establishing a strong
market position in providing transportation services to the entertainment industry is due to this ability to provide
returns management services. ‘ v

Facilities

The Partnership offers its transportation solutions through a nationwide network of facilities located in 23 centres
across Canada. The Partnership's headquarters are in the Greater Toronto Area (Etobicoke) where it has its largest
.terminal. The Partnership's facilities are designed as mixed-use facilities and are able to handle courier, LTL, and air
freight-forwarding shipments in the same facility. The facilities are designed to maximize efficient handling of
shipments by providing warehousing, staging and distribution functions to the transportation process. With
approximately 847,000 square feet of terminal facilities, the Partnership has the necessary space to meet its
customers’ short term storage needs.

As part of its variable cost model of operations, the Partnership leases all of its facilities in an eftort to limit capital
costs. Below is a list of the Partnership's facilities:

Location : Square Feet : Lease Expiry Date
CalBArY .o e e e e 69,433 August 2011
COMMWANL ...ttt en e 9171 October 2009
Edmonton ..o s 39,789 Cctober 2013
Etobicoke.(Head Office) ..o e S 8,580 - - September 2006
ELOBICOKE ..ottt et 340,081 . December 2012
HA X oot bt saer e b vttt aer e 9,145 October 2008
Hamilton. ..o et 12,363 Month-to-month
Hanover.... 2,000 Month-to-month
KEIOWINE ..ottt 6,000 August 2007
Lethbrid@e ...cuveei ettt : 3,000 March 2010
LONAON .ot e 10,333 July 2007
MONCIOMN oottt vt et 12,750 February 2013
MONITERT ..t cr e s 125,000 February 2020
NAPANEE oottt s 2,000 November 2007
OTAWE (.ot s ee s sr s en s es s s s amn e en e 17,250 July 2007
QUEDEC CHtY oottt ettt 12,763 May 2006

REA DEET ...ttt 3,100 September 2008
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REZINA ...ttt ettt ea e 11,616 July 2006
SASKALOOM cvvvitiititieeete ettt ettt et neeins 10,000 July 2008
TS JONN'S et et e Shared Space n/a

VANCOUVET ...ttt ittt e s et etas s es vt ens s eeeernaae 106,520 February 2016
Victoria.......... 4,650 April 2010
Windsor... 3,728 September 2009
WINNIPEEZ .o et et reae bt sa b seen 26,794 January 2010

Total Square Feet. . - 846,566

The Partnership believes it has good relationships with its landlords and expects to extend its leases or obtain
suitable alternatives as the leases approach the end of their terms. Management believes that alternative facilities
would be available to the Partnership on market terms.

Equipment

As of December 31, 2005, the Partnership operated 267 trailers and 80 power units. In addition, the Partnership has
access to an additional 239 power units under contract with owner operators.

Power Units Number of Units
LEASEA . ieui vttt ettt ettt en ettt e en et ren 78
OWIE oottt ettt ettt ettt bt r et sb e st s e en et et st enetresmrsseessie 2
TOTAL ..t ettt 80
Trailers Number of Units
230
37
267

The Partnership monitors the age of its equipment and maintains a modern fleet. The average leased power unit is
two years old with the majority of the leases expiring between 2008 and 2010. The average leased trailer unit is
three years old with the majority of the leases expiring between 2007 and 2009. Many of the Partnership's power
unit leases provide that maintenance costs are borne by the lessor. Currently, 44 linehaul trailers and 56 pickup and
delivery units are.equipped with and qualitied to offer temperature management services.

Capital Expenditures

The Partnership's capital expenditures can be categorized as maintenance capital and growth capital.

Maintenance Capital Expenditures

With its variable cost model and its strategy to lease rather than own assets, the Partnership does not require
extensive annual maintenance capital expenditures on equipment (all power units include maintenance by the
lessor), fixtures or facilities to support its-operations. Maintenance capital expenditures are funded by cash flow
from operations. Although Management does not currently expect any substantial increases in its maintenance
capital expenditures in the near future, there are risks and uncertainties that may affect maintenance capital
expenditure requirements, which include the occurrence of unforeseen events such as fire, flood, natural disaster,
accident, technology failure and vandalism.



Growth Capital Expenditures

In addition to maintenance capital expenditures, the Partnership makes, from time to time, expenditures to promote
growth — principally the addition of new terminals and information management systems to better service its
customers, broaden its geographic network or better monitor its operations..Growth capital expenditures are funded
through cash held back from distributions to the Fund and under the Credit Facility. Growth related expenditures are
determined on a case-by-case basis. In determining whether to make those expenditures, the Partnership generally
assesses its capacity to service its customers to ensure that the expenditure will enhance existing cash flow.

Personnel

As of December 31, 2005, the Partnership employed or engaged approximately 800 individuals across Canada
serving several different functions. The breakdown of employee and independent contractor functions can be seen
below:

Category Number
Owner-Operator Drivers 239
Employees :
Operations (including Partnership drivers).....ccooo oo 342
Administration 150
MANAZEIMEINT ..ttt ittt bbb e et sttt s eeees 44
SALES <ottt ettt ettt eaa e nn e 21

57
Total 796

Management believes it has good relationships with its employees, none of whom are subject to collective
bargaining agreements. Management believes that the Partnership has experienced lower than industry average
turnover rates among its drivers through its favourable human resource policies including offering drivers
competitive compensation packages, focusing on driver safety and training, and operating on scheduled. linehaul
runs.

Information Management Systems

The Partnership has a comprehensive shipping and tracking information management system designed to support its
strategic goals, the core of which, Andlauer Transportation Logistics Automation System or "ATLAS", is internally
developed and supported. This program was implemented over the last three years using up-to-date hardware and
software development. ATLAS is a fully integrated system that supports the Partnership's finance, administration,
operations, sales, and customer service departments. A key feature of ATLAS is the ability to manage all shipments
. regardless of mode or size giving full scanning, tracing, rating, and reporting capabilities.

The Partnership has invested and continues to invest in information technology and is committed to maintaining
leading edge technology. In addition to the core ATLAS system, the Partnership has developed and implemented
systems for customer shipping, electronic data interchange, image processing, costing, pickup and delivery dispatch
and linehaul management. Emerging market opportunities such as pharmaceutical temperature needs are
aggressively supported with information technology development. The Partnership has recently developed and
implemented an on-board real-time temperature management system that Management believes represents the state
of the art for temperature monitoring and management,

Management believes that competition increasingly is based on a distributor's ability to integrate its transportation
and information systems with its customers' systems to provide unique transportation solutions at competitive prices.
Management believes that the Partnership is a leader in systems integration. ATLAS' features include capabilities to
enhance the processing of reverse logistics freight, invoicing and accounts receivable management and on-time
performance measurement. "



Safety and Insurance

The Partnership prides itself an its safety record and its satety management program. The Partnership has putin
place policies that are designed to contribute to and to promote a safe work environment. The Partnership maintains
a high level of safety awareness and seeks to continually improve safety performance.

The Partnership carries broad insurance coverage for its operations, including motor vehicle liability insurance,
cargo insurance and commercial general liability insurance. Management believes that the Partnership has relatively
low insurance costs compared to the general trucking industry average as it employs primarily owner-operators in its
linehaul operations. Owner-operators own their equipment and thus are motivated to maintain their equipment at
very high levels. The Partnership's owner-operator compensation policies have allowed the Partnership to retain
drivers with more experience, which also assists the Partnership in managing its insurance costs.

Fuel Costs

The cost of fuel represents a significant component of operating costs in the transportation industry. The trend
toward higher fuel costs since mid-2003 has exerted significant cost pressure on the industry. The Partnership has
historically been able to pass on substantially all fuel price increases to its customers through fuel surcharges, which
it adjusts weekly.

Regulation

The transportation industry in Canada is subject to federal and provincial laws and regulations. The Partnership is
required to comply with laws, licences, permits and regulations of each jurisdiction in which it operates including
safety regulations that affect the safety of vehicles and the manner in which they are operated. Management believes
that the Partnership holds all necessary licences, permits and registrations for its current and expected operations.

Environmental

The Partnership's operations and properties are subject to environmental laws and requirements in the jurisdictions
in which it operates relating but not limited to air emissions and transport and warehousing of potentially harmful
products. The Partnership is a certified carrier of dangerous goods and holds the necessary licences, equipment and
training to provide such services. While not a major part of its business, the Partnership does from time to time
transport sensitive materials for its pharmaceutical and health care customers.

Management does not believe that'the financial and operational effects of environmental protection requirements on
capital expenditures, earnings and the competitive position of the Partnership in the current financial year and in
future years will be material. : : i :

Trademarks

The Partnership has three registered and two pending trademarks for use in Canada, including the "ATS" logo.
Contracts

Management does not currently believe that there are any contracts upon which the Partnership's business is
substantially dependant, including any contract to sell the major part of the Partnership's products or services or to
purchase the major part of the Partnership's requirement for goods, services or raw materials. In addition,
Management does not currently believe that there are any franchises or licence or other agreement to use a patent,

formula, trade secret, process or trade name upon which the Partnership's business depends.

Management does not currently believe that there any aspects of the Partnership's business that could reasonably be
expected to be affected in the current financial year by the renegotiation or termination of contracts or subcontracts.



Seasonality

The activities of the Fund are subject to general demand for freight transportation. Historically, demand has been
relatively stable with the exception of the winter months, in which demand slightly decreases, and the fall months, in
which demand increases. Consequently, the Fund’s activities in the last six months of the year are usually stronger.
than the first six months of the year.

RETAINED INTEREST AND EXCHANGE RIGHTS

e

Retained Interest

The Vendor owns 2,316,442 Exchangeable LP Units representing 19.9% of the LP Units. See "Corporate Structure —
Intercorporate Relationships” and "General Development of the Business— Three Year History of the Fund”.

Exchange Rights

The Exchangeable LP Units are indirectly exchangeable for Units on the basis of one Unit for each Exchangeable
LP Unit. The exchange procedure may be initiated by the holder of an Exchangeable LP Unit at any time and from
time to time by delivering to the GP, as escrow agent under the Exchange Agreement, a notice of exchange and a
unit certificate in respect of that portion of its Exchangeable LP Units to be exchanged, duly endorsed in blank for
transfer. The GP will give notice of the proposed exchange to ATSOT, which will acquire Units from the Fund in
consideration for the issuance of ATSOT Units in the number required to complete the exchange. ATSOT will
deliver to the GP, as escrow agent, the requisite number of Units. The GP will effect the exchange procedure by
causing to be issued in the name of ATSOT a unit certiticate for that number of Ordinary LP Units to be issued on
the exchange, entering ATSOT in the register of limited partners of the Partnership in respect of such additional
Ordinary LP Units, causing the Exchangeable LP Units so tendered for exchange to be cancelled, and delivering to
the previous holder of the Exchangeable LP Units that number of Units of the Fund to be received on the exchange.

Yoting Rights

Holders of Exchangeable LP Units also hold Special Voting Units of the Fund that are attached to, and are
evidenced by, the certificates representing the Exchangeable LP Units. The Special Voting Units entitle the holders
thereot to vote in all votes of Voting Unitholders (including resolutions in writing) as if they were the holders of the
number of Units that they would receive if all their Exchangeable LP Units were exchanged for Units. See "ATS
Andlauer Income Fund — Units and Special Voting Units".

" Dilution Rights and Economic Equivalence

The Exchange Agreement provides that in the event that there is a change in the number of Exchangeable LP Units,
or the number of Units outstanding as a result of a subdivision, consolidation, reclassification, capital reorganization
. or similar change in the Exchangeable LP Units or Units (other than a consolidation of Units immediately following
a distribution of Units in lieu of a cash distribution), the exchange ratio will be adjusted by the Fund. The Exchange
Agreement also provides that the Fund will not issue or distribute Units to the holders of all or substantially all of
the then outstanding Units (other than a distribution of Units in lieu of cash distribution), issue or distribute rights,
options or warrants to the holders of all or substantially all of the then outstanding Units or issue or distribute
property of the Fund to the holders of all or substantially all of the then outstanding Units unless, in each’case, the
" economic equivalent thereof (as determmed by the Trustees) is issued or distributed simultaneously to the holders of
Exchangeable LP Units.

Reclassification of Units
If at any time while any Exchangeable LP Unit is outstanding there is any reclassification of the Units outstanding,

any change of the Units into other units or securities or any other capital reorganization or distribution of the Fund
or any consolidation, amalgamation, arrangement, merger or other form of business combination of the Fund with or



into any other entity resulting in a reclassification of the outstanding Units (other than in certain events specified in
the Exchange Agreement), then the Exchange Rights will be adjusted in a manner approved by the Trustees, acting
reasonably, so that holders of Exchangeable LP Units will be entitled to receive, in lieu of the number of Units
which they would otherwise have been entitled, the kind and number or amount of securities that they would have
been entitled to receive as a result of such event if, on the effective date thereof, they had been the registered holder
of the number of Units which they would have received had they exercised the Exchange Rights immediately before
the effective date of any such transaction.

Registration Rights

The Vendor Group has been granted 'demand" and "piggy back" registration rights by the Fund that will enable
them to require the Fund to file a prospectus and otherwise assist with a public offering of Units subject to certain
limitations, with the Fund's expenses to be borne by the Vendor Group (or on a pro rata basis if both the Vendor
Group and the Fund are offering Units) pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Exchange Agreement. In the
event of a "piggy back" offering, the Fund's financing requirements are to take priority.

ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND

The Fund is an unincorporated open-ended trust governed by the laws of the Province of Ontario and created
pursuant to the Declaration of Trust. The Fund is a "mutual fund trust" for the purposes of the Tax Act, but the Fund
is not a mutual fund under applicable securities laws. Accordingly, the Fund cannot carry on business and its
purposes are limited under the Tax Act to investing and activities ancillary to investing.

The Fund is not a trust company and is not registered under applicable legislation governing trust companies as it
does not carry on or intend to carry on the business of a trust company. The Units are not "deposits” within the
meaning of the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation Act (Canada) and are not insured under the provisions of
that Act or any other legislation.

The following is a summary description of the material provisions of the Declaration of Trust. This summary is
qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Declaration of Trust.

Activities of the Fund

The Declaration of Trust provides that the Fund's operations and activities shall be restricted to:

(a) acquiring, investing in, holding, transferring, disposing of or otherwise dealing with the debt and equity
securities of any of the ATS Andlauer Entities, and other corporations, partnerships, trusts or other Persons
involved, directly or indirectly, in the freight transportation business and businesses related, ancillary or
incidental thereto, and such other investments as the Trustees may determine;

(b) acquiring, investing in, holding, transferring, disposing of or otherwise dealing with securities issued by, or
loans made to any of the ATS Andlauer Entities, or any other business entity or other Person in which a
ATS Andlauer Entity has or is concurrently acquiring an interest;

{c) investing in securities of other issuers that meet the Fund's investment criteria;

(d) disposing of all or any part of the property of the Fund;

(e) holding cash in interest bearing accounts with Canadian financial institutions or investing such monies in
Permitted Investments;

® issuing Units, Special Voting Units and other securities of the Fund including, without limitation, rights,
warrants, convertible securities or options to acquire Units or Special Voting Units or other securities of the
Fund;



(g) issuing debt securities (including debt securities convertible into, or exchangeable for, Units, Special
Voting Units or other securities of the Fund) or otherwise borrowing, mortgaging, pledging, charging,
granting a security interest in or otherwise encumbering any of the Fund's-assets as security for any of its
obligations, labilities or indebtedness;

(h) guaranteeing (as guarantor, surety or co-principal obligor) the payment of any indebtedness, liability or
obligation of any ATS Andlauer Entity or the performance of any obligation of any ATS Andlauer Entity,
and mortgaging, pledging, charging, granting a security interest in or otherwise encumbering all or any part
of the Fund's assets as security for such guarantee and subordinating its rights under any Redemption Notes
issued by an ATS Andlauer Entity to other indebtedness and obligations;

(1) purchasing, repurchasing or redeeming securities issued by the Fund;
§)] satisfying the obligations, liabilities or indebtedness of the Fund;
(k) performing its obligations under the Administration Agreement, the Securityholders Agreement, the

Exchange Agreement and all matters ancillary thereto; and

() " undertaking such other activities, or taking such actions (including investing in securities), related to or in

connection with the foregoing or as contemplated by the Declaration of Trust or as may be approved by the
Trustees from time to time,

provided that the Fund shall not undertake any activity, take any action, or purchase or authorize the purchase of any
investment that would not be allowed for a mutual fund trust under subsection 132(06) of the Tax Act. In connection
with this duty, the Trustees have broad authority and are entitled to take such actions as they consider necessary or
appropriate in accordance with the Declaration of Trust to preserve the mutual fund status of the Fund, including as
described under "ATS Andlauer Income Fund — Limitation on Non-Resident Ownership".

Units and Special Voting Units

The beneficial interests in the Fund is divided into interests of two classes, described and designated as "Units" and
"Special Voting Units", respectively. An unlimited number of Units and Special Voting Units are issuable pursuant
to the Declaration of Trust. Each Unit is transferable and represents an equal undivided beneficial interest in any
distributions from the Fund whether of net income, net realized capital gains or other amounts and in the net assets
of the Fund in the event of a termination or winding-up of the Fund. The Units are not subject to future calls or
assessments and entitle the holder thereof to one vote for each whole Unit held at all meetings of Voting
Unitholders. Except as described under "Redemption Right” below, the Units have no conversion, retraction,
redemption or pre-emptive rights.

The Special Voting Units are not entitled to any interest or share in the Fund, in any distribution from the Fund
whether of net income, net realized capital gains or other amounts, or in the net assets of the Fund in the event ofa
termination or winding-up of the Fund. Special Voting Units may, however, be redeemed by the holder at any time
for nominal consideration. ’

Special Voting Units may be issued in series and are only issued in connection with or in relation to Exchangeable
LP Units and, if the Trustees so determine, other securities exchangeable, directly or indirectly, for Units
(collectively, "Exchangeable Securities'"), in each case for the purpose of providing voting rights with respect to
the Fund to the holders of Exchangeable Securities. Special Voting Units are issued in conjunction with, and are
attached to, the Exchangeable LP Units (or other Exchangeable Securities) to which they relate, and are evidenced
only by the certificates representing such Exchangeable Securities. Special Voting Units are not transterable
separately from the Exchangeable Securities to which they are attached. Each Special Voting Unit entitles the holder
thereof to that number of votes at any meeting of Voting Unitholders that is equal to the number of Units that may
be obtained upon the exchange (direct or indirect) of the Exchangeable LP Unit or other Exchangeable Security to
which it is attached. Upon the exchange or conversion of an Exchangeable Security for Units, the Special Voting
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Unit that is attached to such Exchangeable Security will immediately be cancelled without any further action of the
Trustees, and the former holder of such Special Voting Unit will cease to have any rights with respect thereto.

Issued and outstanding Units and Special Voting Units may be subdivided or consolidated from time to time by the
Trustees without the approval of Voting Unitholders. No certificates will be issued for fractional Units and fractional
Units will not entitle the holders thereof to vote.

Issuance of Units

The Fund may issue Units or rights to acquire Units at those times, to those persons, for that consideration and on
the terms and conditions that the Trustees determine, including pursuant to any Unitholder rights plan or any
incentive option or other compensation plan established by the Fund. Units may be issued in satisfaction of any non-
cash distributions of the Fund to Unitholders on a pro rata basis. The Declaration of Trust provides that immediately
after any pro rata distribution of Units to all Unitholders in satisfaction of any non-cash distribution, the number of
outstanding Units will be consolidated such that each Unitholder will hold after the consolidation the same number
of Units as the Unitholder held betfore the non-cash distribution (except where tax was required to be withheld in
respect of the Unitholder's share of the distribution as described below). In this case, each certificate representing a
number of Units prior to the non-cash distribution is deemed to represent the same number of Units after the non-
cash distribution and the consolidation. Where amounts so distributed represent income, non-resident Unitholders
will be subject to withholding tax and, accordingly, the consolidation will not result in such non-resident Unitholder
holding the same number of Units. Such non-resident Unitholders will be required to surrender the certificates (if
any) representing their original Units in exchange for a certificate representing their post-consolidation Units.

Trustees

The Fund must have a minimum of three Trustees and a maximum of seven Trustees, the majority of whom must be
residents of Canada (within the meaning of the Tax Act). The Trustees supervise the activities and manage the
affairs of the Fund. The Trustees also serve as the trustees of ATSOT and as directors of the GP. See "Trustees,
Directors and Officers".

Under the terms of the Declaration of Trust, the Vendor Group has the right to elect one trustee so long as the
Vendor Group holds, directly or indirectly, Units or LP Units representing (on a diluted basis) not less than 10% of
the outstanding Units. The remaining Trustees are selected by Voting Unitholders. The same individuals are
Trustees, trustees of ATSOT and directors of the GP. Under the terms of the Declaration of Trust, the Trustees are
required to elect the Trustees as the trustees of ATSOT and under the terms of the ATSOT Declaration of Trust, the
trustees of ATSOT are required to elect the trustees of ATSOT as directors of the GP.

Trustees, other than the Trustee appointed by the Vendor Group, are appointed at each annual meeting of Voting
Unitholders to hold office for a term expiring at the close of the next annual meeting. A quorum of the Trustees,
being a majority of the Trustees then holding office, may fill a vacancy in the Trustees, except a vacancy resulting
from an increase in the number of Trustees (other than as provided below) or from a failure of the Voting
Unitholders to elect the required number of Trustees at a meeting of the Voting Unitholders called for such purpose.
" In the absence of a quorum of Trustees, or if the vacancy has arisen from a failure of the Voting Unitholders to elect
the required number of Trustees at a meeting of the Voting Unitholders called for such purpose, the Trustees must
forthwith call a special meeting of the Voting Unitholders to fill the vacancy. If the Trustees fail to call such meeting
or if there are not Trustees then in office, any Voting Unitholder may call the meeting. The Trustees may, with the
consent of the Vendor Group for so long as it has the right to appoint a Trustee, prior to the first annual meeting of
Voting Unitholders or between annual meetings of Voting Unitholders, appoint one or more additional Trustees to
serve until the next annual meeting of Voting Unitholders, but the number of additional Trustees so appointed may
not at any time exceed one-third of the number of Trustees who held office at the expiration of the immediately
preceding annual meeting of Voting Unitholders.

A Trustee may resign upon written notice to.the Fund and may be removed by a resolution passed by a majority of
the Voting Unitholders. A vacancy created by such removal may be filled at the same meeting, failing which it may
be filled by the remaining Trustees.
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The Declaration of Trust provides that, subject to its terms and conditions, the Trustees will have full, absolute and
exclusive power, control and authority over the assets of the Fund and over the affairs of the Fund to the same extent
as if the Trustees were the sole and absolute legal and beneficial owners of the assets of the Fund, and may, in
respect of the assets of the Fund, exercise any and all rights, powers and privileges that could be exercised by a legal
and beneficial owner thereof. Subject to such terms and conditions, the Trustees are responsible for, among other
things: (i) supervising the activities and managing the investments and the affairs of the Fund; (ii) maintaining
records and providing reports to Voting Unitholders; (iii) effecting payments of distributable cash from the Fund to
Unitholders; (iv) acting for, voting on behalf of and representing the Fund as a holder of ATSOT Units and other
securities; (v) voting in favour of the Fund's nominees to serve as trustees of ATSOT; and (vi) causing ATSOT to
vote in favour of the Fund's nominees as directors of the GP.

The Declaration of Trust provides that the Trustees must act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best
interests of the Fund and in connection therewith must exercise the degree of care, diligence and skill that a
reasonably prudent person would exercise in comparable circumstances. The Declaration of Trust provides that each
Trustee and officer of the Fund, as well as former Trustees and officers, and their respective heirs and legal
representatives, will be entitled to indemnification from the assets of the Fund in respect of the exercise of that
person's powers, and the discharge of that person's duties, provided that the person acted honestly and in good faith
with a view to the best interest of the Fund and, in the case of a criminal or administrative action or proceeding that
is enforced by a monetary penalty, where the person had reasonable grounds for believing that his or her conduct
was lawtul.

Cash Distributions

The Fund currently makes monthly cash distributions of its available distributable cash to Unitholders to the extent
determined prudent by the Trustees. The amount of cash available for distribution will be equal to the distributions
(if any) on or in respect of the ATSOT Units owned by the Fund and all other amounts, if any, from any other
investments from time to time held by the Fund received in such period, less amounts that are paid, payable,
incurred or provided for in such period in connection with: (a) administrative expenses and other obligations of the
Fund; (b) amounts that may be paid by the Fund in connection with any cash redemptions or repurchases of Units;
(c) satisfaction of debt service or other obligations of the Fund on account of both principal and interest; and (d) any
amount that the Trustees may reasonably consider to be necessary to provide for the payment of any costs, expenses,
obligations or liabilities including any tax liability of the Fund, that have been or are reasonably expected to be
incurred in the activities and operations of the Fund (to the extent that such costs, expenses, obligations or liabilities
have not otherwise been taken into account in the calculation of the available distributable cash of the Fund).

The Fund may make additional distributions in excess ot the aforementioned monthly distributions during the year,
as the Trustees may determine. The distribution declared in respect of the month ending December 31 in each year
will include such amount in respect of the taxable income and net realized capital gains, if any, of the Fund for such
year as is necessary to ensure that the Fund will not be liable for ordinary income taxes under the Tax Act in such
year.

Any income of the Fund that is unavailable for cash distribution will, to the extent necessary to ensure that the Fund
does not have any income tax liability under Part I of the Tax Act, be distributed to Unitholders in the form of
additional Units. Such additional Units will be issued pursuant to applicable exemptions under applicable securities
laws, discretionary exemptions granted by applicable securities regulatory authorities or a prospectus or similar
filing.

The Fund currently makes monthly cash distributions to Unitholders of record on the last business day of each
month or such other date as may be determined from time to time by the Trustees, and the distributions are paid
generally on the 15th day of the following month. See "General Development of the Business — Three Year History
of the Fund" and "Distributions".

Unitholders who are non-residents of Canada will be required to pay all withholding taxes payable in respect of any
distributions of income by the Fund, whether such distributions are in the form of cash or additional Units. Non-
residents should consult their own tax advisors regarding the tax consequences of investing in the Units.
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The Fund, ATSOT and the Partnership have considerable discretion in determining the amount of cash distributions.
Cash distributions are not guaranteed and will fluctuate with, among other things, the Partnership's performance. See
"Risk Factors— Risks Relating to the Structure of the Fund — Cash Distributions".

Redemption Right

Units are redeemable at any time on demand by the holders thereof upon delivery to the Fund of a duly completed
and properly executed notice requesting redemption in a form approved by the Trustees specifying the number of
Units to be redeemed. As the Units will be issued in book-entry form, a Unitholder who wishes to exercise the
redemption right will be required to obtain a redemption notice form from the Unitholder's investment dealer. As of
the close of business on the date the Units are surrendered for redemption, all rights to and under the Units tendered
for redemption shall (subject to the following) be surrendered and the holder thereof shall be entitled to receive a
price per Unit (the "Redemption Price") equal to the lesser of:

(a) 90% of the Market Price of the Units on the principal stock exchange on which the Units are listed (or, if
the Units are not listed on any stock exchange, on the principal market on which the Units are quoted for
trading) during the period of the last 10 trading days during which the Units traded on such stock exchange
or market ending immediately prior to the date on which the Units were tendered for redemption; and

(b} the Closing Market Price of the Units on the date on which the Units were tendered for redemption on the
principal stock exchange on which Units are listed (or, if Units are not listed on any stock exchange, on the
principal market on which the Units are quoted for trading).

For the purposes of determining the Redemption Price, "Market Price" for a specified trading period will be the
amount equal to the weighted average of the trading prices of the Units on the applicable market or exchange for -
each of the trading days on which there was a trade during the specified trading day period; provided that if there
was trading on the applicable exchange or market for fewer than five of the trading days during the specified trading
day period, "Market Price" for a specified trading period will be the average of the following prices established for
each of the trading days during the specified trading day period: the average of the last bid and ask prices for each
trading day on which there was no trading and the weighted average trading prices of the Units for each trading day
on which there was trading. For the purposes of determining the Redemption Price, "Closing Market Price" will be:
(i) an amount equal to the closing price of the Units on the applicable market or exchange if there was a trade on the
specified date and the applicable market or exchange provides a closing price; (ii) an amount equal to the average of
the highest and lowest prices of Units on the applicable market or exchange if there was trading on the specified date
and the applicable market or exchange provides only the highest and lowest trading prices of Units traded on a
particular day; or (iii) the average of the last bid and ask prices on the applicable market or exchange if there was no
trading on the specified date.

The aggregate Redemption Price payable by the Fund in respect ot any Units surrendered for redemption during any
calendar month will be satisfied by way of a cash payment by the Fund no later than the last day of the calendar
month following the calendar month in which the Units were tendered for redemption, provided that the entitlement
of the Unitholders to receive cash upon the redemption of their Units is subject to the limitations that:

(a) the total amount payable by the Fund in respect of such Units and all other Units tendered for redemption in
the same calendar month may not exceed $50,000, provided that the Trustees may, in their sole discretion,
waive such limitation in respect of all Units tendered for redemption in any calendar month;

(b) at the time such Units are tendered for redemption, the outstanding Units must be listed for trading on a
stock  exchange or quoted on another market that, in the sole discretion of the Trustees, provides a
representative fair market value price for the Units; and

(c) the normal trading of Units must not be suspended or halted on any stock exchange on which the Units are
listed {or, if not listed on a stock exchange, on any market on which the Units are quoted for trading) on the
date that the Units are tendered for redemption or for more than five trading days during the 10 trading day
period prior to the date on which the Units are tendered for redemption.



If a Unitholder is not entitled to receive cash upon the redemption of Units as a result of one or more of the
foregoing limitations, then each Unit tendered for redemption will, subject to any applicable regulatory approvals,
be redeemed by way of a distribution in specie of Redemption Notes. Where the Fund makes a distribution in specie
of Redemption Notes on the redemption of Units of a Unitholder, the Fund currently intends to designate to that
Unitholder any income or capital gain realized by the Fund as a result of the distribution of Redemption Notes to the
Unitholder on the redemption of such Units.

It is anticipated that the redemption right described above will not be the primary mechanism for holders of Units to
- dispose of their Units. Redemption Notes that may be distributed in specie to Unitholders in connection with a
redemption will not be listed on any stock exchange and no market is expected to develop in Redemption Notes and
they may be subject to resale restrictions under applicable securities laws. Redemption Notes so distributed may not
_be qualified investments for trusts governed by Exempt Plans depending upon the circumstances at the time.

Terms of Redemption Notes

The following is a summary of the general terms of any Redemption Notes that may be issued by the Fund. The
following summary assumes such Redemption Notes are issued by the Fund. If the Redemption Notes are issued by
a subsidiary of the Fund, the following description will apply equally in all respects to such subsidiary of the Fund.

Redemption Notes will be issuable in Canadian currency in denominations of $100 and integral multiples of $100.
Each Redemption Note will mature on a date determined at the time of issuance (provided that in no event shall the
maturity date be set at a date subsequent to the first business day following the fifth anniversary of the date of
issuance of such note) and bear interest at a market rate of interest determined at the time of issuance, in each case as
determined by the Trustees, and the interest shall be payable monthly, in arrears, with such' payment to be made on
the 15th day of the month following the month to which such payment relates. On maturity, the Redemption Notes
will be repaid by paying to the holder thereof the principal amount of the outstanding Redemption Notes that have
then matured, together with accrued and unpaid interest thereon.

The Redemption Notes will be redeemable in- whole or in part at the option of the Fund prior to maturity. The
redemption price will be equal to the principal amount of the Redemption Notes redeemed plus accrued and unpaid
interest. The redemption price will generally be payable in cash, however, if the Fund chooses to redeem some or all
of any outstanding Redemption Notes, the Fund may, in its discretion, issue other unsecured promissory notes of the
Fund in full or partial payment of the redemption price for such outstanding Redemption Notes.

The Redemption Notes will be unsecured debt obligations of the Fund. Payment of the principal amount and interest
on the Redemption Notes will be subordinated in right of payment to the prior payment in full of the principal of and
accrued and unpaid interest on, and all other amounts owing in respect of, all senior indebtedness, which will be
defined as all indebtedness, liabilities and obligations of the Fund which, by the terms of the instrument creating or
evidencing the same, is not expressed to rank in right of payment in subordination to or pari passu with the
indebtedness evidenced by the Redemption Notes. The Redemption Notes will provide that upon any distribution of
the assets of the Fund in the event of any dissolution, liquidation; reorganization or other similar proceedings
relative to the Fund, the holders of all such senior indebtedness will be entitled to receive payment in full before the
holders of the Redemption Notes are entitled to receive any payment. :

Repurchase of Units

The Fund will be allowed, from time to time, to purchase Units for cancellation in accordance with applicable
securities laws and the rules prescribed under applicable stock exchange or regulatory policies. ‘

Meetings of Voting Unitholders

The Declaration of Trust provides that meetings of Voting Unitholders will be required to be called and held
annually, for the purpose of: (i) the presentation of the audited financial statements of the Fund for the immediately
preceding fiscal year; (ii) the election of Trustees (other than the Trustee appointed by the Vendor Group); (iii) the
appointment of auditors of the Fund for the ensuing year; (iv) generally, any other matter that requires a resolution
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of Voting Unitholders; and (v) transacting such other business as the Trustees may determine or as may be properly
brought before the meeting. The Declaration of Trust provides that the Voting Unitholders will be entitled to pass
resolutions that will bind the Fund only with respect to:

(a) - - theelection or removal of Trustees, subject to the right of the Vendor Group to appoint a Trustee;

(b) any amalgamation, arrangement, other merger or capital reorganization of the Fund with any other entity,
except in conjunction with an internal reorganization or the acquisition by the Fund or a ATS Andlauer
Entity ot the securities or assets of another entity;

(c) the appointment or removal of nominees of the Fund chosen by the Voting Unitholders to serve as trustees
of ATSOT, except filling casual vacancies;

(d the appointment or removal of the auditors of the Fund;

(e) the appointment of an inspector to investigate the performance by the Trustees in respect ofthelr respectlve
respons1b111t1es and duties in respect of the Fund;

H the approval of amendments to the Declaration of Trust (as described under "ATS Andlauer Income Fund
— Amendments to the Declaration of Trust");

(g) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Fund;

(h) the exercise of certain voting rights attached to the securities of ATSOT or the Partnership held directly or
indirectly by the Fund, subject to the provisions of any securityholders agreement mcludmg, w1thout’
limitation, the Securityholders Agreement;

(i) the election of nominees of the Fund to act as directors of the GP or the removal thereof, except filling
casual vacancies;

() -the dissolution of the Fund prior to the end of its term; and

(k) such other business as the Trustees may determine or as may properly be brought before the meéting,
including, without limitation, any other matters required by securities law, stock exchange rules or other
laws or regulatioris to be submitted to Voting Unitholders for their approval, including, if so required, the
ratification of any Unitholder rights plan, distribution reinvestment plan, Unit purchase plan, Unit option

- plan or other compensation plan.

No other action taken by Voting Umtho ders or any other resolution of the Voting Unitholders at any meetmg will in
any way bind the Trustees.

Resolutions (i) electing or removing nominees of the Fund as Trustees, (i} appointing or removing the auditors of
the: Fund, (iii) ‘with respect to the exercise of certain voting rights attached to the securities of ATSOT or the
Partnership held, directly or indirectly, by the Fund, (iv) where applicable, ratifying any Unitholder rights plan,
distribution reinvestment plan, Unit purchase plan, Unit option plan or other compensation plan requiring Voting
Unitholder approval under securities law, stock exchange rules or other laws or regulations, and (v) where
applicable, matters required by securities law, stock exchange rules or other laws or regulations to be submitted to
Voting Unitholders, must be passed by a simple majority of the votes cast by Voting Unitholders. The balance of the
foregoing matters must be passed by a resolution of the Voting Unitholders passed by not less than 66 2/3% of the
votes cast, either in person or by proxy, at a meeting of Voting Unitholders called for the purpose of approving such
resolution, or approved in writing by the holders of not less than 66 2/3% of the Voting Units entitled to vote on
such resolution (a "Special Resolution™). ‘ '

Subject to the foregoing limitations, a meeting of Voting Unitholders may be convened at any time and for any
purpose by the Trustees and must be convened if requisitioned in writing by the holders of not less than 5% of the
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Vating Units then outstanding. A requisition must state in reasonable detail the business proposed to be transacted at
the meeting.

Voting Unitholders may attend and vote at all meetings of the Voting Unitholders either in person or by proxy and a
proxy holder need not be a Voting Unitholder. Two persons present in. person and ‘either holding personally or
representing by proxy in the aggregate at least 10% of the votes attached to all outstanding Voting Units will
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at all such meetings. At any meeting at which a quorum is not
present within one-half hour after the time fixed for the holding of such meeting, the meeting, if convened upon the
request ot the Voting Unitholders, will be terminated (not adjourned), but in any other case, the meeting will stand
adjourned to a day not less than 14 days later and to a place and time as chosen by the chair of the meeting, and if at
such adjourned meeting a quorum is not present, the Voting Unitholders present either in person or by proxy will be
deemed to constitute a quorum.

The Declaration of Trust contains provisions as to the notice required and other procedures with respect to the
calling and holding of meetings of Voting Unitholders.

Limitation on Non-Resident Ownership

In order for the Fund to maintain its status as a mutual fund trust under the Tax Act, the Fund must not be
.established or maintained primarily for the benefit of Non-residents within the meaning of the Tax Act.
Accordingly, for so long as is required by the Tax Act to meet such test, the Declaration of Trust provides that at no
time may Non-residents be the beneficial owners of more than 49% of the Units. This 49% limitation will be applied
with respect to the issued and outstanding Units of the Fund on both (i) a non-diluted basis and (ii) a fully-diluted
basis (the limitation will apply in either case) calculated on the assumption that any Units issuable at the time of
calculation to holders of Exchangeable LP Units pursuant to the Exchange Agreement have been issued and are held
by holders of Exchangeable LP Units.

If at any time the Trustees, in their sole discretion, determine that it is advisable and in the best interests of the Fund

to act so that the Fund continues to qualify as a mutual fund trust for purposes of the Tax Act, the Trustees may take
one or more actions including the following:

(a) the Trustees may perform residency searches of Unitholder and beneficial Unitholder mailing address lists
and take such other steps as specified by the Trustees, at the cost of the Fund, to determine.or estimate, to
the extent practicable, the residence of the beneficial. owners of Units;

(b) the Trustees may require declarations as to the jurisdictions in which beneficial owners of Units are
resident or declarations from Unitholders as to whether such Units are held by or for the benefit of
beneficiaries ("Non-resident Beneficiaries") that are Non-residents;

(c) the Trustees, following the issuance of a public announcement to such effect, may refuse to accept a
subscription for Units from or issue or register a transfer of Units to a person unless the person provides a
declaration that the person is not a Non-resident (or, in the discretion of the Trustees, that the person is not
a Non-resident Beneficiary) and does not hold his or its Units for a Non-resident Beneficiary;

(d) the Trustees may place such other limits on Unit ownership by Non-residents as the Trustees may deem
necessary in their sole discretion, including unilaterally altering the limit on Non-resident ownership above,
to the extent required, in the opinion of the Trustees, to maintain the Fund's status as a mutual fund trust;
and

(e) if, notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustees, in their sole discretion, determine that further action is
required so that the Fund continues to qualify as a mutual fund trust for purposes of the Tax Act, the
Trustees may send a notice to such Unitholders, chosen in inverse order to the order of acquisition or
registration or in such.manner as the Trustees may consider equitable and practicable, requiring them to sell
their Units or a portion thereof within a specitied period of not more than 60 days. If the Unitholders
‘receiving such notice have not sold the specified number of Units or provided the Trustees with satisfactory
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evidence that they are not Non-residents and do not hold their Units for the benefit of Non-resident
Beneficiaries within such period, the Trustees may sell such Units on behalf of such Unitholders, and in the
interim, the voting and distribution rights attached to such Units shall be suspended. Upon such sale, the
affected holders shall cease to be Unitholders and their rights shall be limited to receiving the net proceeds
of sale.

In any situation where it is unclear whether Units are held for the benefit of Non-resident Beneficiaries, the Trustees
.may exercise their discretion in determining whether such Units are or are not so held.

Amendments to the Declaration of Trust

The Declaration of Trust may be amended or altered from time to time with the consent of the Voting Unitholders
by a Special Resolution, except that any amendment that atfects the rights or interests of the holders of Special
Voting Units in a manner or to an extent different from other Voting Unitholders or the rights of the Vendor Group
to appoint a Trustee also requires the approval of such holders or the Vendor Group, as the case may be.

The Trustees may, at their discretion and without the approval of the Voting Unitholders, make certain amendments
to the Declaration of Trust, including amendments: (i) for the purpose of ensuring continuing compliance and
conformity of the Fund, its activities and the Declaration of Trust with applicable laws, regulations, requirements or
policies of any governmental authority having jurisdiction over the Trustees, Unitholders and/or Special Voting Unit
holders, the Fund, or any ATS Andlauer Entity; (ii) which, in the opinion of counsel to the Trustees, provide
additional protection or added benefits for Unitholders; (i1i) to remove any conflicts or inconsistencies in the
Declaration of Trust or to make minor changes or corrections that, in the opinion of the Trustees, are necessary or
desirable and not prejudicial to the Unitholders or Special Voting Unitholders;. (iv) which, in the opinion of the .
Trustees, are necessary or desirable as a result of changes in taxation laws or policies of any governmental authority
having jurisdiction over the Trustees or the Fund; or (v) for the purpose of ensuring that the Fund continues to
qualify as a mutual fund trust under the Tax Act. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, the Trustees may not
amend the Declaration of Trust in.a manner that would result in the Fund failing to qualify as a mutual fund trust
under the Tax Act.

Term of the Fund

The Fund has been established for a term ending 21 years after the date of death of the last surviving issue of Her
Majesty, Queen Elizabeth II, alive on August 22, 2005. On a date selected by the Trustees that is not more than two
years prior to the expiry of the term of the Fund, the Trustees are obligated to commence to wind-up the affairs of
the Fund so that it will terminate on the expiration of the term. In addition, at any time prior to the expiry of the term
of the Fund, the Voting Unitholders may by a Special Resolution require the Trustees to commence the termination,
liquidation or wind-up of the affairs of the Fund.

The Declaration of Trust provides that, upon being required to commence the termination, liquidation or winding-up
of the affairs of the Fund, the Trustees will- give notice thereof to the Voting Unitholders, which notice shall
designate the time or times at which Voting Unitholders may surrender their Voting Units for cancellation and the
date at which the register of Voting Units will be closed. After the date the register is closed, the Trustees will
proceed to wind up the affairs of the Fund as soon as may be reasonably practicable and for such purpose will,
subject to any direction to the contrary in respect of a termination authorized by a resolution of the Voting

. Unitholders, sell and convert into money the ATSQT Units and all other assets comprising the Fund in one
transaction or in a series of transactions at public or private sales and do all other acts appropriate to liquidate the
Fund. After paying, retiring, discharging or making provision for the payment, retirement or discharge of all known
liabilities and obligations of the Fund and providing for indemnity against any other outstanding liabilities and
obligations, the Trustees will distribute the remaining part of the proceeds of the sale of the ATSOT Units and other
assets comprising the Fund together with any. cash forming part of the assets of the Fund among the Unitholders in
accordance with their pro rata interests. If the Trust is unable to sell all or any of the ATSOT Units or other assets
which comprise part of the Fund by the date set for termination, the Trustees may distribute the remaining ATSOT
Units or other assets in specie directly to the Unitholders in accordance with their pro rata interests subject to
obtaining all required regulatory approvals.
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Take-over Bids

The Declaration of Trust contains provisions to the effect that if a take-over bid is made for the Units and 90% or
more of the Units on a fully diluted basis (other than any Units held at the date of the take-over bid by or on behalf
of the offeror or associates or affiliates of the offeror) are taken up and paid for by the offeror, the offeror wiit be
entitled to acquire the Units and the Exchangeable LP Units held by holders who did not accept the take-over bid, on
the same terms on which the offeror acquired Units pursuant to the take-over bid.

The Declaration of Trust and the Exchange Agreement include provisions to facilitate the exchange of Exchangeable
LP Units for Units so that a holder of Exchangeable LP Units may exercise its rights to exchange all or a portion of
such holdings for Units, including conditionally, in order to tender to a take-over bid.

Exercise of Certain Voting Rights Attached to Securities of ATSOT, the GP and the Partnership

The Declaration of Trust provides that the Fund will not vote any securities of ATSOT, nor permit ATSOT to vote
any securities of the GP or the Partnership to authorize:

(a) any sale, lease or other disposition of all or substantially all of the direct or indirect assets of ATSOT, the
GP, the Partnership or any of their respective affiliates, except in conjunction with an internal
reorganization of any of these entities, as applicable, pursuant to a good faith charge, pledge, mortgage,
lien, security interest or other encumbrance granted by ATSOT over any assets of ATSOT in the ordinary
course of business pursuant to any guarantee or any obligation of ATSOT, the GP, the Partnership or any of
their respective affiliates;

(b) any amalgamation, arrangement or other merger of ATSOT, the GP, the Partnership or any of their
respective affiliates, with any other entity, except in conjunction with an internal reorganization of any of
these entities, as applicable;

(c) the winding-up or dissolution of ATSOT, the GP, the Partnership or any of their respective atfiliates prior
to the end of the term of the Fund except in conjunction with an internal reorganization of these entities, as
applicable;

(d) any material amendment to the constating document of any of ATSOT, the Partnership or the GP to effect

any change that would be prejudicial to the Fund or the Unitholders; or

(e) any other matter that, under the ATSOT Declaration of Trust, i'equires the approval of the holders of Units
by Special Resolution;

without the authorization of the Voting Unitholders by a Special Resolution.
Information and Reports

The Fund will furnish- to Voting -Unitholders, in accordance with applicable securities laws, -such financial
statements of the Fund (including quarterly and annual financial statements) and other reports as are from time to
time required by -applicable law, including prescribed forms needed for the completion of Unitholders' tax returns
under the Tax Act and equivalent provincial legislation. Prior to each meeting of Voting Unitholders, the Trustees
will provide the Voting Unitholders (along with notice of such meeting) all such information @ is required by
applicable law and the Declaration of Trust to be provided to Voting Unitholders. ’

The Trustees, the trustees of ATSOT and directors and senior officers of other subsidiaries ot the Fund, including
the GP and the Partnership, will be required to file insider reports and comply with insider trading provisions under
applicable Canadian securities legislation in respect of trades made by such petrsons in Units.

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the GP will perform functions similar to a chief
executive officer and chief financial officer in respect of the Fund. As such, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
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Financial Officer of the GP will execute the certificates required to be filed pursuant to Multilateral Instrument 52-
109 — Certification of Disclosure in Issuers' Annual and Interim Filings.

“In-addition, the Fund has undertaken to the securities commissions or other securities regulatory authorities in each
of the provinces of Canada that for so long as the Fund is a reporting issuer under applicable securities laws, it will:

. treat the Partnership as a subsidiary of the Fund; however, if generally accepted accounting principles
prohibit the consolidation of financial information of the Partnership and the Fund, for as bng as the
Partnership (and any of its significant business interests) represents signiticant assets of the Fund, the Fund
will provide Unitholders with separate financial statements for the Partnership (and any of its significant
business interests);

. take appropriate measures to require each person who would be an insider of the Partnership if the '
Partnership were a reporting issuer to (a) file insider reports about trades in Units (including securities that
are exchangeable into Units), and (b) comply with statutory prohibitions against insider trading; and

. " annually certify that it has complied with this undertaking, and file the certificate on the System for
Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval (SEDAR) concurrently with the filing of its annual financial -
statements. ) :

In future interim and annual filings, the Fund will include relevant information and discussions comparing the
Fund's business with the Business. The Fund believes that comparative financial information relating to revenue,
cost of sales and general and administrative expenses are appropriate to include in the operating results of the Fund.
The information will be provided on a comparative basis in future interim and annual management discussion and
analysis.

Book-Entry Only System

Registration of interests in and transfers of the Units are made only through a book-based system administered by
CDS. Units must be purchased, transferred and surrendered for redemption through a participant in the CDS

depository service (a "CDS Participant”). All rights of Unitholders must be exercised through, and all payments or
other property to which the Unitholder is entitled will be made or delivered by, CDS or the CDS Participant through
which the Unitholder holds the Units. Upon a purchase of any Units, the Unitholder will receive only a customer
confirmation from the registered dealer that is a CDS Participant and from or through which the Units are purchased. -
References in this annual information form to a Unitholder mean, unless the context otherwise requires, the owner of
the beneficial interest in those Units. '

The ability of a beneficial owner of Units to pledge those Units or otherwise take action with respect to the
Unitholder's interest in those Units (other than through a CDS Participant) may be limited due to the lack of a
physical certificate.

The Fund has the option to terminate registration of the Units through the CDS book-entry only system, in which
case certificates for the Units in fully registered form would be issued to beneficial owners of those Units or their
nominees.

Financial Year End

The fiscal year end of the Fund is December 31.

Conflicts of Interest

The Declaration of Trust contains "coriflict of interest” provisions that serve to protect Unitholders without creating
undue limitations on the Fund. The Declaration of Trust provides that if a Trustee or an officer of the Fund is a party

to a material contract or transaction or proposed material contract or transaction with the Fund or any of its affiliates,
or is a director or officer of, or has a material interest in, any person who is a party to a material contract or
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transaction or proposed material contract or transaction with the Fund, such Trustee or officer of the Fund or any of
its affiliates, as the case may be, shall disclose in writing to the Trustees or request to have entered in the minutes of
meetings of the Trustees the nature and extent of such interest. Except in certain specified circumstances, a Trustee
who is.a party to or so interested in such a material contract or transaction will be precluded from voting on such a
material contract or transaction but the presence of such Trustee at the relevant meeting shall be counted towards
any quorum requirement. These provisions in the Declaration of Trust are intended to be equivalent to the provisions
of the CBCA applicable to directors and officers of a corporation.

Rights of Unithoelders

The rights of the Unitholders are established by the Declaration of Trust. Although the Declaration of Trust confers
upon a Unitholder many of the same protections, rights and remedies as an investor would have as a shareholder of a
corporation governed by the CBCA, there do exist significant differences. The Declaration of Trust includes
provisions intended to limit the liability of Unitholders for liabilities and other obligations of the Fund, although no
statutory provisions historically confirmed the limited liability status of Unitholders in a manner comparable to
shareholders of a CBCA corporation. However, on December 16, 2004, the Trust Beneficiaries' Liability Act, 2004
received Royal Assent. That statute provides that Unitholders of the Fund are not liable, as beneficiaries of a trust,
“for any act, default, obligation or liability of the Fund or the Trustees, arising after December 16, 2004. That statute
has not yet been judicially considered and it is possible that reliance on the statute by a Unitholder could be
successfully challenged on jurisdictional or other grounds.

Many of the provisions of the CBCA respecting the governance and management of a corporation have been
incorporated in the Declaration of Trust. For example, Unitholders are entitled to exercise voting rights in respect of
their holdings of Units in a manner comparable to shareholders of a CBCA corporation and to elect trustees and
auditors. The Declaration of Trust also includes provisions modeled after comparable provisions of the CBCA
dealing with the calling and holding of meetings of Unitholders and Trustees, the quorum for and procedures at such
meetings and the right of investors to participate in the decision-making process where certain fundamental actions
are proposed to be undertaken. The matters in respect of which Unitholder approval is required under the
Declaration of Trust are generally less extensive than the rights conferred on the shareholders of a CBCA
corporation, but effectively extend to certain fundamental actions that may be undertaken by the Fund's subsidiary
entities, as described under "ATS Andlauer Income Fund — Exercise of Certain Voting Rights Attached to
Securities of ATSOT, the GP and the Partnership".

These Unitholder approval rights are supplemented by provisions of applicable securities laws that are generally
applicable to issuers (whether corporations, trusts or other entities) that are "reporting issuers” or the equivalent or
listed on the TSX.

Unitholders do not have recourse to a dissent right under which shareholders of a CBCA corporation are entitled to
receive the fair value of their shares where certain fundamental changes affecting the corporation are undertaken
(such as an amalgamation, a continuance under the laws of another jurisdiction, the sale of all or substantially all of
its property, a going private transaction or the addition, change or removal of provisions restricting (i) the business
or businesses that the corporation can carry on, or (ii) the issue, transfer or ownership of shares). As an alternative,
Unitholders seeking to terminate their investment in the Fund are entitled to receive, subject to certain conditions
and limitations, their pro rata share of the Fund's net assets through the exercise of the redemption rights provided by
the Declaration of Trust, as described under "Redemption Right" above. Unitholders similarly do not have recourse
to the statutory oppression remedy that is available to shareholders of a CBCA corporation where the corporation
undertakes actions that are oppressive, unfairly prejudicial or disregarding the interests of securityholders and
certain other parties.

Shareholders of a CBCA corporation may also apply to a court to order the liquidation and dissolution of the
corporation in those circumstances, whereas Unitholders could rely only on the general provisions of the Declaration
of Trust that permit the winding up of the Fund with the approval of a Special Resolution of the Unitholders.
Shareholders of a CBCA corporation may also apply to a court for the appointment of an inspector to investigate the
manner in which the business of the corporation and its affiliates is being carried on where there is reason to believe
that fraudulent, dishonest or oppressive conduct has occurred. The Declaration of Trust allows Unitholders to pass
resolutions appointing an inspector to investigate the Trustees' performance of their responsibilities and duties, but
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this process would not be subject to.court oversight or assure the other investigative procedures, rights and remedies
available under the CBCA. The CBCA also permits shareholders to bring or intervene in derivative actions in the
name of the corporation or any of its subsidiaries, with the leave of a court. The Declaration of Trust does not

include a comparable right of the Unitholders to commence or participate in legal proceedings with respect to the
Fund.

ATS ANDLAUER OPERATING TRUST
1
The ATSOT Declaration of Trust contains provisions substantially similar to those of the Declaration of Trust. The
following is a summary, which does not purport to be complete, of certain provisions of the ATSOT Declaration of
Trust insofar as they differ from those of the Declaration of Trust. Reference is made to the ATSOT Declaration of
Trust for the full text of its provisions.

General

ATSOT is an unincorporated trust established under the laws of the Province of Ontario pursuant to the ATSOT
Declaration of Trust. The operations and activities of ATSOT are restricted to, among other things, acquiring,
investing in, transferring, disposing of and otherwise dealing with debt and equity securities of the GP, the
Partnership and other corporations, partnerships, trusts or other persons involved, directly or indirectly, in the
distribution and freight transportation and transportation solutions business, and all businesses and activities
ancillary or incidental thereto and such other investments as the trustees of ATSOT may determine. The fiscal year
end of ATSOT is December 31. ' o

Trustees of ATSOT

ATSOT must havé a minimum of three trustees and a maximum of seven trustees. A majority of the trustees of
ATSOT must be residents of Canada within the meaning of the Tax Act. The trustees of ATSOT supervise the
activities and manage the affairs of ATSOT. The trustees of ATSOT are the persons who serve as the Trustees. No
person other than the Fund, as the holder of all of the outstanding ATSOT Units, has the right to appoint any trustees
of ATSOT. See "Trustees, Directors and Officers”.

The ATSOT Declaration of Trust provides that, subject to the terms and conditions thereof; the trustees of ATSOT
have full, absolute and exclusive power, control and authority over the assets of ATSOT and over the affairs of
ATSOT to the same extent as if the trustees of ATSOT were the sole and absolute beneficial owners of the assets of
ATSOT, and may, in respect of such assets, exercise any and all rights, powers and privileges that could be
exercised by a legal and beneficial owner thereof. Subject to such terms and conditions, the trustees of ATSOT are
responsible for, among other things: (i) acting for, voting on behalf of and representing ATSOT as a holder of LP
Units and a holder of GP Common Shares; (ii) maintaining records and providing reports to the ATSOT
Unitholders; (iii) supervising the activities and managing the investments and affairs of ATSOT; and (iv) effecting
payments of distributable cash from ATSOT to the ATSOT Unitholders.

No additional remuneration is paid to the Trustees tor also serving as trustees of ATSOT.
Trust Units

An unlimited number of ATSOT Units may be issued pursuant to the ATSOT Declaration of Trust. The Fund holds
all of the issued and outstanding ATSOT Units. Each ATSOT Unit is transferable and represents an equal undivided
beneficial interest in any distributions from ATSOT whether of net income, net realized capital gains or other
amounts, and in the net assets of ATSOT in the event of termination or winding-up of ATSOT. All ATSOT Units
have equal rights and privileges. The ATSOT Units are not subject to future calls or assessments. Except as set out
below under "Redemption Right", the ATSOT Units have no conversion, retraction, redemption or pre-emptive
rights.
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Cash Distributions

ATSOT intends to make monthly cash distributions of its distributable cash to the extent determined prudent by the

“trustees of ATSOT. The amount of cash to be distributed monthly per ATSOT Unit to the ATSOT Unitholders will
be equal to a pro rata share of distributions on or in respect of Ordinary LP Units owned by ATSOT and all other
amounts, if any, from any other investments from time to time held by ATSOT received in such period, less
amounts which are paid, payable, incurred or provided for in such period in connection with:

(a) administrative expenses and other obligations of ATSOT;

) any interest expense incurred by ATSOT;

(c) principal repayments in respect of any debt obligations of ATSOT;
(d) " any cash .redemptions or repurchases of the ATSOT Units; and

(e) any amount that the trustees of ATSOT may reasonably consider to be necessary 'to provide for the
payment of any costs or expenses, including any tax liability of ATSOT, that have been or are reasonably
expected to be incurred in the activities and operations of ATSOT (to the extent that such costs or expenses
have not otherwise been taken into account in the calculation of the available distributable cash of
ATSOT).

Such distributions are payable to holders of record of ATSOT Units on the last business day of each month and are
paid within 15 days following each month end. The cash distributions payable by ATSOT are intended to be
received by the Fund before its related cash distribution to Unitholders. i

The distribution declared by the trustees of ATSOT in respect of the month ending December 31 in each year will
include such amount in respect of the taxable income and net realized capital gains, if any, of ATSOT for such year
as is necessary to ensure that ATSOT will hot be liable. for ordinary income taxes under the Tax Act in such year.

Any income of ATSOT that is unavailable for cash distribution will, to the extent necessary to ensure that ATSOT
does not have any income tax liability under Part [ of the Tax Act, be distributed to the ATSOT Unitholders in the
form of additional ATSOT Units. The value of each ATSOT Unit so issued will be equal to the redemption price
thereof. The ATSOT Declaration of Trust provides that immediately after any pro rata distribution of ATSOT Units
in satisfaction of any non-cash distribution, the number of outstanding ATSOT Units will be consolidated such that
each holder of ATSOT Units will hold after consolidation the same number of ATSOT Units as the holder held
before the non-cash distribution.

Unit Certificates

As ATSOT Units are not intended to be issued or held by any person other than the Fund, registration of interests in,
and transfers of, the ATSOT Units are not made through the book-entry only system. Rather, holders of ATSOT
Units are entitled to receive certificates therefor. ’

Redemption Right

The ATSOT Units are redeemable at any time on demand by the holders thereof upon delivery to ATSOT of a duly
completed and properly executed notice requiring ATSOT to redeem the ATSOT Units, in a form reasonably
acceptable to the trustees of ATSOT, together with the certificates for the ATSOT Units representing the ATSOT
Units to be redeemed and written instructions as to theé number of ATSOT Units to be redeemeéd. Upon tender of
ATSOT Units by a holder thereof for redemption, the holder of the ATSOT Units tendered for redemption will no
longer have any rights with respect to such ATSOT Units other than the right to receive the redemption price for
such ATSOT Units, as determined under the ATSOT Declaration of Trust. The redemption price for each ATSOT
Unit tendered for redemption will be equal to:
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Where
A = theredemption price per Unit calculated as of the close of business on the Redemption Date;
B = the aggregate number of Units outstanding as of the close of business on the Redemption Date;
C = the aggregate unpaid principal amount and accrued interest thereon of and any indebtedness of ATSOT

held by or owed to the Fund and the fair market value of any other assets or investments held by the Fund
(other than ATSOT Units) as of the close of business on the Redemption Date;

D = aggregate unpaid liabilities of the Fund (prior to any redemption of Units for such date) as of the close of
business on the Redemption Date; and

E = the aggregate number of Units outstanding held by the Fund as of the close of business on the Redemptlon
Date.

The trustees of ATSOT will also be entitled to call for redemption, at any time, all or part of the outstanding ATSOT
Units registered in the name of the holders thereof other than the Fund at the same redemption price per ATSOT
Unit applicable to redemptions on demand by holders of ATSOT Units, provided that the calculation of the
redemption price shall be made with reference to the date the trustees of ATSOT approved the redemption of
ATSOT Units.

The aggregate redemption price payable by ATSOT in respect of any ATSOT Units tendered for redemption by the
holders thereof during any month will be satisfied, at the option of the trustees of ATSOT, (i) in immediately
available funds by cheque; (ii) by the issuance to or to the order of the holder whose ATSOT Units are to be
redeemed of such aggregate amount of unsecured, subordinated promissory notes of ATSOT as is equal to the
aggregate redemption price payable to such holder of ATSOT Units; or (iii) by any combination of funds and
unsecured, subordinated promissory notes of ATSOT as the trustees of ATSOT shall determine in their discretion, in
each such case payable or issuable on the last day of the calendar month following the calendar month in which the
ATSOT Units were so tendered for redemption.

Restrictions on Trustees' Powers

The ATSOT Declaration of Trust provides that the trustees of ATSOT may not, without the approval of the holder
of ATSOT Units:

(a) subject to certain exceptions, appoint or change the auditors of ATSOT;

(b) - amend the ATSOT Declaration of Trust except in certain limited circumstances similar to those under
which the Declaration of Trust may be amended without consent of Voting Unitholders;

(c) sell, lease or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of ATSOT's assets, exchange all or substantially all
of the property of ATSOT other than in the ordmary course of business or in connection with an internal
reorganization;

(d) authorize he termination, liquidation or winding-up of ATSOT, other than at the end of the term of
ATSOT or in connection with an internal reorganization; or

(e) duthorize the combination, merger or similar transaction of ATSOT with any other person or other than in
connection with an internal reorganization.
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ATS ANDLAUER TRANSPORTATION SERVICES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

General

The Partnership is a limited partnership formed under the laws of Manitoba. The business of the Partnership is to
develop, acquire, make investments in and conduct the business and ownership, operation and lease of assets and
property in connection with, the freight transportation business, together with all activities ancillary or incidental
thereto and such other businesses and activities as the board of directors of the GP may determine. The following is
a summary of the material attributes and characteristics of the LP Units and certain provisions of the Limited
Partnership Agreement, which summary is not intended to be complete. Reference is made to the Limited
Partnership Agreement and the full text of its provisions for a complete description of the LP Units.

General Partner

The general partner of the Partnership is the GP. As general partner of the Partnership, the GP has been issued one
GP Unit for nominal consideration. The GP Unit entitles the holder thereof to one vote for each whole unit held at
all meetings of holders of partnership units and to an allocation of 0.001% of the income or loss of the Partnership
for each fiscal year. As general partner and holder of the GP Unit, the GP has the authority to manage the business
and affairs of the Partnership and has unlimited liability for the obligations of the Partnership. See "ATS Andlauer
Transportation Services GP Inc.".

LP Units

The Partnership is entitled to issue various classes of partnership interests, for such consideration and on such terms
and conditions as may be determined by the GP. The Partnership has issued and outstanding 9,324,200 Ordinary LP
Units (which are held by ATSOT) and 2316,442 Exchangeable LP Units (which are held by the Vendor). The
Partnership also has issued and outstanding one GP Unit (which is held by the GP). The Ordinary LP Units represent
an 80.1% interest in the Partnership and the Exchangeable LP Units represent a 19.9% interest in the Partnership.

The Ordinary LP Units and the Exchangeable LP Units entitle the holders thereof to one vote tor each whole unit
held at all meetings of holders of the LP Units and have economic rights that are equivalent in all material respects,
except that Exchangeable LP Units are exchangeable, directly or indirectly, on a one-for-one basis (subject to
customary anti-dilution protections) for Units at the option of the holder at any time. Additionally, Exchangeable LP
Units are accompanied by Special Voting Units that entitle the holder to receive notice of, attend and to vote at all
meetings of Voting Unitholders. See "Retained Interest and Exchange Rights — Exchange Rights". Distributions on
the LP Units are made proportionately to the holders of Ordinary LP Units and Exchangeable LP Units, such that
aggregate per unit distributions on the Ordinary LP Units and Exchangeable LP Units are the same.

Distributions

The Partnership has a policy to distribute its distributable cash to the extent determined prudent by the board of
directors of the GP, including a holdback equal to an amount between 10% -20% of its distributable cash.
Distributions are made on the Ordinary LP Units and the Exchangeable LP Units within 15 days of the end of each
month and are intended to be received by ATSOT before its related distributions to the Fund. Distributions are
pavable to the holders of LP Units of record on the last day of the period in respect of which the distribution is to be
paid. The Partnership may, in addition, make a distribution at any other time.

Distributable cash will represent, in general, all of the Partnership’'s EBITDA, after:

(a) satistaction of its debt service obligations (principal and interest) under credit facilities or other agreements
with third parties, including amounts payable under the Credit Facility;

(b) paying awards under the LTIP or other incentives to Management and other personnel;
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(c) retaining reasonable working capital reserves, sustaining capital expenditure reserves, renewal reserves,
upgrade and renovation reserves or other reserves, including reserves to stabilize distributions to the
partners, as may be considered appropriate by the GP; and

(d) expenditures in excess of reserves. L

Capital and other expenses, including amounts required to enable the Partnership to pay equal monthly distributions
based on anticipated future distributable cash, may be financed with drawings under one or more credit facilities that
may be established by the Partnership.

Distributions of distributable cash are made in the following order of priority:
(i) first, to the holder of GP Units, 0.001% of the Partnership's income;
(i1) thereafter, to the holders of Ordinary LP Units and Exchangeable LP Units on a pari passu basis.

Allocation of Net Income and Losses

The income or loss of the Partnership for each fiscal year is allocated to the GP-and to the remaining partners as to
0.001% and 99.999%, respectively. The income for tax purposes of the Partnership for a particular fiscal year is
allocated to each partner other than the GP by multiplying the total income allocated to such partners by a fraction,
the numerator of which is the total sum of the cash distributions received by that partner with respect to that fiscal
year and the denominator of which is the total amount of the cash distributions made by the Partnership to all
partners (other than the GP) with respect to that fiscal year. The-amount of income allocated to .a partner may exceed
or be less than the amount of cash distributed by the Partnership to that limited partner.

If, with respect to a given fiscal year, no cash distribution is made by the Partnership to its partners, or the
Partnership has a loss for tax purposes, one-twelfth of the income or loss, as the case may be, for tax purposes of the
Partnership for that fiscal year will be allocated to the GP and the remaining partners at the end of each month
‘ending in that fiscal year, as to 0.001% and 99.999%, respectively, and to each remaining partner in the proportion
that the number of LP Units held at each of those dates by that partner is of the total number of LP Units issued and
outstanding at each of those dates.

Income and loss of the Partnership for accounting purposes is allocated to each partner in the same proportion as
income or loss is allocated for tax purposes.

The fiscal year end of the Partnership is December 31.
Liquidation Entitlement

In the event of a dissolution of the Partnership, the GP will distribute the net proceeds from the liquidation of the
Partnership (after payment of'expenses and provision for adequate reserves) as follows:

(N first, to the holders of GP Units, 0.001% of the proceeds from the liquidation; and

(i) thereafter, to the holders of Ordinary LP Units and Exchangeable LP Units in accordance with the
aggregate number of Units of each class issued and outstanding.

Reimbursement of the GP

The Partnership reimburses the GP for all direct costs and expenses incurred in the performance of its duties under
the Limited Partnership Agreement.
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Limited Liability

The Partnership operates in a manner so as to ensure, to the greatest extent possible, the limited liability of the
limited partners. Limited partners may lose their limited liability in certain circumstances. The GP will indemnify
the limited partners against all claims arising from assertions that their respective liabilities are not limited as
intended by the Limited Partnership Agreement unless the Hability is not so limited as a result of or arising out of
any act of such limited partner. The GP has no significant assets or financial resources, however, and therefore the
tndemnity from the GP has nominal value.

Transfer of Partnership Units

LP Units are not transferable except in compliance with the Securityholders Agreement to the Fund or to members
of the Vendor Group. Further, LP Units may not be transferred to a person who is not resident in Canada for
purposes of the Tax Act. A LP Unit will not be transferable in part, and no transfer of a LP Unit will be accepted by
the GP unless a transfer form, duly completed and signed by the registered holder of the LP Unit, has been remitted
to the registrar and transfer agent of the GP. In addition, a transferee of a LP Unit must provide to the GP such other
instruments and documents as the GP may require in appropriate form completed and executed in a manner
acceptable to the GP and must pay the administration fee, if any, required by the GP. A transferee of a LP Unit will
not become a partner or be admitted to the Partnership and will not be subject to the obligations and entitled to the
rights of a partner under the Limited Partnership Agreement until the foregoing conditions are satisfied and such
transferee is recorded on the Partnership's register of partners. :

Amendments to the Limited Partnership Agreement

The Limited Partnership Agreement may only be amended with the consent of the holders of at least 66 2/3% of the
outstanding partnership units voted on the amendment at a duly constituted meeting or by a written resolution of
partners holding more than 66 2/3% of the outstanding partnership units entitled to vote at a duly constituted
meeting (a "Partnership Special Resolution'"). Notwithstanding the foregoing:

(a) no amendment will be permitted to be made to the Limited Partnership Agreement altering the ability of the
limited partners to remove the GP involuntarily, changing the liability of any limited partner, allowing any
limited partner to exercise control over the business of the Partnership, changing the right of a partner to
vote at any meeting, adversely affecting the rights, privileges or conditions attaching to any of the LP Units
or GP Units, reducing the percentage of income allocable to limited partners to below 99.999% or changing
the Partnership from a limited partnership to a general partnership, in each ase, without the unanimous
approval of the partners;

(b) no amendment can be made to the Limited Partnership Agreement that would adversely affect the rights
and obligations of any particular limited partner without similarly affecting the rights and obligations of all
other limited partners without the unanimous approval of the partners; and

(c) no amendment that would adversely affect the rights and obligations of the GP, as general partner, will be
permitted to be made without its consent.

The foregoing approval requirements are subject to additional restrictions on, or conditions to the approval of,
amendments to the Limited Partnership Agreement pursuant to the Declaration of Trust and the Securityholders
Agreement.

The GP may call meetings of partners and will be required to convene a meeting on receipt of a request in writing of
the holder(s) of not less than 10% of the outstanding partnership units, Each partner is entitled to one vote for each
partnership unit held. A quorum of a meeting of partners consists of one or more partners present in person or by

proxy.
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ATS ANDLAUER TRANSPORTATION SERVICES GP INC.

General

The GP is.a corporation incorporated under the CBCA to act as the general partner of the Partnership.
Capital of the GP

The authorized share capital of the GP consists of an unfimited number of GP Common Shares. The Fund indirectly
through ATSOT owns 100% of the outstanding GP Common Shares. ATSOT acquired its GP Common Shares from
the GP for nominal consideration. Each GP Common Share entitles the holder thereof to receive notice of and to
attend all meetings of shareholders of the GP and to one vote per share at such meetings {other than meetings of
another class of shares of the GP). The GP Common Shares entitle the holders thereof to receive in any year
dividends as and when declared by the board of directors on the GP Common Shares. In the event of a liquidation of
the GP, holders of the GP Common Shares, after payment of or other proper provision for all of the liabilities of the
GP, are entitled to share rateably in all remaining assets of the GP. The articles and by laws of the GP contain
standard restrictions, which restrict all shareholders from transferring their GP Common Shares without the consent
of the directors or shareholders of the GP.

Functions and Powers of the GP

The GP has the authority to manage the business and affairs of the Partnership, to make all decisions regarding the
business of the Partnership and- to bind the Partnership in respect of any such decision. The GP is required to
exercise its powers and discharge its duties honestly, in good faith and in the best interests of the Partnership and to
exercise the care, diligence and skill of a reasonably prudent person in comparable circumstances.

The authority and power vested in the GP to manage the business and affairs of the Partnership includes all authority
necessary or incidental to carry out the objects, purposes and business of the Partnership, including the ability to
engage agents to assist the GP to carry out its management obligations and administrative functions in respect of the
Partnership and its business. -

Restrictions on Authority of the GP

The authority of the GP is limited in certain respects under the Limited Partnership Agreement. The GP is
prohibited, without the prior approval of the other partners given by a Partnership Special Resolution, from
dissolving the Partnership or selling, exchanging or otherwise disposing of all or substantially all of the assets of the
Partnership (otherwise than in conjunction with an internal reorganization that has been approved by the Fund).

" Withdrawal or Removal of the GP

The GP is permitted to resign as general partner on not less than 180 days' prior written notice to the partners,
provided that the GP may not resign if the effect thereof would be to dissolve the Partnership. The GP may be
removed as general partner of the Partnership, without its consent, if: (i) the shareholders or directors of the GP pass
a resolution in connection with the bankruptcy, dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the GP, or the GP commits
certain other acts of bankruptcy or ceases to be a subsisting corporation, provided that certain other conditions are
satisfied, including a requirement that a successor general partner agrees to act as general partner under the Limited
Partnership Agreement; or (ii) a Partnership Special Resolution has been passed and a successor general partner has
agreed to act as general partner under the Limited Partnership Agreement.

RISK FACTORS
The following is a summary of certain risk factors relating to the affairs of the Fund and the business of the

Partnership. The following information is a summary only of certain risk factors and is qualified in its entirety by
reference to, and must be read in conjunction with, the detailed information appearing elsewhere in this annual
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information form and the documents incorporated by reference herein (if any). Unitholders and potential
Unitholders should consider caretully the information contained herein and, in particular, the following risk factors.

These risks and uncertainties are not the only ones facing the Fund and the Partnership. Additional risks and
uncertainties not currently known to the Fund or the Partnership, or that the Fund or the Partnership currently
consider immaterial, may also impair the operations of the Fund or the Partnership. If any such risks actually occur,
the business, financial condition, or liquidity and results of operations of the Partnership, and the ability of the Fund
to make distributions on the Units, could be materially adversely affected.

Risks Relating to the Partnership and its Business

General Economic Conditions

The price of fuel, equipment, and other input costs, insurance costs, interest rates, fluctuations in customers' business
cycles and national and regional economic conditions are economic factors over which the Partnership bhas little or
no control. Demand for transportation services is closely linked to the state of the overall economy. Consequently, a
decline in general economic growth may adversely impact the Partnership's performance. In addition, significant
increases in fuel prices, equipment prices, other input prices, interest rates or insurance costs, to the extent not offset
by increases in transportation rates or contractual surcharges, or disruptions in fuel supply, would reduce
profitability and could adversely affect the Partnership's ability to service its debts or maintain distributions, There
can be no assurance of the Partnership's ability to pass on fuel or other cost increases in the future and, in such event,
cash distributions may be reduced. The Partnership cannot predict the impact of future economic conditions and
there is no assurance that the operations of the Partnership will continue to be profitable.

Competition

The Partnership faces competition from a variety of national and regional competitors. Many of these competitors
have strong financial, marketing and other resources. There can be no assurance that the Partnership will be able to
compete successfully against its current or future competitors or that competition will not have a material adverse
effect on the Partnership's results of operations and financial condition, and on the amount of cash available for
distribution to Unitholders.

Reliance on Major Customers; Contract Renewals

The Partnership's top five customers accounted for approximately 26.78% of the Partnership's revenue for the year
ended December 31, 2005, and the largest customer accounted for approximately 6.98% of such revenue (see
"Description of the Business — Business Strengths - Diversified and Long-Term Customer Relationships"). Although
a significant percentage of the Partnership's customers are under contract, most of those contracts can be terminated
on short notice. In addition, most of the Partnership's customer contracts are subject to renewal annually. There can
be no assurance that the Partnership's current customers will continue their relationships with the Partnership or that
contracts that come up for renewal will be renewed or, if they are renewed, that customers will contract for the same
volume amounts to be transported or that they will pay the same rates and surcharges as they have in the past. The
- loss of one or more major customers, the failure to renew customer contracts, or-any decrease in transportatien
volumes purchased or prices paid or any other changes to the terms of service under renewed contracts could have a
material adverse effect on the Partnership's profitability and, as a result, the amount of cash available for distribution
to Unitholders. A significant portion of the Partnership's customer contracts, including contract renewals, are subject
to competitive tender processes, and there can be no assurance that the Partnership will be successful in acquiring
new business or retaining existing business subject to competitive tender.

Dependence on Personnel

The success of the Partnership has been largely dependent on the skills and expertise of its management personnel,
particularly Michael Andlauer, the President and Chief Executive Officer of the GP. The continued success of the
Partnership will be dependent upon its ability to retain the services of such personnel and recruit and retain other key
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employees for its business. Currently, the Partnership does not carry "key man" insurance that would compensate it
for the loss of any of its senior executives.

The failure to attract and retain a sufficient number of qualified drivers and owner-operators could also have a
material adverse effect on the profitability of the Partnership. Any shortage of qualified drivers and/or owner
operators may result in the inability of the Partnership to accept new customers or the inability of the Partnership to
meet existing customer obligations. It would also be expected to result in an escalation of compensation levels for
drivers/owner-operators and other hourly paid employees, which the Partnership may not be successful in offsetting
through transportation rate increases. Any of the foregoing could result in a material adverse affect on the
Partnership resulting in a reduction in cash available for distribution to Unitholders.

Labour Relations

The success of the Partnership's business depends on a large number of employees and independent contractors.
Although none of the Partnership's employees are currently unionized, any organized work stoppage or other similar
job action may have a material adverse effect on the Partnership's business, tinancial condition, liquidity and results
of operations. In addition, there can be no assurance that some or all-of the employees of the Partnership will not
unionize in the future. Such an occurrence could increase labour costs and thereby have a material adverse effect on
the Partnership's business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations.

Insurance

The Partnership's operations - are subject to risks normally inherent in the transportation industry, including potential
liability, which could result from, among other circumstances, personal injury or property damage arising from
.motor vehicle accidents. The availability of, and ability to collect on, insurance coverage for these types of liabilities
is subject to factors beyond the control of the Partnership. In addition, the Partnership may become subject to
liability hazards in circumstances where it cannot or may elect not to insure (because of high premium costs or other
reasons), or for occurrences that exceed maximum coverage under its policies. The Partnership has no control over
changing conditions and pricing in the insurance marketplace and the cost or availability of various types of
insurance may change in the future. To the extent that any future increase in costs cannot be passed on to the
Partnership's customers in increased transportation rates, increases in insurance costs could reduce future
profitability and reduce cash available for distribution to Unitholders. Further, the inability to obtain insurance in the
future for certain types of losses may require the Partnership to limit the services it provides or the areas in which it
operates thereby reducing the revenues of the Partnership and potentially reducing the cash available for
distribution. Lastly, the occurrence of a significant uninsured loss could have a material adverse effect upon the
Partnership and reduce cash available for distribution to Unitholders.

Information Technology

The Partnership has made significant investments in information technology and relies on its information systems-to
support its business model. In the event that irreparable damage was caused to the Partnership's information systems
and databases or the information contained in its information systems was lost, the Partnership's operational ability
would be impaired and its ability to provide service to its customers compromised. In such event, the Partnership's
financial condition, results of operation, and the amount of cash available for distribution to Unitholders could be
materially adversely affected.

Use of Third Party T ransportaiian Providers

As an air freight forwarder, the Partnership purchases air cargo capacity from aircraft operators. Changes in the
availability or price for air cargo could have a material adverse effect on the Partnership's operations and financial
condition thereby reducing cash available for distribution to Unitholders.

The Partnership routinely purchases linehaul services from truckload carriers. Changes in the availability or price of
such services could have a material adverse effect on the Partnership's operations and financial condition thereby
reducing cash available for distribution to Unitholders.
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Litigation

The Partnership is currently involved in certain legal proceedings and although Management does not believe that an
adverse decision in any such proceedings would have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the
Partnership, the outcome of litigation cannot be predicted with certainty.

A significant judgment against the Partnership, or the imposition of a significant fine or penalty, as a result of a
finding that the Partnership has failed to comply with laws or regulations could have a material adverse effect on the
Partnership and the amount of cash available for distribution to Unitholders.

Weather

Harsh weather conditions can impede the transportation of goods and increase operating costs or reduce customers'
or their consignees' requirements for goods, which can have a material adverse effect on the Partnership's cash flow
and, as a result, cash available for distribution to Unitholders. In addition, unusual weather patterns, including
extended periods of precipitation or lack of precipitation can have a similar adverse impact.

Regulation

Notwithstanding that the transportation industry is largely deregulated in terms of entry into the industry, each
carrier must obtain a license from or register with provincial regulatory authorities in order to carry goods extra-
-provincially or to transport goods within any province. Regulation of the operations of transportation companies has
become more stringent over time ad is expected to continue to do so going forward. Changes in regulations
applicable to the Partnership could increase operating costs and have a material adverse effect on the Partnership's
operations and financial condition thereby reducing cash available for distribution to Unitholders.

The right to continue to hold applicable licenses and permits is generally subject to maintaining satisfactory
compliance with regulatory and safety guidelines, policies and regulations. Although the Partnership is committed to
compliance and safety, there is no assurance that the Partnership will be in full compliance at all times with such
guidelines, policies and regulations. Consequently, at some future time, the Partnership could be required to incur
significant costs to maintain or improve its compliance record.

Environmental Considerations

The Partnership and its operations and properties are subject to extensive federal, provincial, municipal and local
environmental laws and requirements relating’ to, among other things, air emissions, the management of
contaminants including hazardous materials (including the generation, handling, storage, transportation and disposal
of such contaminants), discharges and the remediation of environmental impacts (such as the contamination of soil
and water, including ground water). See "Description of the Business— Environmental".

The risk of environmental liability is inherent in transportation operations, historic activities associated with such
operations and the ownership, management or control of real estate. Canadian laws generally impose potential
liability on the present or former owners-or occupants of properties on which contamination has occurred. Although
Management is not aware of any contamination which, if remediation "or clean-up were required, would have a
material adverse effect on the Partnership, there can be no assurance that the Partnership will not be required, at
some future date, to incur significant costs to comply with environmental laws, or that its operations, business, assets
or cash flow will not be materially adversely affected by current or future environmental laws.

Potential Unknown Liabilities

In connection with the Acquisition, there may have been unknown liabilities assumed by the Partnership, including
those associated with prior acquisitions and dispositions by the Vendor as well as environmental issues, for which
the Partnership may not be indemnified pursuant to the indemnities provided under the Acquisition Agreement. In
particular, to the extent that the Vendor, as the previous owner of the Business, failed to comply with or otherwise
violated applicable laws, including environmental or health and safety laws, the Partnership may be legally and



39

financially responsible for these violations. The discovery of any material liabilities could have a material adverse
effect on the financial condition and results of operations of the Partnership and, as a result, the amount of cash
available for distribution to Unitholders. The Vendor has provided certain representations and warranties to the
Partnership under the Acquisition Agreement and has agreed. to indemnify the Partnership for breaches -of
representation and warranties. However, as the Vendor may have limited assets and financial resources, other than
its interest in the Partnership, this indemnity may have nominal value.

Capital Expenditures

The timing and amount of capital expenditures made by the Partnership will directly affect the amount of cash
available for distribution to Unitholders. In the event that the Partnership's capital costs escalate, there is no
assurance that the Partnership will be able to recover such increased costs through rate increases to its customers,
and in such event, cash available for distribution to Unitholders may be reduced.

Leverage and Restrictive Covenants

The ability of the Fund and the Partnership to make distributions or make other payments or advances will be
subject to applicable laws and contractual restrictions in the instruments governing any indebtedness of those entities
(including the Credit Facility). The degree to which the Partnership is leveraged could have important consequences
for Unitholders including: (i) the Partnership's ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital
expenditures or acquisitions in the future may be limited; (i1) all or part of the Partnership's cash flow from
operations may be dedicated to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Partnership's indebtedness,
thereby reducing funds available for future operations or for distribution to Unitholders; (iii) certain of the
Partnership's borrowings will be at variable rates of interest, which exposes the Partnership to the risk of increased
interest rates; and (iv) the Partnership may be more vulnerable to economic downturns and be limited in its ability to
withstand competitive pressures. These factors.may adversely impact the Partnership's cash flow and, as a result, the
amount of cash available for distribution to Unitholders.

Interest expense is estimated for the purpose of estimating distributable cash of the Fund based on current market
conditions that are subject to fluctuations. Such fluctuations could result in an unanticipated material increase in
interest rates that could in turn have a material adverse effect on cash available for distribution to Unitholders.

The Credit Facility contains numerous restrictive covenants that limit the discretion of Management with respect to
certain business matters. These covenants place significant restrictions on, among other things, the ability of the
Partnership to create liens or other encumbrances, to pay distributions or make certain other payments, investments,
loans and guarantees and to sell or otherwise dispose of assets and merge or consolidate with another entity. In
addition, the Credit Facility contains a number of financial covenants that require the Partnership to meet certain
financial ratios and financial condition tests. A failure to comply with the obligations in the Credit Facility could
result in a default, which, if not cured or waived, could result in a termination.of distributions by the Partnership and
permit acceleration of the relevant indebtedness. If the indebtedness under the Credit Facility were to be accelerated,
there can be no assurance that the assets of the Partnership would be sufficient to repay in full that indebtedness.

Any failure of the Partnership to repay or refinance any or all of the Credit Facility at its maturity date on acceptable
terms or to comply with applicable covenants under its credit facilities could have a material adverse effect on the
Partnership and its cash flow and, as a result, the amount of cash available for distribution to Unitholders and the
value of the Units. There is no assurance that the Partnership will be able to refinance any or all of the Credit
Facility at its maturity date on acceptable terms, or on any basis.

Availability of Future Financing

The Partnership's principal sources of funds are cash generated from its operating activities and borrowing capacity
under the Credit Facility. Management believes that funds from these sources will provide the Partnership with
sufficient liquidity and capital resources to meet its current and future financial obligations at existing business
levels. Despite Management's expectations, however, the Partnership may require additional equity or debt financing
to meet its financing requirements. There can be no assurance that this financing will be available when required or
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available on commercially favourable terms or on terms that are otherwise satisfactory to the Partnership, in which
event the financial condition of the Partnership may be materially adversely effected and the amount of cash
available for distribution to Unitholders may be reduced.

Ability to Sustain and Manage Growth

The Partnership may not be able to carry out its strategy, which includes the possible acquisition of other
transportation companies, which depends in part on the availability of suitable candidates at valuations accretive to
the Partnership and the availability of required financing. In addition, the Partnership may face competition for
acquisitions from other participants in the transportation industry and from financial buyers with greater financial
resources. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that, if the Partnership acquires what it considers to be a suitable
candidate in accordance with its growth strategy, the Partnership will be able to successfully integrate the operations
of the acquired company into the Partnership's operations on an accretive basis.

Absence of Operating History as a Public Company

Although Management has substantial experience in the freight transportation industry; it has limited experience
operating the Partnership as a public entity. To operate effectively, the Partnership will be required to continue to
implement changes in certain aspects of its business, improve and expand its management information systems and
develop, manage and train management level and other employees to comply with on-going public company
requirements. Failure to take such actions, or delay in the implementation thereof, could adversely affect the
Partnership's business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations.

Dependence on External Funding Sources

The Partnership, like other public transportation companies, relies significantly on external funding sources to
finance its operations and growth.-Management currently believes that the Partnership's cash flow from operations
and funds available under the Credit Facility will satisfy the Partnership's capital requirements for the next 12
months. The Partnership's ability to obtain additional financing will be dependent upon its future operating
performance, general economic and competitive conditions and financial, business and other factors, many of which
are beyond the Partnership's control.

Risks Relating to the Structure of the Fund

Dependence on ATSOT and the Partnership

Cash distributions to Unitholders-will be entirely dependent on the ability of ATSOT to make distributions on the
- ATSOT Units. Payments by ATSOT will depend, in turn, on the ability of the Partnership to satisfy its debt service -
obligations under the Credit Facility and the Partnership's ability to pay distributions on the Ordinary LP Units.

Distributions to Unitholders will be entirely dependent on the ability of the Partnership to pay its operating expenses

and to pay distributions. The sole source of cash flow of the Partnership is the operation of the Business. In the

conduct of the Business, the Partnership pays expenses and incurs debt and other obligations to third parties. These
“expenses, debts and obligations could impact the Partnership's ability to produce positive operating results.

The Partnership is entirely dependent upon its tusiness operations to pay distributions to ATSOT, and the
Partnership's ability to do so is subject to the risks encountered by the Partnership in the operation of its-business,
including the risks relating to the Canadian freight transportation industry referred to above, and the results of
operations and financial condition of the Partnership.

Unpredictability and Volatility of Unit Price
A publicly traded income trust will not necessarily trade at values determined by reference to the underlying value

of its business. The prices at which the Units will trade cannot be predicted. The market price of the Units could be
subject to significant fluctuations in response to variations in quarterly operating results and other factors. The
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annual yield on the Units as compared to the annual yield on other financial instruments may also influence the price
of Units in the public trading markets. An increase in market interest rates will result in higher yield on other
financial instruments, which could adversely affect the market price of the Units.

In addition, the securities markets have experienced significant market wide and sectoral price and volume
fluctuations from time to time that often have been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of
particular issuers. Such fluctuations may adversely affect the market price of the Units.

Nature of Units

The Units are hybrid securities in that they share certain attributes common to both equity securities and debt
instruments. The Units do not represent a direct investment in ATSOT or the Partnership and should not be viewed
as securities. of ATSOT or the Partnership. As holders of Units, Unitholders do not have the statutory rights
normally associated with ownership of shares of a corporation including, for example, the right to bring "oppression”
or "derivative" actions. In addition, the benefit of certain statutes applicable to corporations, such as the Companies’
Creditors Arrangement Act (Canada), the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada) and, in some cases, the Winding
Up and Restructuring Act (Canada), may not be applicable to the Fund. The Units represent a fractional interest in
the Fund. The Fund's only assets are the ATSOT Units. The price per Unit is a function of anticipated distributable
cash of the Fund.

The Units are not ""deposits’" within the meaning of the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation Act (Canada)
and are not insured under the provisions of that Act or any other legislation. Furthermore, the Fund is not a
trust company and, xcordingly, is not registered under any trust and loan company legislation as it does not
carry on or intend to carry on the business of a trust company. In addition, although the Fund qualifies as a
"mutual fund trust'" as defined by the Tax Act, the Fund is not a "mutual fund" as defined by applicable
securities legislation. . o

Cash Distributions

Although the Fund intends to distribute the cash it receives, less expenses and amounts, if any, paid by the Fund in
connection with the redemption of Units, there can be no assurance regarding the amounts of income to be generated
by the Partnership and ATSOT and paid to the Fund. The actual amounts of distributions paid by the Fund to the
- Unitholders will depend upon numerous factors, including profitability, debt covenants and obligations, the
availability and cost of acquisitions, fluctuations in working capital, the timing and amount of capital expenditures,
applicable law and other factors beyond the control of the Fund, ATSOT and the Partnership. Cash distributions are
not guaranteed and will fluctuate with the Partnership's performance. The Partnership and ATSOT have the
discretion to establish cash reserves for the proper conduct of their business. Adding to these reserves in any year
would reduce the amount of cash available for distribution by the Fund in that year. There can be no assurance as to
the levels of cash distributions to be paid by the Fund, if any. The market value of the Units may deteriorate if the
Fund is unable to meet its cash distribution targets in the future, and such deterioration may be material.

Cash-on-Cash Yield

Cash-on-cash yield is a useful and widely used supplemental measure that provides investors with information on
cash actually distributed relative to trading price. Investors are cautioned that cash-on-cash yield should not be
construed as an alternate to net income as.determined by GAAP. Investors are also cautioned that cash-on-cash
yield may represent a blend of return of investors' initial investment and a return on investors' initial
investment and is not comparable to traditional yield on debt instruments where investors are entitled to full
return of the principal amount of debt on maturity in addition to a return on investment through interest
payments,

Structural Subordination of the Units

In the event of a bankruptcy, liquidation or reorganization of the Partnership or any of the Fund's other subsidiaries,
holders of certain of their indebtedness and certain trade creditors will generally be entitled to payment of their
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claims from the assets of the Partnership and those subsidiaries before any assets are made available for distribution
to the Fund. The Units are effectively subordinated to most of the indebtedness and other liabilities of the
Partnership and the Fund's other subsidiaries. Neither the Partnership nor any of the Fund's other subsidiaries are
limited in its ability to incur secured or unsecured indebtedness.

Leverage and Restrictive Covenants

The Partnership has third party debt service obligations under the Credit Facility and any replacement or other credit
facilities. See "Material Contracts' — Credit Facility". The degree to which the Partnership is leveraged could have
important consequences to the holders of the Units, including: (i) a portion of the Partnership's cash flow from
operations will be dedicated to the payment of the principal of and interest on its indebtedness, thereby reducing
funds available for distribution to the Fund; (ii) certain of the Partnership's borrowings will be at variable rates of
interest, which exposes the Partnership to the risk of increased interest rates. The Partnership's ability to make
scheduled payments of principal and interest on, or to refinance, its indebtedness will depend on its future operating
performance and cash flow, which are subject to prevailing economic conditions, prevailing interest rate levels, and
financial, competitive, business and other factors, many of which are beyond its control.

The Credit Facility contains certain customary operating covenants that limit the discretion of Management with
respect to certain business matters. These covenants place restrictions on, among other things, the ability of the
Partnership to incur additional indebtedness, to create liens or other encumbrances, to pay distributions or make
certain other payments, investments, loans and guarantees and to sell or otherwise dispose of assets and merge or
consolidate with another entity. A failure to comply with the obligations in the agreements in respect of the Credit
Facility could result in an event of default which, if not cured or waived, could permit acceleration of the relevant
indebtedness. If the indebtedness under the Credit Facility were to be accelerated, there can be no assurance that the
Partnership's assets would be sufficient to repay in full that indebtedness.

The Partnership may need to refinance its available credit facilities or other debt and there can be no assurance that
the Partnership will be able to do so or be able to do so on terms as favourable as those currently in place. If the
Partnership is unable to refinance these credit facilities or other debt, or is only able to refinance these credit
facilities or other debt on less favourable and/or more restrictive terms, this may have a material adverse effect on
the Partnership's financial position, which may result in a reduction or suspension of cash distributions to
Unitholders. In addition, the terms of any new credit facility or debt may be less favourable or more restrictive that
the terms of the existing credit facilities or other debt, which may indirectly limit-or negatively impact the ability of
the Fund to pay cash distributions.

Restrictions on Potential Growth

The payout by the Partnership of substantially all of its operating cash flow will make additional capital and
operating expenditures dependent on increased cash flow or additional financing in the future. Lack of those funds
could limit the future growth of the Partnership and its cash flow.

Tax Related Risks

The income of the Partnership, ATSOT and the Fund must be computed and will be taxed in accordance with
Canadian tax laws, all of which may be changed in a manner that could-adversely affect the amount of distributable
cash. There can be no assurance that Canadian income tax laws respecting the treatment of mutual fund trusts will
not be changed in a manner that adversely affects the holders of Units. The Declaration of Trust provides that an
amount equal to the taxable income of the Fund will be distributed each year to Unitholders in order to eliminate the
Fund's taxable income and provides that additional Units may be distributed to Unitholders in lieu of cash
distributions. Unitholders will generally be required to include an amount equal to the fair market value of those
Units in their taxable income, in circumstances when they do not directly receive a cash distribution.

If the Fund ceases to qualify as a "mutual fund trust” under the Tax Act, the Units will cease to be qualified
investments for. Exempt Plans. The Fund will endeavour to ensure that the Units continue to be qualified
investments for Exempt Plans. The Tax Act imposes penalties for the acquisition or holding of non-qualified
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investments in such plans and there is no assurance that the conditions prescribed forsuch qualified investments will
be adhered to at any particular time. .

Finally, if the Fund ceases to qualify as mutual fund trust for purposes of the Tax Act, the Fund may be required to
pay tax under Part XI1.2 of the Tax Act. The payment of Part XI[.2 tax by the Fund will affect the amount of cash
available for distribution by the Fund and may have adverse consequences for Unitholders.

On September 16, 2004, the Minister of Finance (Canada) released draft amendments to the Tax Act that, if adopted,
may cause the Fund to lose its status as a mutual fund trust in certain circumstances. Currently, a trust will not be
considered to be a mutual fund trust it it is established or maintained primarily for the benefit of Non-residents
unless all or substantially all of its property is property other than "taxable Canadian property" as defined in the Tax
Act. The Fund has adopted mechanisms to ensure that the Fund is not maintained primarily for the benefit of Non-
residents. These draft amendments to the Tax Act provide that a trust would lose its status as a mutual fund trust if
the aggregate fair market value of all units issued by the trust held by ‘one or more Non-residents or Non-Canadian
Partnerships (as defined herein) is'more than 50% of the aggregate fair market value of all the units issued by a trust
where more than 10% (based on fair market value) of the trust's property is taxable Canadian property or certain
other types of property. If the draft amendments are enacted as proposed, and if, at any time, more than 50% of the
aggregate fair market value of Units of the Fund were held by Non-residents and Non-Canadian Partnerships, the
Fund would thereafter cease to be a mutual fund trust. The dratt amendments do not currently provide any means of
rectifying a loss of mutual fund trust status. On December 6, 2004, the Minister of Finance (Canada) tabled a Notice

. of Ways and Means Motion to implement certain measures proposed in September ‘16, 2004 draft amendments.
However, such Notice did not include the above-mentioned proposal concerning mutual funds maintained primarily
for the benefit of Non-residents. In addition, the Minister of Finance (Canada) announced on December 6, 2004 and
in the 2005 Federal Budget that further discussions will be pursued with the private sector in this respect. On
September 8, 2005, the Department of Finance (Canada) released a consultation paper on tax-and other issues related
to publicly listed flow-through entities such as income trusts and limited partnerships and invited interested parties
to make submissions prior to December 31, 2005. In addition, on September 19, 2005, the Minister of Finance
(Canada) announced that he had requested that the Canada Revenue Agency (the "CRA") postpone providing
advance income tax rulings respecting flow-through entity structures effective immediately, that the Department of
Finance (Canada) was closely monitoring developments in the flow-through entity market with a view to proposing
measures in relation to the consultations and that consideration would be given to what, if any, transitional measures
were appropriate. On November 23, 2005, the Minister of Finance (Canada) announced the end of this consultation
process and no legislative amendments were proposed to change the taxation of income trusts. Instead, the Minister
of Finance (Canada) has tabled a Notice of Ways and Means Motion that will enhance the dividend gross-up and tax
credit mechanism applicable to dividends paid by certain corporations after 2005, In addition, the CRA resumed
providing advance income tax rulings in respect of flow-through entity structures. Trusts governed by registered
pension plans, pension corporations and other "designated taxpayers" (but not trusts governed by Exempt Plans) may
be subject to penalty taxes in respect of the holding of Units under the proposed amendments to the Tax Act
announced in March 2004, However, in May 2004, the Minister of Finance (Canada) announced that the
implementation of these proposals is suspended pending further consultation with interested parties, following
which further legislative proposals will be announced. This was reiterated by the Minister of Finance (Canada) in
September 2004 and in the 2005 Federal Budget. Such investors should consult their own tax advisors before
purchasing Units.

Future Sales of Units by the Vendor

The Vendor holds approximately 19.9% of the outstanding Units (assuming the exchange for Units of all of the
Exchangeable LP Units). If the Vendor sells a substantial number of its Units in the public market, the market price
of the Units could fall. The perception among the public that such sales may occur could also result in a reduction in
the market price of the Units.

Ability to Recover from Vendor for Breaches of Acquisition Agreement

The Vendor has provided certain representations and warranties regarding the Business and certain other matters.
Following the completion of the transfer of the Business to the Partnership, the Vendor had sold a large portion of its
assets and may distribute all or a substantial portion of the proceeds that it received from such sale to its



shareholders. In the event.that the Partnership or the Fund suffers any loss as a result of a breach of the
representations and warranties or any other term of the Acquisition Agreement by the Vendor, the Partnership may
not be able to recover the amount of its entire loss from the Vendor. The Vendor may not have sufficient property to
satisfy the Partnership's or the Fund's loss.

Conflicts of Interest

Certain directors of the GP are associated with other companies or entities, which may give rise to conflicts of
interest. -In accordance with the CBCA, directors who have a material interest in any person who is a party to a
material contract or proposed material contract with the GP are required, subject to.certain exceptions, to disclose
that interest and abstain from voting on any resolution to approve that contract. In addition, the directors are required
to act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of the GP. See "Contlicts of Interest” and "Interests
of Management and Others in Material Transactions'.

Unitholder Limited Liability

The Declaration of Trust provides that no Unitholder, in its capacity as such, shall incur or be subject to any liability
in contract or in tort in connection with the Fund or its obligations or affairs and, in the event that a court determines
Unitholders are subject to any such liabilities, the liabilities will be enforceable only against, and will be satisfied
only out of the Fund's assets. Pursuant to the Declaration of Trust, the Fund will indemnify and hold harmless each
Unitholder from any cost, damages, liabilities, expenses, charges or losses suffered by a Unitholder from or arising
as a result of such Unitholder not having such limited liability. The Declaration of Trust provides that all contracts
signed by or on behalf of the Fund must contain a provision to the effect that such obligation will not be binding
upon Unitholders personally. Unitholders will also have the benefit of the Trust Beneficiaries' Liability Act
{Ontario), which came into force in December 2004. However, the effect of the Trust Beneficiaries’ Liability Act
(Ontario) has not been considered by any courts to date and there remains a risk, which is considered by the Fund to
‘be remote in the circumstances, that a Unitholder could be held personally liable despite such statements in the
Declaration of Trust, for the obligations of the Fund to the extent that contractual, tax, statutory or tort claims are not
satisfied out of the assets of the Fund. .

Under limited partnership legislation, a limited partner taking part in the management of a limited partnership is
potentially responsible for partnership liabilities as a general partner. The investment of the Fund in the Partnership
is held through ATSOT and accordingly, the possibility of any such liability attaching to Unitholders is remote.

Distribution of Securities on Redemprtion or Termination of the Fund

“Upon a redemption of Units or termination of the Fund, the Trustees may distribute Redemption Notes directly to
Unitholders, subject to obtaining all required regulatory approvals. There is currently no market for the Redemption
Notes that may be issued. In addition, any Redemption Notes that may be issued ae not expected to be freely
tradable and are not expected to be listed on any stock exchange. See "ATS Andlauer Income Fund — Redemption
Right". Redemption Notes so distributed may not be qualified investments for trusts governed by Exempt Plans,
depending upon the circumstances at the time.

The Fund May Issue Additional Units Diluting Existing Unitholders' Interests

The Declaration of Trust authorizes the Fund to issue an unlimited number of Units and Special Voting Units for
such consideration and on such terms and conditions as shall be established by the Trustees without the approval of
Unitholders. Additional Units will be issued by the Fund upon the exchange of the Exchangeable LP Units. Any
further issuance of Units will dilute the interests of existing Unitholders. The Unitholders will have no pre-emptive
rights in connection with such future issuances.

Restrictions on Certain Unitholders and Liquidity of Units

The Declaration of Trust imposes various restrictions on Unitholders. Non-resident Unitholders are prohibited from
beneficially owning more than 49% of the Units (on a non-diluted and a fully diluted basis). These restrictions may
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limit (or inhibit the exercise of) the rights of certain persons, including non-residents of Canada and U.S. persons, to
acquire Units, to exercise their rights as Unitholders and to initiate and complete take-over bids in respect of the
Units. As a result, these restrictions may limit the demand for Units from certain Unitholders and thereby adversely
affect the liquidity and market value of the Units held by the public.

DISTRIBUTIONS

Distribution Record

The following table sets forth the per Unit amount of monthly cash distributions paid by the Fund since the
completion of the Acquisition.

Distribution per Unit‘"

2005
October $0.085
November $0.081
December $0.4153%
2006
January $0.081
February $0.081
March $0.081%
Notes: - : :
(H Monthly information refers to the month in which the record date for.the relevant distribution occurs, with the
distribution being paid in the following month.
) The initial distribution for the period from September 30 to October 31, 2005, inclusive, was $0.085 per Unit.
3) Comprised of (i) the Fund's regular monthly cash distribution of $0.081 per Unit payable on January 13, 2006, and (ii)

a special cash distribution of $0.3343 per Unit payable on March 31, 2006. A special non-cash distribution payable in
Units with a value of $0.065 per Unit was also declared in December 2005 and is payable on March 31, 2006.

4 The Fund announced on January 19, 2006 that the next monthly distribution of distributable cash of $0.081 per Unit
will be paid on April 17, 2006 to Unitholders-of record on March 31, 2006.

Distribution Policy

The Fund currently makes monthly distributions of its available distributable cash to Unitholders to the extent
determined prudent by the Trustees. Monthly distributions are paid to Unitholders of record on the last business day
of each calendar month or such other date as may be determined from time to time by the Trustees and are paid
generally on the 15th day of the following month. The Fund currently distributes $0.081 per Unit per month ($0.972
per Unit per annum). The amount of available distributable cash and cash distributions is dependent on the
performance of the Partnership and accordingly may vary over time. See "ATS Andlauer Income Fund — Cash
Distributions".

The Fund may make additional distributions in excess ot the aforementioned monthly distributions during the year,
as the Trustees may determine. The distribution declared in respect of the month ending December 31 in each year
will include such amount in respect of the taxable income and net realized capital gains, if any, of the Fund for such
year as is necessary to ensure that the Fund will not be liable for ordinary income taxes under the Tax Act in such
year. : e

Any income of the Fund that is unavailable for cash distribution will, to the extent necessary to ensure that the Fund
does not have any income tax liability under Part 1 of the Tax Act, be distributed to Unitholders in the form of
additional Units. Such additional Units will be issued pursuant to applicable exemptions under applicable securities
laws, discretionary exemptions granted by applicable securities regulatory authorities or a prospectus or similar
filing.
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The distributable cash of ATSOT is derived primarily from distributions on or in respect of Ordinary LP Units
owned by ATSOT. ATSOT makes monthly distributions to holders of ATSOT Units of its distributable cash after
satisfaction of its interest obligations, if any, less any administrative expenses and other obligations of ATSOT. See
"ATS Andlauer Operating Trust— Cash Distributions".

The Partnership makes monthly distributions of its distributable cash on the Ordinary LP Units and Exchangeable
LP Units, less a discretionary reserve currently in the range of between 10%-20% at the discretion of the board of
directors of the GP. The distributable cash of the Partnership is based on available cash. from its operations, less
amounts required for debt service obligations, general and administrative expenses and other expense obligations,
expenditures in excess of reserves, long-term incentive plan awards and other incentives, reserves, and such other
amounts as are considered appropriate by the board of directors of the GP. Capital and other expenditures (including
amounts to enable the Partnership to pay equal monthly distributions based on expected annual cash distributions)
may be financed with drawings under one or more credit facilities of the Partnership, other borrowings or additional
“issuances of Units. See "ATS Andlauer Transportation Services Limited Partnership— Distributions™.

The Fund, ATSOT and the Partnership have considerable discretion in determining the amount of cash
distributions. Cash distributions are not guaranteed and available distributable cash will fluctuate with,
among other things, the Partnership's performance. See '"Risk Factors — Risks Relating to the Structure of
the Fund — Cash Distributions''. : '

The Credit Facility may in certain circumstances restrict the ability of the Partnership to pay distributions to the
holders of LP Units if the payment would result in default under the Credit Facility. See "Material Contracts ~
Credit Facility".

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STRUCTURE

General Description of Capital Structure

See "ATS Andlauer Income Fund" for a description. of the rights, privileges and restrictions attached to the Units
and the Special Voting Units. See "Retained Interest and Exchange Rights" for a description of the rights, privileges
and restrictions attached to the Exchange Rights.

See "ATS Andlauer Operating Trust” for a description of the rights, privileges and restrictions attached to the
securities of ATSOT.

See "ATS Andlauer Transportation Services Limited Partnership” and "Retained Interest and Exchange Rights" for a
description of the rights, privileges and restrictions attached to the securities of the Partnership.

See "ATS Andlauer Transportation Services GP Inc." for a description of the rights, privileges and restrictions
attached to the GP Common Shares.

Constraints
See "ATS Andlauer Income Fund — Limitation on Non-Resident Ownership" for a description of the constraints

imposed on the ownership of the Units to ensure that the Units have a required level of Canadian ownership and the
mechanism by which the level of Canadian ownership of the Units is monitored and maintained.
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Ratings

To the knowledge of Management, no ratings, including provisional ratings, have been received from any rating
organization in respect of the Units of the Fund.

Securities Held in Escrow
To the Fund's knowledge, no securities of the Fund are held in escrow.
MARKET FOR SECURITIES
Trading Price and Volume
The Units are listed and posted for trading on the TSX unaer the trading symbol "ATS.UN". The following table

sets forth the closing price range and trading volume of the Units as recorded by the TSX for each month in which
the Units traded in 2005. '

Month High Low Volume
September (30) 10.00 9.75 1,004,666
October 9.95 8.00 894,701
November 9.80 8.60 254,199
December 9.99 9.00 351,836
For the year 10.00 8.00 2,505,402

Note:

(H The Units were listed and posted for trading on the TSX on September 30, 2005.

Prior Sales

In addition to the Units, the Fund has 2,316,442 Special Voting Units and 2,316,442 Exchange Rights outstanding.
See "Description of Capital Structure — General Description of Capital Structure”. The issued and outstanding

Special Voting Units and Exchange Rights were issued for nominal consideration in connection with the
Acquisition.

TRUSTEES, DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Trustees of the Fund

The Trustees of the Fund are Michael Andlauer, David Matheson, Q.C., Hanif (Chiko) Nanji, Brian Luborsky and
John Schiller, who also serve as the trustees of ATSOT and as directors of the GP. Mr. Matheson, Q.C. is the
Chairman of the Trustees, the trustees of ATSOT and the board of directors of the GP. See "ATS Andlauer Income
Fund — Trustees”" and "ATS Andlauer Operating Trust— Trustees of ATSOT".

Directors and Officers of the GP

The following table sets out certain information in respect ot the directors and executive officers of the GP. The
term of office for each of the directors will expire at the time of the next annual meeting of securityholders of the
GP.



Name and Province/Country

of Residence

Position with GP

Date Appointed as a
Director

Principal Occupation During Five
Preceding Years

MICHAEL ANDLAUER™"
Ontario, Canada

DAVID MATHESON(?
Ontario, Canada

HANIF (CHIKO) NANJIW®)

Quebec, Canada

BRIAN LUBQRSKY!V®
Ontario, Canada

JOHN SCHILLER!®
Ontario, Canada

C. ROBERT BROGAN
Ontario, Canada

BRIAN MASCARENHAS
Ontaﬁo, Canada

MICHEL LUNARDI
Quebec, Canada

TERRY JESSUP
Ontario, Canada

MARCUS PRYCE-JONES
Alberta, Canada

Notes:

Trustee, Director,
President and Chief
Executive Officer

Trustee and Director

Trustee and Director

Trustee and Director

Trustee and Director

Senior Executive Vice-
President

Vice-President, Finance
and Chief Financial
Officer

Vice-President, Eastemn
Operations and Sales

Senior Vice-President,
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Sales

Vice-President, Western
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§)) Trustee of the Fund and ATSOT.

August 19, 2005

September 30, 2005

September 30, 2005

September 30, 2005

September 30, 2005

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

President and Chief Executive Officer of the
GP since August 2005. Prior thereto, Chief
Executive Officer of the Vendor since 1991.

Counsel, McMillan Binch Mendelsohn LLP
2002 to current.

President and Chief Executive Officer, Metro
Canada Logistics Inc. (a warehousing,
transportation management and customized
supply chain solutions firm) since 1988.

President and Chief Executive Officer,
Premier Salons (an operator of salons and
spas) since 1984.

Retired since 2004. Prior thereto, President of
Kingsway Transport, an LTL, TL and
specialized transport company, since 2002.
Prior thereto, Chief Operating Officer of
Maritime — Ontario Freight Lines Limited, a
private LTL carrier company, from 2000 to
2002.

Senior Executive Vice-President of the GP
since August 2005. Prior thereto, President of
the Vendor since 2001.

Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial
Officer of the GP since August 2005. Prior
thereto, Chief Financial Officer of AMG (a
company founded to manage and operate
logistics and transportation companies) since
2003, Prior thereto, Controller of the Vendor
since 1991.

Vice-President, Eastern Operations and Sales
of the GP since August 2005. Prior thereto,
Vice-President, Eastern Operations and Sales
of the Vendor since 2002. Prior thereto, a
variety of managerial and operational
positions with the Vendor since 1991.

Senior Vice-President, Ontario Operations
and Sales since August 2005. Prior thereto,
Senior Vice-President of the Vendor since
1991.

Vice-President, Western Operations  and
Sales since August 2005, Prior thereto, Vice-
President, Western Operations and Sales of
the Vendor since 2003. Prior thereto, a
variety of managerial and operational
positions with the Vendor since 1996.
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(2) Member of the Audit and Governance Committee of each of the Fund and the GP (Mr. Matheson Chair).
3) Member of the Compensation Committee of each of the Fund and the GP (Mr. Nanji Chair).

Under the terms of the Declaration of Trust, the Vendor Group has the right to elect one trustee so long as the
Vendor Group holds, directly or indirectly, Units or LP Units representing (on a diluted basis) not less than 10% of
the outstanding Units. The remaining Trustees are selected by Voting Unitholders. The same individuals are to be
Trustees, trustees of ATSOT and directors of the GP. Under the terms of the Declaration of Trust, the Trustees are
required to elect the Trustees as the trustees of ATSOT and under the terms of the ATSOT Declaration of Trust, the
trustees of ATSOT are required to elect the trustees of ATSOT as directors of the GP. See "ATS Andlauer Income
Fund — Trustees".

Uit and LP Unit Ownership

As at the date hereof, the Trustees and the directors and executive officers of the GP, as a group, own beneficially,
directly or indirectly, or exercise control or direction over, an aggregate of 235,700 Units and 2,316,442
Exchangeable LP Units, representing approximately 21.9% of the outstanding Units (assuming the exchange for
Units of all of the outstanding Exchangeable LP Units) and no GP Common Shares.

The Vendor owns beneficially, directly or indirectly, or exercises control or direction over, 2,316,442 Exchangeable
LP Units (19.9%) and 2,316,442 GP Common Shares (19.9%). AMG, a company controlled by Michael Andlauer,
a trustee of each of the Fund and ATSOT and a director and the President and Chief Executive Officer of the GP,
owns beneficially, directly or indirectly, or exercises control or direction over, 100% of the outstanding securities of
the Vendor.

Cease Trade Orders, Bankruptcies, Penalties or Sanctions

To the knowledge of the Fund and the GP, other than as set forth below, no trustee, director or executive officer of

the Fund or the GP, or shareholder holding a sufficient number of securities of the Fund or the GP to affect
materially the control of the Fund or the GP:

(a) is, as at the date of this annual information form, or has been, within the 10 years before the date of this
annual information form, a director or executive officer of any company (including the Fund and the GP)
that while that person was acting in that capacity:

(i) was the subject of a cease trade or similar order or an order that denied the relevant company
access to any exemption under securities legislation, for a period of more than 30 consecutive
days;

(ii) was subject to an event that resulted, after the director or executive officer ceased to be a director

or executive officer, in the company being the subject of a cease trade or similar order or an order
that denied the relevant company access to any exemption under securities legislation, for a period
of more than 30 consecutive days; or

(iit) or within a year of that person ceasing to act in that capacity, became bankrupt, made a proposal
under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any
proceedings, amrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or
trustee appointed to hold its assets; or

(b) has within the 10 years before the date of this annual information form, become bankrupt, made a proposal
' under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or become subject to or instituted any
proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee
appointed to hold the assets of the director, officer or shareholder.

Mr. Luborsky was an officer and a director of Premier Salons International, Inc. ("PSI'), a Delaware corporation
with operations in the United States, when it filed a petition for bankruptcy under chapter 11 of title 11, United
States Code ("Chapter 11") in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware (the "Court") in
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October 1999. He was also a director of PSI's direct parent company, GEMM Holdings, Inc. ("GEMM"), which
filed for Chapter 11 at the same time as PSI. Mr. Luborsky was the indirect owner of 85% of the common stock of
GEMM. The remaining 15% of GEMM's common stock was owned by a second shareholder. A final decree was
issued by the Court in December 2002 closing the Chapter 11 cases of each of PSI and GEMM.

Mr. Matheson was the director and officer of Balmur Entertainment Limited, a private company, until November 14,
2001. Balmur Entertainment Limited filed a notice of intention to make a proposal to creditors at a creditors meeting
which was to be held on August 26, 2002 and which was adjourned to October 23, 2003, at which the creditors did
not accept the proposal. Balmur Entertainment Limited was deemed bankrupt on October 23, 2003.

To the knowledge of the Fund and the GP, no trustee, director or executive officer of the Fund or the GP, or
shareholder holding a sufficient number of securities of the Fund or the GP to affect materially the control of the
Fund or the GP, has been subject to:

C(a) any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to securities legisiation or by a securities regulatory
authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a securities regulatory authority; or

(b) any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body that would likely be considered
important to a reasonable investor in making an investment decision.

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE INFORMATION

The full text of the Fund's Audit and Governance Committee mandate is attached as Schedule "B to this annual
information form. The board of directors of the GP has also established an Audit and Governance Committee,
which undertakes substantially the same responsibilities in respect of the GP and the Partnership as the Audit and
Governance Committee of the Trustees undertakes in respect of the Fund.

Composition of the Audit and Governance Committee

The Audit and Governance Committee consists of three members, all of whom are independent and financially
literate in accordance with the definitions in Multilateral Instrument 52-110 - Audit Committees. The education and
experience of each Audit and Governance Committee member that is relevart to the performance of his
responsibilities as a member of said committee is outlined below: ’

David Matheson, Q.C. (Chair)

- Mr. Matheson, Q.C., has over 15 years of experience as a director in the Canadian transportation industry. He has
been a partner and a counsel of the Toronto law firm of McMillian Binch Mendelsohn LLP for over 25 years and
advises national and international clients on various corporate and governance matters. Mr. Matheson has served as
a member of numerous audit committees and corporate governance committees and over the course of his career has
acquired competence in the review of financial statements of major public companies and a familiarity with internal
controls and financial reporting procedures. Mr. Matheson presently serves as the Chair of the Audit Committee of
Clarke Inc. and the Chair of the Audit and Governance Committees of both Newfoundland Capital Corporation
Limited and Tonbridge Power Inc. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree with a major in accounting from
Dalhousie University and a Bachelor of Law degree from Dalhousie Law School.

Hanif (Chiko) Nanji

Mr. Nanji has been the President, Chief Executive Officer and a director of Metro Canada Logistics Inc., a private
third-party provider of warehousing, transportation management and customized supply chain solutions since 1988.
He is also the Chairman of LDC Logistics Development Corporation, a private real estate development company,
the Vice-Chairman and director of Dairy Products in Motion Inc., a private dairy logistics company, and the Vice-
Chairman and a director of Spectrum Supply Chain Solutions Inc., a private supply chain management company.
Mr. Nanji has a strong business background having over 20 years experience in the Canadian logistics industry
serving in executive positions overseeing large operating corporations.
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Brian Luborsky

Mr. Luborsky is the President and Chief Executive Officer of Premier Salons, a private company that he founded in
1984. Premier Salons operates 375 salons and spas throughout Canada and the United States. Mr. Luborsky has
more than 20 years experience in finance and holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of Toronto
and received a Chartered Accountant designation in 1982 while working at Coopers & Lybrand. :

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

The Audit and Governance Committee Charter provides that the Audit and Governance Committee approves in
advance all permitted non-audit services to be provided to the Fund or any of its affiliates by the external auditors or
any of their affiliates, subject to any de minimus exception allowed by applicable law. The Audit and Governance

Committee is permitted to but has not delegated any of its authority to grant pre-approvals.

External Auditor Service Fees

The following table provides information about the fees billed to the Fund for professional services rendered by
Deloitte & Touche LLP to the Fund and its subsidiaries during fiscal 2005:

($ thousands) 2005

AUGHEFEES ettt 68,900

AUdit-Related Fees ... oo ceneessonesssesscsssess st 130,080

TAX FEES ) oot ettt e e a1 e s sttt ettt 12,807

All Other Fees V.o e e et e 9,540

TOAL ettt 221,327

Notes .

Q8] Represents the aggregate fees billed for audit services, which consists of the audit of the Fund's annual financial
statements and services that are normally provided in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or'engagements,

@ Represents the aggregate fees billed for assurance and related services that are reasonably retated to the performance of

the audit or review of the Fund's financial statements and are not reported as Audit Fees. During fiscal 2003, the
services provided in this category included a review of the Fund’s September 30, 2005 interim financial statements,
services rendered in connection with the Fund’s prospectus dated September 22, 2005 including the issuance of auditor
comfort and consent letters, a review of the July 31, 2005 interim financial statements of the Business and compilation
report on the pro forma financial statements of the Fund incorporated in the Business Acquisition Report filed by the
Fund.
3) Represents the aggregate fees billed for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning services. Durng fiscal 2005, the
: services provided in this category included the preparation of GST/HST elections relating to the acquisition of the
Business, and assistance and advice in relation to the preparation of corporate income tax returns and general tax
services.

4 Represents the aggregate fees billed for products and services other than Audit Fees, Audit-Related Fees or Tax Fees.
During fiscal 2005, the services provided in this category included consulting services relating to the disclosure
controls and procedures of the Fund. ’

CONFLICTS OF INTERES T

Certain directors of the GP are associated with other companies or entities, which may give rise to conflicts of
interest. In accordance with the CBCA, directors who have a material interest in any person who is a party to a
material contract or proposed material contract with the GP are required, subject to certain exceptions, to disclose
that interest and abstain from voting on any resolution to approve that contract. [n addition, the directors are required
to act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of the GP. See "Risk Factors — Risks Relating to the
Structure of the Fund— Conflicts of Interest” and "Interests of Management and Others in Material Transactions".
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Other than as described above and elsewhere in this annual information form, there are no existing or potential
material conflicts of interest between the Fund or it'subsidiaries and any trustee, director or officer of the Fund or its
subsidiaries.

INTERESTS OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS ..

There are no material interests, direct or indirect, of any trustee, director or executive officer of the Fund or the GP,
any person or company that is the direct or indirect beneficial owner of, or who exercises control or direction over,
more than 10% of any class or series of the Fund's outstanding voting securities, or any associate or affiliate of any
of the foregoing persons or companies, in any transaction during the year ended December 31, 2005 or during the
current financial year that has materially affected or will materially affect the Fund, other-than as disclosed
elsewhere in this annual information form or as set forth below:

1.~ Mr. Andlauer and persons or entities associated or affiliated with him are shareholders of AMG, a company
that controls the Vendor, which sold the Purchased Assets to the Partnership pursuant to the Acquisition.
See "General Development of the Business".

[

The Vendor is a party to a number of agreements with the Partnership and its affiliates. See-"Material-
Contracts" and "Retained Interest and Exchange Rights". In addition, Mr. Andlauer has entered into the
Non-Competition Agreement with the Partnership. See "Material Contracts".

3 The Partnership provides transportation services to Concord, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Vendor, and
receives transportation services from Concord.

4, The Partnership provides office and warehouse space as well as certain administration services to Concord.

5. The Partnership provides transportation services to Logisti-Solve Inc. ("Logisti-Solve"), a company
controlled by Mr. Andlauer.

6. The Partnership provides warehouse space to Logisti-Solve.

7. The Partnership receives temporary labour services from- Ready Staffing Solutxons Inc., a company
controlled by Mr. Andlauer’s spouse. - :

8. The Partnership leases its Montréal terminal facilities from 9143-5271 Québec Inc., a company controlled
by Mr. Andlauer.

9. The Partnership rents equipment from Andlauer Leasing Inc., a company controlled by Mr. Andlauer.

10. The Partnership provides transportation services to Associated Logistics Solutions Inc., a company
controlled by Mr. Andlauer.

1. The Partnership leases its Hamilton and Napanee termmal facilities from Andlauer Properties Inc., a
company controlled by Mr. Andlauer.

For additional information in respect of the foregoing, see note 11 to the Fund's audited annual financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2005, which note is incorporated herein by reference. The Fund's financial
statements are available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

PROMOTERS

The Vendor has taken the initiative in founding and organizing the Fund and may therefore be considered to be a
promoter of the Fund for the purposes of applicable securities legislation. See "General Development of the
Business", "Description of the Business", "Retained Interest and Exchange Rights", "Trustees, Directors and
Officers", "Interests of Management and Others in Material Transactions" and "Material Contracts".
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LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are no material legal proceedings to which the Fund is a party or in respect of which any of its property is the
subject, nor are any such proceedings known to the Fund to be contemplated.

TRANSFER ACENT AND REGISTRAR

The transfer agent and registrar for the Units is CIBC Mellon Trust Company at its principal offices in Toronto,
Ontario. .

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The following is a list of contracts, other than contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business, that are
material to the Fund and that were entered into during the year ended December 31, 2005:

1. the Declaration of Trust described under "ATS Andlauer Income Fund";

2. the Non-Competition Agreément described below;

3. the Securityholders Agreement described below;

4. the Exchange Agreement described under "Retained Interest and Exchange Rights"; ~

5. the Limited Partnership Agreement described under "ATS Andlauer Transportation Services Limited
Partnership”; :

6. the ATSOT Declaration of Trust described under "ATS Andlauer Operating Trust™;
7. the Administration Agreement described below; and

8. the Credit Facility described below.
Non-Competition Agreement

Michael Andiauer has entered into the Non-Competition Agreement with the Partnership under which he has agreed
that, until the earliest of: (i) the later of (A) September 30, 2008, and (B) the date on which either (I) the Vendor
- Group ceases to have the right to appoint a Trustee, or (1I) such individual, together with his affiliates, beneficially
owns and controls less than 5% of the Units (on a diluted basis); (ii) the date on which any person or group of
persons acting jointly or in concert (other than such individual or his associates and affiliates or the Fund or any of
its affiliates, either individually or together) acquires more than 50% of the outstanding securities of the Fund; and
(i11) the Partnership or the Fund and its affiliates cease to carry on the businesses currently carried on by the Vendor,
subject to exceptions for certain passive investments and for transportation and transportation related business
currently carried on by such individual and his associates and affiliates, including Clarke Inc., Concord, Logisti-
Solve and Associated Logistics Solutions Inc., he will not, directly or indirectly, operate or have any financial
interest in any entity the principal business of which is the operation of a freight transportation business within
Canada. ‘

Administration Agreement

The Fund and ATSOT have entered into the Administration Agreement with the GP whereby the GP has agreed to
provide ‘or arrange for the provision of services required in the administration of the Fund and ATSOT. The
following is a summary of certain provisions of the Administration Agreement, which summary is not intended to be
complete. Reference is made to the Administration Agreement for a complete description and the full text of its
provisions. The GP's duties include: (a) ensuring compliance by the Fund and ATSOT with their @ntinuous
disclosure obligations under applicable securities legislation, including the preparation of financial statements; (b)
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providing investor relations services; {¢) providing or causing to be provided to Voting Unitholders and ATSOT
Unitholders all information to which Voting Unitholders and ATSOT Unitholders are entitled under the Declaration
of Trust and the ATSOT Declaration of Trust, respectively, including relevant information with respect to income -
taxes; (d) convening meetings of Voting Unitholders and ATSOT Unitholders and distributing required materials,
including notices of meetings and information circulars, in respect of all such meetings; (e) providing for the
calculation of distributions to Unitholders and ATSOT Unitholders; (f) attending to all administrative and other
matters arising in connection with any redemptions of Units and/or ATSOT Units; (g) using its best efforts to ensure
compliance with the Fund's limitations on non-resident ownership; and (h) providing general accounting,
bookkeeping and administrative services to the Fund and ATSOT.

The administration of the Fund and ATSOT under the Administration Agreement may be terminated at any time by
the Fund or ATSOT upon notice in writing to the GP and upon payment to the GP of all costs and expenses incurred
by the GP in terminating contracts entered into by the GP with the approval of the Fund or ATSOT, as applicable,
for the performance by the GP of its duties under the Administration Agreement. No additional fees are payable to
the GP on termination.

Securityholders Agreement

The Fund, ATSOT, the Partnership, the GP and the Vendor have entered into the Securityholders Agreement
governing their security holdings in, and the business and affairs of, the GP and the Partnership. The followingisa
summary of certain provisions of the Securityholders Agreement, which summary is not intended to be complete.
Reference is made to the Securityholders Agreement for a complete description and the full text of its provisions.

Amendment and Termination

The Securityholders Agreement provides that it can only be amended, modified, altered, waived or supplemented
with the approval of the Vendor Group other than amendments to cure any ambiguity or to correct or supplement
any provisions which are defective or inconsistent with any other provision of the Securityholders Agreement,
provided that, the cure, correction or supplemental provision does not and will not adversely affect the interests of
any member of the Vendor Group. The Securityholders Agreement terminates in the event that the aggregate
percentage of LP Units or Units held by the Vendor Group constitutes less than 10% of the total outstanding LP
Units or Units on a diluted basis. The Partnership Agreement remains in effect notwithstanding any termination of
the Securityholders Agreement.

Pre-Emptive Rights

As long as the Vendor Group continues to hold not less than 10% of the total outstanding LP Units or Units on a
diluted basis representing a 10% interest in the Fund, the Vendor Group has a pre-emptive right to participate in any
future issuance of equity or debt securities of the Fund, the Partnership or any subsidiary of the Partnership.

Proposa1§ te Purchase LP Units

The Securityholders Agreement also provides that the Fund can not accept any offer or agree to support any other
proposal involving the Ordinary LP Units unless the same offer or proposal is made to the holders of the
Exchangeable LP Units for a consideration based on the consideration for the Exchangeable LP Units which reflects
the percentage of indirect interest of the holders of the Exchangeable LP Units in the Partnership, without discount
for minority position or restrictions on exchange for Units.

The Securityholders Agreement also provides that no holder of Exchangeable LP Units may transfer such
Exchangeable LP Units (other than for Units in accordance with the terms of the Exchange Agreement) unless (i)
such transfer would not require that the transferee make an offer to holders of Units on the same terms under
applicable securities legislation if such Exchangeable LP Units (and other outstanding Exchangeable Securities)
were converted into Units or (ii) the transferee makes a contemporaneous identical otfer for the Units.
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Tag-Along Rights

The Vendor Group is entitled to participate, on a pro rata basis, in any sale by the Fund of its direct or indirect
interest in the Partnership.

Credit Facility

The Partnership has a Credit Facility with a Canadian chartered bank providing for a $15 million revolving credit
facility to finance general operating requirements, as well as a $4 million revolving credit facility to finance future
leases of operational assets. Security for the Credit Facility includes a first security interest on substantially all of the
Partnership's assets, including accounts receivable. Interest on the Credit Facility varies, depending on certain
financial ratios, between the lender's Canadian prime rate plus 0% and 0.75% and between the bankers' acceptance
rate plus 1.5% and 2.25%. The Credit Facility is subject to customary terms and conditions, including limits on
incurring additional indebtedness or granting encumbrances without the consent of the lender. The terms of the
Credit Facility are subject to change from time to time. The Credit Facility may in certain circumstances restrict the
ability of the Partnership to pay distributions to the holders of LP Units and of the Fund to pay distributions to
Unitholders if the payment would result in a default under the Credit Facility. As at March 3, 2006, approximately
$1.5 million was drawn down under the Credit Facility.

INTERESTS OF EXPERTS

Names of Experts

The only persons or companies who are named as having prepared or certified a statement, report or valuation
described or included in a filing, or referred to in a filing, made under National Instrument 51-102 by the Fund
during, or relating to, the Fund's most recently completed financial year, and whose profession or business gives

authority to the statement, report or valuation made by the person or ®mpany, are Deloitte & Touche LLP
(" Deloitte"), KPMG LLP and SB Partners LLP.

Deloitte is independent in accordance with the Rules of Protessional Conduct as outlined by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Ontario.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information relating to the Fund may be found on SEDAR at www.sedar.com and on the Fund's website
at www.atsincomefund.ca.

Additional information, including directors' and officers' remuneration and indebtedness, principal holders of the
Fund's securities and securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans, is contained in the Fund's
information circular for its most recent annual meeting of unitholders, which may be found on SEDAR at
www.sedar.com. '

Additional financial information is provided in the Fund's financial statements and management's discussion and
analysis for the year ended December 31, 2005, which documents may befound on SEDAR at www sedar.com.



SCHEDULE "A"
GLOSSARY OF TERMS

In this annual information form, the following rms shall have the meanings set forth below, unless otherwise
indicated:

" Aequisition” means the acquisition by the Partnership from the Vendor of the Purchased Assets and the assumption
by the Partnership of certain related liabilities as more particularly described under "General Development of the

Business";

"Acquisition Agreement” means the asset purchase and sale agreement entered into between the Partnershlp and the
Vendor in respect of the Acquisition;

"Administration Agreement'" means the administration agreement entered into between the Fund, ATSOT and the
GP; :

"affiliate” has the meaning given to it in Section 1.2 of National Instrument 45-106 — Prospectus and Registration
Exemptions promulgated under the Securities Act (Ontario);

AMG" means Andlauer Management Group Inc., a majority shareholder of the Vendor controlled by Michael
Andlauer;

"associate" has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Securities Act (Ontario);

"ATS Andlauer Entities" means, and includes ATSOT, the GP, the Partnership, any of their affiliates and any other
direct or indirect subsidiary of the Fund;

"ATSOT' means ATS Andlauer Operating Trust, a trust established under the laws of the Provmce of Ontario
pursuant to the ATSOT Declaration of Trust;

"ATSOT Declaration of Trust' means the declaration of trust pursuant to which ATSOT was established, as the
same may be amended, supplemented or restated from time to time. See "ATS Andlauer Operating Trust";

"ATSOT Unitholders" means, at the relevant time, the holders of the ATSOT Units;
"ATSOT Units" means the trust units of ATSOT;
"Business" means the Canadian transportation solutions business of the Vendor acquired by the Partnership;

"business day" means a day when banks are generally open for the transaction of business in Toronto, Ontario, other
than a Saturday, Sunday or statutory or civic holiday;

"CBCA" means the Canada Business Corporations Act, as amended, including the regulations promulgated
‘thereunder;

“Concord’ means Concord Transportation Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Vendor;
"CRA" means Canada Revenue Agency;

"Credit Facility" means the credit facilities entered into by the Partnership with a Canadian chartered bank
concurrent with the completion of the Acquisition. See "Material Contracts - Credit Facility";

"Declaration of Trust' means the declaration of trust pursuant to which the Fund was established, as the same may
be amended, supplemented or restated from time to time. See"ATS Andlauer Income Fund";
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"Deferred Income Plans" means, collectively, trusts governed by registered retirement savings plans, registered
retirement income funds and deferred profit sharing plans, each as defined in the Tax Act;

"diluted basis" means, for purposes of the Securityholders Agreement, the number of Units outstanding assuming
the exchange of all Exchangeable LP Units; -

"distributable cash" has the meaning given to it under "Non-GAAP Measures";

"EBITDA" has the meaning given to it under "Non-GAAP Measures";

"Exchange Agreement" means the exchange agreement entered into among the Fund, ATSOT, the Partnership, the
GP and the Vendor providing for, among other things, the Exchange Rights, and demand and piggyback registration
rights. See "Retained Interest and Exchange Rights™;

"Exchange Rights" means the right of-a holder of Exchangeable LP Units to exchange one Exchangeable LP Unit
for one Unit by delivering such Exchangeable LP Unit in exchange for a Unit. See "Retained Interest and Exchange
Rights"; .

"Exchangeabl e LP Units' means the exchangeable units of the Partnership held by the Vendor;

"Exchangeable Securities" means the Exchangeable LP Units and any other securities that are exchangeable,
“directly or indirectly, for Units;

"Existing Shareholder" means AMG;
"Exempt Plans" means, collectively, Deferred Income Plans and RESPs;

"Fund' means ATS Andlauver Income Fund, a trust established under the laws of the Province of Ontario pursuant to
the Declaration of Trust; :

"GAAP" means generally accepted accounting principles in Canada;

"GP" means ATS Andlauer Transportation Services GP Inc., a corporation incorporated under the CBCA;
"GP Common Shares" means the common shares in the capital of the GP;

"GP Units" means the ordinary general partner units of the Partnership held by the GP;

"Limited Partnership Agreement" means the limited partnership agreement; as amended, supplemented or restated
from time to time, between the Vendor, the GP and ATSQOT, by which the Partnership is governed;

"LP Units" means, collectively, the Ordinary LP Units and the Exchangeable LP Units;
"LTIP" means the long-term incentive plan of the Partnership;

"LTL" means less-than-truckload,

"Management" means senior mar;agement of the GP;

"Non-Canadian Partnership' means a partnership that is not a "Canadian partnership”" within the meaning of the
Tax Act;

"Non-Competition Agreement" means the non-competition agreement entered into among the Fund, the

Partnership, the GP and Michael Andlauer as more particularly described under "Material Contracts — Non-
Competition Agreement”;



"Nen-resident" means a non-resident of Canada within the meaning of the Tax Act;
"Ordinary LP Units" means the ordinary limited partnership units of the Partnership;

"Partnership’ means ATS. Andlauer Transportation Services Limited Partnership, a limited partnership formed
under the laws of the Province of Manitoba;

"Partnership Special Resolution" means a resolution of the partners of the Partnership passed with the consent of
the holders of at least 66 2/3% of the LP Units and GP Units, in the aggregate, voted on such resolution at a duly
constituted meeting or by a written resolution of partners holding more than 66 2/3% of the LP Units and GP Units,
in the aggregate, entitled to vote at a duly constituted meeting,

"Permitted Investments” means: (i) obligations issued or guaranteed by the Government of Canada or any province
of Canada or any agency or instrumentality thereof; (ii) term deposits, guaranteed investment certificates,
certificates of deposit or bankers' acceptances of or guaranteed by any Canadian chartered bank or other financial
institution, the short-term debt or deposits of which have been rated at least "A" or the equivalent by Standard &
Poor's, a division of The McGraw-Hill Company Inc., Moody's Investor Services, Inc. or Dominion Bond Rating
Services Limited; and (iii}) commercial paper rated at least "R-1" or the equivalent by Dominion Bond Rating
Services Limited, in each case maturing not more than 180 days after the date of acquisition;

"Person'' means any individual, partnership, association, body corporate, trustee, executor, administrator, legal
representative, government, regulatory authority or other entity;

"Purchased Assets" means the assets used in the Business acquired by the Partnership from the Vendor pursuant to
the Acquisition as more particularly described under "Description of the Business";

"Redemption Date" means a-date on which Units are surrendered for redemption;

"Redemption Notes" means unsecured, subordinated promissory notes that' may be issued by the Fund (or a
subsidiary of the Fund including ATSOT) in satisfaction of the redemption price for Units in certain circumstances,
as further described under "ATS Andlauer Income Fund — Redemption Right",

"Redemption Price" has the meaning given to that term under "ATS Andlauer Income Fund— Redemption Right";

"RESP" means a registered education savings plan as defined in the Tax Act;

"Securityholders Agreement" means the agreement entered into among the Fund, ATSOT, the Partnership, the GP
and the Vendor providing for, among other things, the governance of the GP;

"Special Resolution" means a resolution of the Voting Unitholders passed by not less than 66 2/3% of the votes
cast, either in person or by proxy, at a meeting of Voting Unitholders called for the purpose of approving such
resolution, or approved in writing by the holders of not less than 66 2/3% of the Voting Units entitled to vote on
such resolution;

"Special Voting Units" means the special voting units of the Fund, issued to or for the benefit of holders of
Exchangeable Securities and certified under the Declaration of Trust for the time being outstanding and entitled to
the benefits and subject to the limitations set forth therein;

"subsidiary" has the meaning set out in the Securities Act (Ontario) and includes a partnership or other entity;

"Tax Act' means the /ncome Tax Act (Canada), as amended, including the regulations promulgated thereunder;

"TL" means truckload;

"Trustees" mean the trustees of the Fund from time to time;
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"TSX" means the Toronto Stock Exchange;

"Unit" means a trust unit of the Fund other than a Special Voting Unit;

"United States" or "U.S." means the United States, as defined in Rule 902(1) under Regulation S; -
"Unitholders" means the holders of Units from time to time,

"Vendor" means ATS Andlauer Transportation Services Inc., a corporation incorporated under the CBCA and
owned by the Existing Shareholders;

"Vendor Group' means, collectively, the Vendor and any Existing Shareholder and any shareholder, associate or
affiliate of the Vendor or an Existing Shareholder, including any family member of a shareholder of a Vendor or an
Existing Shareholder or any company, trust or other entity owned by or maintained for the benefit of any of such
Persons;

"Voting Units" means the Units and the Special Voting Units; and

"Voting Unitholders" means the Unitholders and the holders of Special Voting Units.

All dollar amounts set forth in this annual information form are in Canadian dollars.



SCHEDULE "B"
ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE CHARTER

The term "Fund' refers to ATS Andlauer Income Fund, the term "Trustees" refers to the trustees of the Fund, the
term 'Administrator” refers to ATS Andlauer Transportation Services GP Inc. (the 'GP") in its capacity as
administrator of the Fund pursuant to the Administration Agreement between the Fund, ATS Andlauer Operating
Trust ("ATSOT") and the Administrator, and the term 'Governance Agreements” refers, collectively, to the
Declaration of Trust of the Fund, the Administration Agreement, the Securityholders Agreement between the
Fund, ATSOT, the GP, ATS Andlauer Transportation Services Limited Partnership (the "ATS Andlauver LP") and
others, the Exchange Agreement between the Fund, ATSOT, the GP, the ATS Andlauer LP and others and the
Limited Partnership Agreement governing ATS Andlauer LP.

PURPOSE

The Audit and Governance Committee (the "Committee") is a standing committee appointed by the Trustees to
asstst the Trustees in fulfilling their oversight responsibilities with respect to the Fund's financial reporting including
responsibility to:

. oversee the integrity of the Fund's financial statements and financial reporting process, including the audit
process and the Fund's internal accounting controls and procedures and compliance with related legal and
regulatory requirements;

. oversee the qualifications and independence of the Fund's external auditors (who shall report directly to the
Committee);

. oversee the work of the Fund's financial management and external auditors in these areas; and

. provide an open avenue of communication between the external auditors, the Trustees, the board of

directors of the GP, the trustees of ATSOT, the Administrator and the officers (collectively,
"Management") of the Fund, the Administrator, the GP and ATS Andlauer LP.

The Committee is also responsible for overseeing and assessing the functioning of the Trustees and the committees
of the Trustees and for the development, recommendation to the Trustees, implementation and assessment of
effective governance principles. In addition, the Committee will undertake on behalf of the Trustees such other
governance initiatives as may be necessary or desirable to enable the Trustees to provide effective governance for
the Fund and contribute to the success of the Fund.

The Committee ‘will also review and/or approve any other matter specifically delegated to the Committee by the
Board.

COMPOSITION AND PROCEDURES

In addition to the procedures and powers set out in any resolution of the Trustees, the Committee will have the
following composition and procedures:

1. Composition

The Committee shall consist of no fewer than three members. None of the members of the Committee shall be an
officer or employee of the Fund, ATS Andlauer LP or the GP or any of their respective subsidiaries and each
member of the Committee shall be an "independent trustee” (in accordance with the definition of "independent
director" from time to time under the requirements or guidelines for audit and governance committee service under
applicable securities laws and the rules of any stock exchange on which the Fund's units are listed for trading);
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provided that the fact that a Trustee is also a director of the GP will not disqualify the Trustee from being a member
ot the Committee provided that the Trustee would otherwise be eligible to be a member of the Committee.

2. Appointment and Replacement of Committee Members

Any member of the Committee may be removed or replaced at any time by the Trustees and shall automatically
cease to be a member of the Committee upon ceasing to be a Trustee. The Trustees may fill vacancies on the
Committee by election from among their number. The Trustees shall fill any vacancy if the membership of the
Committee is less than three Trustees. If and whenever a vacancy shall exist on the Committee, the remaining
members may exercise all its power so long as a quorum remains in office. Subject to the foregoing, the members of
the Committee shall be elected by the Trustees annually and each member of the Committee shall hold office as
such until the next annual meeting of unitholders after his or her election or until his or her successor shall be duly
elected and qualified.

3. Financial literacy

All members of the Committee must be "financially literate" (as that term is interpreted by the Trustees in their
business judgment or as may be defined from time to time under the requirements or guidelines for audit committee
service under securities laws and the rules of any stock exchange on which the Fund's units are listed for trading) or,
if permitted by applicable securities laws or stock exchange rules must become financially literate within a
reasonable period of time after his or her appointment to the Committee

4. Separate Executive Meetings

The Committee will meet at least once every quarter, and more often as warranted, with the Chief Financial Officer
of the Administrator and the external auditors in separate executive sessions to discuss any matters that the
Committee or each of these groups believes should be discussed privately.

5. Professional Assistance

The Committee may retain special legal, accounting, financial or other consultants to advise the Committee at the
Fund's expense and shall have sole authority to retain and terminate any search firm to be used to identify Trustee
candidates or any other consulting firm and to approve any such firm's fees and retention terms.

6. Reliance

Absent actual knowledge to the contrary (which will be promptly reported to the Trustees), each member of the
Committee shall be entitled to rely on (i) the integrity of those persons or organizations within and outside the Fund
from which it receives information, (ii)the accuracy of the financial and other information provided to the
Committee by such persons or organizations and (iii) representations made by the Administrator, ATS Andlauer LP
or the GP or their respective senior managements and the external auditors, as to any information technology,
internal audit and other non-audit services provided by the external auditors to the Fund and its subsidiaries.

7. Review of Charter

The Committee will periodically review and reassess the adequacy of this Charter as it deems appropriate and
recommend changes to the Trustees. The Committee will evaluate its performance with reference to this Charter.
The Committee will approve the form of disclosure of this Charter, where required by applicable securities laws or

regulatory requirements, in the annual proxy circular or annual report of the Fund.

8. Delegation

The Committee may delegate from time to time to any person or committee of persons any of the Committee's
responsibilities that lawfully may be delegated.
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9. Reporting to the Trustees

The Committee will report through the Committee Chair to the Trustees following meetings of the Committee on
matters considered by the Committee, its activities and compliance with this Charter.

10. Whistleblowing

The Committee shall be responsible to oversee the setting of policies for handling complaints or whistleblowing as
they may relate to financial reporting and processes, internal financial controls, financial risk management systems,
and internal and external audit functions, which policies shall be administered by the Administrator. In particular,
without limitation, the Chair with the Members of the Committee shall set policies for and oversee the establishment
of procedures to facilitate the submission; on a confidential and anonymous basis, of complaints, reports and
concerns by any person regarding (i) such financial, accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters, (ii)
actual or potential violations of laws, rules or regulations in respect thereof and (iii) other suspected wrongdoing in
respect thereof. Such responsibilities and procedures shall be as prescribed by the Joint Code of Business Conduct
and shall include a policy on how complaints and whistleblowing should be submitted on a confidential basis and on
a confidential, investigative and reporting process.

SPECIFIC MANDATES OF THE COMMITTEE - AUDIT, ACCOUNTING, FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS RESPONSIBILITIES ‘

The Committee will:
I In Respect of the Fund's External Auditors

(a) review the performance of the external auditors of the Fund who shall report directly to the
Committe¢ and are accountable to the Committee and the Trustees as the représentatives of the
unitholders of the Fund, including the lead partner of the independent auditor team and make
recommendations to the Trustees as to the reappointment or appointment of the external auditors
of the Fund to be proposed in the Fund's proxy circular for unitholder approval and shall have
authority to terminate the external auditors;

) review the reasons for any proposed change in the external auditors of the Fund which is not
initiated by the Committee or the Trustees and any other significant issues related to the change,
including the response of the incumbent auditors, and enquire as to the qualifications of the
proposéd auditors before making its recommendation to the Trustees;

(©) approve the terms of engagement and the compensation to be paid by the Fund to the Fund's
external auditors;

(d) review the independence of the Fund's external auditors, including reports from the external
auditors respecting their independence and consideration of applicable auditor independence
standards;

(e) approve in advance all permitted non-audit services to be provided to the Fund or any of its

affiliates by the external auditors or any of their affiliates, subject to any de minimus exception
allowed by applicable law; the Committee may delegate to one or more designated members of the
Committee the authority to grant pre-approvals required by this subsection;

$3) if the Committee approves an audit service within the scope of the engagement of the independent
auditor, such audit service shall be deemed to have been pre-approved for purposes of this
subsection;
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(g)

(h)

@

()

(k)

M

review the disclosure with respect to its pre-approval of audit and non-audit services provided by
the Fund's external auditors;

approve any hiring by the Fund or its subsidiaries of employees or former employees of the Fund's
present or former external auditors;

review a written or oral report describing:
(1) critical accounting policies and practices to be used in the Fund's annual audit,

(1) alternative treatments of financial information within genecrally accepted accounting
principles that have been discussed with the Administrator or other Management and that
are significant to the Fund's financial statements, ramifications of the use of such
alternative disclosures and treatments, and the treatment preferred by the external
auditors, and

(ii1) other material written communication between the Fund's external auditors and the
Administrator or other Management, such as any management letter or schedule of
unadjusted differences;

review with the external auditors and Management the general audit approach and scope of
proposed audits of the financial statements of the Fund, ATS Andlauer LP and the GP, the
objectives, staffing, locations, co-ordination and reliance upon Management in the audit, the
overall audit plans, the audit procedures to be used and the timing and estimated budgets of the
audits; ‘

if a review engagement report is requested of the external auditors, review such report before the
release of the Fund's interim financial statements; and

discuss with the external auditors any difficulties or disputes that arose with the Administrator or
other Management during the course of the audit, any restrictions on the scope of activities or

"access to requested information and the adequacy of the Administrator's or other Management's

responses in correcting audit-related deficiencies.

In Respect of the Fund's Financial Disclosure

(a)

review with the external auditors and/or the Administrator, as appropriate:

Q) the Fund's audited financial statements and the notes and Managements' Discussion and
Analysis relating to such financial statements, the annual report, the tinancial information
of the Fund contained in any prospectus or information circular or other disclosure
documents or regulatory filings of the Fund and make recommendations to the Board for
their approval;

(i1) the Fund's interim financial statements and the notes and Managements' Discussion and
Analysis relating to such financial statements and approve or recommend to the Trustees
their release to the public;

(it) the quality, appropriateness and acceptability of the Fund's accounting principles and
practices used in its financial reporting, changes in the Fund's accounting principles or
practices and the application of particular accounting principles and disclosure practices
by Management to new transactions or events;



(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

() all significant financial reporting issues and judgments made in connection with the
preparation of the Fund's financial statements, including the effects of alternative
methods in respect of any matter considered signiticant by the external auditor within
generally accepted accounting principles on the financial statements and any "second
opinions" sought by Management from an independent or other audit firm or advisor with
respect to the accounting treatment of a particular item;

V) the effect of regulatory and accounting initiatives on the Fund's financial statements and
other financial disclosures;

{vi) any reserves, accruals, provisions or estimates that may have a significant effect upon the
financial statements of the Fund;

(vi) the use of special purpose entities and the business purpose and economic effect of off
balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations, guarantees and other relationships
of the Fund and their impact on the reported financial results of the Fund;

(vili)  any legal matter, claim or contingency that could have a significant impact on the
financial statements, the Fund's compliance policies and any material reports, inquiries or
other correspondence received from regulators or governmental agencies and the manner
in which any such legal matter, claim or contingency has been disclosed in the Fund's
financial statements;

(x) the treatment for financial reporting purposes of any significant transactions that are not a
normal part of the Fund's operations; and

(x) the use of any "pro forma" or "adjusted" information not in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

review and resolve disagreements between Management and the Fund's external auditors
regarding financial reporting or the application of any accounting principles or practices;

review earnings press releases, as well as financial information and earnings guidance provided to
analysts and ratings agencies, it being understood that such discussions may, in the discretion of
the Committee, be done generally (i.e., by discussing the types of information to be disclosed and
the type of presentation to be made) and that the Committee need not discuss in advance each
earnings release or each instance in which the Fund gives earning guidance;

establish and monitor procedures for (i) the review of public disclosure of financial information
extracted from the financial statements of the Fund, (ii) the receipt and treatment of complaints
received by the Fund regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or audit matters, and
(i) the anonymous submission by employees of concerns regarding questionable accounting or
auditing matters and review periodically with the Management these procedures and any
significant complaints received;

if requested by the Trustees, receive from the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer of the Administrator a certificate certifying in respect of each annual and interim report the
matters such officers are required to certify in connection with the filing of such reports under
applicable securities laws and receive and review disclosures made by such officers about any
significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls or material weaknesses
therein and any fraud involving the Administrator or its senior officers or persons who have a
significant role in the Fund's internal controls; and



() review and discuss the Fund's major financial risk exposures and the steps taken to monitor and
control such exposures, including the use of any financial derivatives and hedging activities.

I1IL. In Respect of Insurance

(a) review periodically insurance programs relating to the Fund and its investments;

(b) review periodically the trustee and officer insurance policy applicable to the Fund and make
recommendations for its renewal or amendment or the replacement of the insurer; and

(c) administer all policies of or agreenients by the Fund with respect to the indemnification by the
Fund of Trustees and officers, if any, of the Fund.

Iv. In Respect of Internal Controls

(a) review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Fund's internal accounting and financial controls
based on recommendations from Management and the external auditors for the improvement of
accounting practices and internal controls; and

b) oversee compliance with internal controls and the Joint Code of Business Conduct.

V. Oversight Function

to plan or conduct audits, to determine that the Fund's financial statements are complete and accurate or are in
accordance with GAAP and applicable rules and regulations or to determine the adequacy of the internal control
over financial reporting structure and the financial and other risk management systems ot the Fund. These are the
responsibilities of Management and/or the Fund's external auditors. The Committee, its Chair and any Committee
members identified as having accounting or related financial expertise are Trustees, appointed to the Committee to
provide broad oversight of the financial, risk and control related activities of the Fund, and are specifically not
accountable or responsible for the day-to-day operation or performance of such activities. Although the designation
of a Committee member as having accounting or related financial expertise for disclosure purposes or otherwise is
based on that individual's education and experience, which that individual will bring to bear in carrying out his or
her duties on the Committee, such designation does not impose on such person any duties, obligations or liability
that are greater than the duties, obligations and liability imposed on such person as a member of the Committee and
as a Trustee in the absence of such designation. Rather, the role of a Committee member who is identitied as having
accounting or related financial expertise, like the role of all Committee members, is to oversee the process, not to
certify or guarantee the internal or external audit of the Fund's financial information or public disclosure.

SPECIFIC MANDATES OF THE COMMITTEE —~ GOVERNANCE

The Committee will, subject to and consistent with the Declaration of Trust of the Fund, the Securityholders
Agreement and any other applicable governance document:

VI In Respect of Operations of the Trustees

(a) assess the needs of the Trustees with respect to the conduct of the affairs of the Trustees,
including:

0] the number of Trustees;
(1) the frequency and location of Trustee and committee meetings;

(iit) procedures for establishing meeting agendas and the conduct of meetings; and
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(b)

(c)

(d)
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(iv) the availability, relevance and timeliness of discussion papers, reports and other
information required by the Trustees;

recommend at the first meeting of the Trustees following each annual meeting, the allocation of
Trustees to each of the committees of Trustees and thereafter, where a vacancy occurs at any time
in the membership of any Board committee, recommend a particular Trustee to fill such vacancy;

oversee an orientation program and continuing education for all Trustees in respect to the Fund,;
such program should be designed so as new Trustees fully understand the role of the Trustees and
their committees, the contribution individual Trustees are expected to make (including, in
particular, the commitment of time and resources that the Fund expects from its Trustees) and the
nature and operations of the Fund's affairs and investments including the business and operations
of ATS Andlauer LP. Continuing education opportunities should be focused on enhancing
individual Trustee's skills and abilities as Trustees and maintaining the currency of their
knowledge and understanding of the Fund's affairs including the business and operations of ATS
Andlauer LP; and

oversee the relationship between the Trustees on the one hand and officers of the Administrator on
the other hand and, if appropriate, make recommendations with a view to ensuring that the
Trustees are able to function independently of Management.

In Respect of Governance

(a)
(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

(@

(h)

review periodically the Fund's approach to governance issues;

review periodically the mandate for the Trustees and the position description for the Chair of the
Trustees;

review periodically the charters of the committees of the Trustees and, where appropriate, make
recommendations thereon including changes in the role, size, composition and structure of the
committees;

conduct periodic surveys -of Trustees with respect to their views on the effectiveness of the
Trustees, the Chair of the Board, each committee of Trustees and its Chair. and individual
Trustees; - :

evaluate regularly the effectiveness and contribution of the Chair of the Trustees and the Chair of
each committee and the effectiveness and contribution of individual Trustees, having regard for
the mandate for the Trustees and position description, the results of surveys of the Trustees,
attendance at Trustee and Trustee committee meetings, overall contribution and, in the case of
individual Trustees, the competencies and skills the individual Trustee is expected to bring to the
Trustees;

recommend policies regarding succession in the event of an emergency or the retirement of the
Chair of the Trustees;

assess the effectiveness of the Trustees as a whole and each committee of the Trustees, including
the Committee having regard to the mandate for the Trustees and each committee of the Trustees;

review the Fund's Trustée qualification critéria including the number of boards on which Trustees
may sit, Trustees tenure, retirement and succession; and

review the procedure to enable an individual Trustee to engage an outside advisor at the expense
of the Fund.
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In Respect of Trustee Composition and Trustee Nominations

(a)

(b)

(c)

()

(e)

()

(a)

(b)

review periodically the competencies, skills and personal qualities required of Trustees in order to
add value to the Fund, in light of:

1 the activities of the Fund and the nature of its investments;

(1) the need to have a majority of the Trustees are comprised of individuals, each of whom
meets the requirements set out under the heading "COMPOSITION AND
PROCEDURES ~ 1. Composition” above;

(ii1) the Declaration of Trust and the Securityholders Agreement and any other Governance
Agreements to which the Fund is a party; and

(iv) the Fund's Governance Guidelines.

as required, identify and recommend to the Trustees qualified Trustee nominees for election at the
annual meeting;

as required, recruit Trustee candidates and review any Trustee candidates recommended by

unitholders, based on the competencies, skills and personal qualities required of Trustees in order
to add value to the Fund;

review the competencies, skills and personal qualities of each existing Trustee, and the
contributions made by the Trustee to the effective operation of the Trustees and any significant

change in the primary occupation of the Trustee;

use best efforts to have candidates understand the demands and expectations of a Trustee and the

role of the Trustees and their committees; and

oversee an orientation program to -familiarise new Trustees with the Fund's affairs and its
investments and the business and operations of the GP and the LP including the Fund's reporting
structure, strategic plans, significant financial, accounting and risk issues and compliance policies,
management and the external auditors. ‘

In Respect of Reporting and Disclosure Requirements

review and approve the annual corporate governance report to be made in either the annual report
to unitholders or the proxy circular prepared in connection with the Fund's annual meeting
describing the corporate governance practices of the Fund with reference to the reporting
requirements of the Toronto Stock Exchange or other applicable securities law requirements;

review periodically the Joint Disclosure Policy.
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Auditors’ Report

To the Unitholders of
ATS Andlauer Income Fund

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet of ATS Andlauer Income Fund as at December 31, 2005
and the consolidated statements of income, unitholders’ equity and cash flows for the period then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Fund’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

position of the Fund as at December 31, 2005 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
period then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Debo it v Tauchs LLP

March 3, 2006
Chartered Accountants
Halifax, Nova Scotia

tMember of

Delcitts Touthe Tolmatsu
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ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND
Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at December 31, 2005
(in thousands of dollars)

ASSETS
Current
Cash and cash equivalents $ 264
Accounts receivable 28,182
Prepaid expenses and deposits 1,550
29,996
Deferred financing costs 44
Capital assets (Note 4) 2,455
Intangible assets (Note 5) 64,070
Goodwill 35,844
$ 132,409
LIABILITIES
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 14,213
Distributions payable to unitholders (Note 10) 3,872
Distributions payable to non-controlling interest (Note 10) 962
19,047
Long-term debt (Note 6) 3,948
22,995
Non-controlling interest (Note 7) 23,360
46,355
EQUITY
Unitholders' equity 86,054
$ 132,409

The accompanying notes are an integral component of the consolidated financial statements

Approved by the Trustees:

[“signed”] David Matheson, Trustee

[“signed”] Michael Andiauer, Trustee
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ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND

Consolidated Statement of Income
Period ended December 31, 2005
(in thousands of dollars, except per Unit amounts)

Revenue $ 51,053
Cost of goods sold 30,140
20,913

Expenses
Terminal 7,597
Selling 1,240
Administration 2,707
Amortization of capital assets 69
Amortization of intangible assets 1,530
Interest expense, net of interest income 20
Income before non-controlling interest 7,750
Non-controlling interest 1,542
Net income $ 6,208
Basic and diluted income per Unit (Note 9) $ 0.666

- The accompanying notes are an integral component of the consolidated financial statements
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ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND

Consolidated Statement of Unitholders’ Equity
Period ending December 31, 2005
(in thousands of dollars)

Trust Units Net Income Distributions Total
Opening, August 22, 2005 $ -5 - 3 - 8 -
Unit issue proceeds (Note 8) 93,242 - - 93,242
Costs to issue Units (Note 8) (7,976) - - (7,976)
Net income - 6,208 - 6,208
Distributions (Note 10) - - (5,420) (5,420)
Closing, December 31, 2005 $ 85266 § 6,208 § (5,420) $ 86,054

The accompanying notes are an integral component of the consolidated financial statements
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ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Period ending December 31, 2005
(in thousands of dollars)

NET INFLOW (OUTFLOW) OF CASH RELATED
TO THE FOLLOWING ACTIVITIES

Operating activities
Net income

$ 6,208
Items not affecting cash
Amortization 1,603
Non-controlling interest in excess of distributions paid 1,158
8,969
Net change in non-cash working capital balances (Note 13) 2,579
11,548
Investing activities
Business acquisition (Note 2) (98,407)
Purchase of capital assets (506)
Proceeds on disposal of capital assets 11
(98,902)
Financing activities
Net proceeds from the issuance of Units 85,266
Proceeds from long-term debt 9,543
Repayment of long-term debt (5,395)
Deferred financing costs (48)
Distributions paid to unitholders (Note 10) (1,548)
. 87,618
Increase in cash and cash at end of the period $ 264
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Interest paid $ 37
Interest received 21

The accompanying notes are an integral component of the consolidated financial statements
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ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2005
(in thousands of dollars except per Unit amounts)

1. THE FUND

ATS Andlauer Income Fund (the “Fund™) is an unincorporated open-ended trust governed by the
laws of the Province of Ontario pursuant to the Declaration of Trust dated August 22, 2005. The
Fund was established to invest in the freight transportation business, through an indirect acquisition
of the controlling interest of ATS Andlauer Transportation Services Limited Partnership (“ATS
Andlauer LP”) and its general partner, ATS Andlauer Transportation Services GP Inc. (the “GP”).
The Fund was inactive prior to completing an initial public offering (the “IPO”) of its trust units
(“Units”), and through its indirect acquisition of the controlling interest of ATS Andlauer LP,
acquired certain net assets of the Canadian transportation solutions business (the “Business™) of
ATS Andlauer Transportation Services Inc. (the “Vendor”) on September 30, 2005.

The Fund is a leading single source transportation solutions provider in Canada, providing
integrated trucking, courier, air freight and value added transportation and distribution services to
consumer product companies.

2. INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING AND ACQUISITION

On September 30, 2005, the Fund completed the IPO of 9,324,200 Units for $10.00 per Unit, for
gross proceeds of $93,242. The cost of issuing Units was $7,976 for net proceeds of $85,266.

On September 30, 2005, in conjunction with the IPO, the Fund used the proceeds of the offering,
together with a portion of the funds drawn under its credit facilities and the issuance of
Exchangeable Limited Partnership Units of ATS Andlaver LP, to acquire the Business of the
Vendor for an aggregate purchase price of $121,571.

The acquisition has been accounted for by the purchase method. The allocation of the purchase
price is summarized as follows: '

Net working capital $ 18,098
Capital assets 2,029
Other intangible assets 65,600
Goodwill 35,844
$121,571

Consideration
Cash $ 98,407
Exchangable Limited Partnership Units (Note 7) 23,164
$ 121,571
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ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2005
(in thousands of dollars except per Unit amounts)

3.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements of .the Fund have been prepared by management in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

As the Fund commenced operations on September 30, 2005 with the purchase of the Business, no
comparative information is provided.

The significant accounting policies are summarized as follows:

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Fund and its subsidiaries, ATS
Andlauer Operating Trust, the GP, and ATS Andlauer LP. Al significant inter-company
transactions have been eliminated on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue for freight transportation is recognized with the completion of services, which is generally
at the time of delivery of the freight.

Capital assets and amortization

Capital assets are recorded at acquisition cost. Amortization is provided as follows:

Computer equipment 30% declining balance

Furniture 20% declining balance

Leasehold improvements term of the lease

Pickup and delivery equipment 20% declining balance
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquired business over the estimated fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired. Goodwill is not amortized and is tested for impairment on an
annual basis or when an event or circumstance occurs that more likely than not reduces the fair
value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount. Goodwill impairment is assessed based on a
comparison of the fair value of a reporting unit to its carrying amount, including goodwill. When
the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the fair value of the reporting unit’s
goodwill is compared to its carrying amount to measure the amount of the impairment loss, if any.
When the carrying amount of the reporting unit goodwill exceeds the fair value of the goodwill, an
impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to the excess.
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ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2005
(in thousands of dollars except per Unit amounts)

3.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired that have a definite life, such as customer relationships and proprietary
technology, are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of
ten years and six years, respectively, and are further tested for impairment if events or
circumstances indicate that the assets might be impaired.

Intangible assets acquired that have an indefinite useful life, such as trademarks, are not amortized
and are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that
the asset might be impaired. The impairment test compares the carrying amount of the intangible
asset with its fair value and an impairment loss is recognized for the excess, if any.

Impairment of long-lived assets

The Fund reviews its long-lived assets, such as capital assets and intangible assets subject to
amortization, for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. If the total of the expected undiscounted future cash
flows is less than carrying amount of an asset, a loss, if any, is recognized to the extent that the
carrying amount exceeds the fair value of the asset.

Deferred financing costs

Financing costs related to credit facilities are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over
the term of the credit facilities.

Stock-based compensation

The Fund has a long-term incentive plan (the “Plan™) for certain of the executive officers and senior
management of the GP. The Fund uses the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based
compensation.

Under the Plan, Units purchased on the open market on behalf of the Plan participants are recorded
at cost as a reduction of Unitholders’ equity.

The Fund records a compensation expense over the vesting period based on the Units’ fair value at
the time of granting. Where the fair value of the Units at the time of granting is greater than the
Fund’s cost of the Units acquired under the Plan, the difference will be recorded as contributed
surplus. Where the fair value of the Units at the time of grant is lower than the Fund’s cost of the
Units acquired under the Plan, the difference will be recorded as a reduction to retained earnings.

For the period ended December 31, 2005, no compensation expense was recorded in relation to the

Plan as no Units were granted under the Plan until March 2006 and no Units were purchased on
behalf of Plan participants.
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ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2005
(in thousands of dollars except per Unit amounts)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Non-controlling interest

Non-controlling interest represents the retained interest of the Vendor in the Fund through iis
ownership of exchangeable limited partnership units in ATS Andlaver LP, a subsidiary.
Exchangeable unitholders are entitled to earnings that are economically equivalent to distributions
of the Fund. The exchangeable units were recorded at the value which the Fund’s Units were issued
to the public through the IPO. Exchanges of exchangeable units are recorded at the carrying value
of the exchangeable units at issuance net of net income and distributions attributable to
participating units to the date of the exchange. :

Use of estimates

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, as at
the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reporting period. The more significant accounting estimates relate to revenue
adjustments and the allocation of the purchase price of the acquired business to the identifiable net
assets and their related useful lives. Management believes that the estimates utilized in preparing
the consolidated financial statements are reasonable and prudent; however, actual results could
differ from these estimates.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets consist of the following:
December 31, 2005
Accumulated Net Book

Cost Amortization Value
Pickup and delivery equipment $ 1,289 b 25 § 1,264
Leashold imporvements 629 28 601
Furniture 590 15 575
Computer equipment 16 1 15

$ 2,524 $ 69 $ 2455
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ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2005
(in thousands of dollars except per Unit amounts)

5.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets consist of the following: .
December 31, 2003
Accumulated Net Book
Cost Amortization Value
Customer relationships $ 56,200 $ 1,405 $ 54,795
Proprietary technology 3,000 125 2,875
Trademarks 6,400 - 6,400

§ 65,600 $ 1,530 $ 64,070

LONG-TERM DEBT

The Fund has a'three year committed credit facility maturing September 30, 2008 consisting of a
$15,000 revolving facility to finance general operating requirements and a $4,000 revolving facility
to finance future leases of operational assets (collectively, the “Credit Facility”). Interest on the
Credit Facility varies, depending on certain financial ratios, between the lender’s prime rate plus
0% and 0.75% or between the banker’s acceptance rate plus 1.5% and 2.25%. Under the terms of
the Credit Facility, the Fund is required, amongst other conditions, to meet certain covenants, with
which the Fund was in compliance as at December 31, 2005. The Credit Facility is collateralized
by a general security agreement covering all present and future assets of the Fund and its subsidiary
companies, and does not require principal repayment until the end of the term.

As of December 31, 2005, the Fund has borrowed $3,948 under the Credit Facility at an effective
interest rate of 4.79%. Lease commitments resulting from operational assets financed under the
$4,000 revolving facility are included in operating lease commitments in Note 15 of these financial
statements.

NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

Number Amount
ATS Andlauer Transportation Services LP Exchangeable Units 2,316,442 $ 23,164
Allocation of income - 1,542
Distributions declared - (1,346)

2,316,442 § 23360

ATS Andlauer Transportation Services LP Exchangeable LP Units (“Exchangeable LP Units”)

The Exchangeable LP Units issued by ATS Andlauer LP have economic and voting rights
equivalent to the Units (Note 8), except in connection with the exchangeability terms. They are
exchangeable, directly or indirectly, on a one-for-one basis for Units at the option of the holder,
under the terms of an Exchange Agreement. The Exchangeable LP Units are not required to be
exchanged for Units before transferring to third parties. As a result, they have been treated as a
non-controlling interest. Each Exchangeable LP Unit entitles the holder to receive distributions
from ATS Andlauer LP pro rata with distributions made on Units.
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ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2005
(in thousands of dollars except per Unit amounts)

UNITHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The beneficial interests in the Fund are divided into interests of two classes, described and
designated as Units and Special Voting Units, respectively. An unlimited number of Units and
Special Voting Units may be authorized and issued pursuant to the Declaration of Trust.

Units

Each Unit is transferable and represents an equal undivided beneficial interest in any distributions
of the Fund and in the net assets of the Fund. All Units have equal rights and privileges. Each Unit
entitles the holder to participate equally in all allocations and distributions and to one vote at all
meetings of unitholders for each whole Unit held.

Number Amount
Units issued and outstanding
Issued on initial public offering 9,324,200 $ 93,242
Issuance costs - (7,976)
Balances at December 31, 2005 9,324,200 $ 85,266

Special Voting Units

Special Voting Units are non-participating and are used solely for providing voting rights to
persons holding Exchangeable LP Units. Special Voting Units are not transferable separately from
Exchangeable LP Units to which they relate. Special Voting Units will automatically be transferred
upon transfer of the Exchangeable LP Units to which they relate. The Special Voting Units are not
entitled to any beneficial interest in any distribution from the Fund or in the net assets of the Fund
in the event of a termination or winding up of the Fund., Each Special Voting Unit entitles the
holder thereof to one vote at all meetings of Unitholders.

If the Exchangeable LP Units are purchased in accordance with the Exchange Agreement, a like
number of Special Voting Units will be redeemed by the Fund for a nominal amount.

There were 2,316,442 Special Voting Units issued and outstanding as at December 31, 2005.
Long-term Incentive Plan

The Fund has adopted a long-term incentive plan (the “Plan”) to provide executive officers and key
senior management of the Fund with compensation opportunities that will enhance the ability of the
Fund to attract, retain and motivate key personnel and reward these key employees for significant
performance and associated per Unit cash flow growth. Fund bonuses, in the form of Units, will be
provided to eligible employees on an annual basis where the distributable cash flow per Unit of the
Fund exceeds a pre-determined base distribution. The base distribution threshold was increased by
the Compensation Committee for the fiscal period ended December 31, 2005 to $0.482 per Unit
from the previously disclosed $0.339 per Unit. In fiscal years ending after December 31, 2005 the
base distribution will be set by the Compensation Committee in accordance with the terms of the
Plan.
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ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2005
(in thousands of dollars except per Unit amounts)

8. UNITHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued)
Long-term Incentive Plan (continued)

If the distributable cash flow per Unit exceeds the pre-determined base distribution amount, a
percentage of the excess distributable cash (the “participation rate™), as noted below, is contributed
by the Fund into a long-term incentive pool. Units will be purchased from contributions in the pool
on the open market on behalf of the Plan participants and will be held by a trustee until their rights
vest (“Capitalized Units”). Distributions received on Capitalized Units will be distributed to
participants when received. Vesting of Capitalized Units will occur on the basis of one-third of the
total grant per year with the first portion vesting at the time of granting.

Threshold amounts and participation rates are as follows:

Proportion of excess percentage paid

Excess percentage to Plan trustee

5% or less Nil

Greater than 5% and up to 10% 10% of any excess over 5%

Greater than 10% and up to 20% 10% éf any excess over 5% to 10%, plus

plus 20% of any excess over 10%

Greater than 20% 10% of any excess over 5% to 10%, plus
20% of any excess over 10% to 20%, plus
25% of any excess over 20%

For the period ended December 31, 2005, the distributable cash flow per Unit exceeded the base
distribution by $0.22 per Unit. In March 2006, the Compensation Comumittee granted $512 of
bonuses, to be paid in the form of Units, under the Plan. This amount will be recognized as
compensation expense over the two year vesting period.

9. INCOME PER UNIT

Net income - basic $ 6,208
Non-controlling interest 1,542
Net income - diluted $ 7,750
Units outstanding - basic 9,324,200
Exchangeable LP Units ‘ 2,316,442
Units outstanding - diluted ‘ 11,640,642
Income per Unit - basic $ 0.666
Income per Unit - diluted $ 0.666
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ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2005
(in thousands of dollars except per Unit amounts)

10. DISTRIBUTIONS

Distributions to unitholders are determined based on earnings, before interest and amortization, but
reduced by certain general and administrative expenses and maintenance capital expenditures. The
Fund makes regular distributions to unitholders of record as of the last business day of each month.

For the period ended December 31, 2005, the Fund declared regular distributions totalling $2,303
relating to Units and $571 relating to Exchangeable LP Units. Regular distributions of $755 in
relation to Units and $187 in relation to Exchangeable LP Units were payable as at December 31,
- 2005.

For the period ended December 31, 2005, the Fund also declared special cash distributions totalling
$3,117 relating to Units and $775 relating to Exchangeable LP Units. The entire special cash
distributions relating to Units and Exchangeable LP Units were payable as at December 31, 2005.

A special non-cash distribution in the form of Units with a value of $0.065 per Unit was also
declared for the period ended December 31, 2005. These Units will be distributed on a pro rata
basis on March 31, 2006 to unitholders of record on December 31, 2005. Immediately after the pro
rata distribution of Units, the number of outstanding Units will be consolidated, such that each
unitholder, following the consolidation, will hold the same number of Units as before the non-cash
distribution, and there will be no change in the total number of Units outstanding.

Exchangeable LP

Units Units Total
Date distribution Date distribution
declared paid/payable Declared Paid Declared Paid Declared Per Unit Paid

Regular distributions
October 19, 2005 November 15,2005 $§ 793 § 793 § 197 § 197 § 990 §$ 0.085 § 990
November 21,2005  December 15, 2005 755 755 187 187 942 0.081 942
December 31,2005  January 15, 2006 755 - 187 - 942 0.081 -
2,303 1,548 571 384 2,874 0.247 1,932

Special distributions
December 19, 2005 March 31, 2006 3,117 - 775 - 3,892 0.334 -
Total distributions § 5420 $1548 § 1346 § 384 $§ 6,766 § 0.581 §1932
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ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2005
(in thousands of dollars except per Unit amounts)

11.

12.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with related parties include ATS Andlauer LP’s purchase of the Business of the
Vendor, a company controlled by the President and Chief Executive Officer of the GP. In addition,
the Exchangeable LP Units that were issued as part of the [PO, and included in Note 7 of these
financial statements, are held by the Vendor.

Consistent with historical practices, during the period, the Fund entered into transactions with
related parties that were incurred in the normal course of business at terms similar with unrelated
parties. These transactions are accounted for at their exchange amount and are expected to continue
at similar amounts 1n the future.

Included in these financial statements are the following transactions and balances as at and for the
period ended December 31, 2005 with companies controlled directly or indirectly by the President
and Chief Executive Officer or his spouse:

Revenue

Transportation services $ 1,230
Cost of goods sold

Transportation services v 1,680

Contract labour services 2,204
Expenses (recovery)

Facility and equipment rent 380

Facility rent (262)

Shared services (234)
Accounts receivable 956
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,579
INCOME TAXES

The Fund is taxed as a “mutual fund trust” for Canadian income tax purposes. Pursuant to the
Declaration of Trust, the trustees intend to distribute or designate all taxable income eamned by the
Fund to unitholders of the Fund and to deduct such distributions and designations for income tax
purposes. Therefore, no provision for income taxes is required.
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ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2005
(in thousands of dollars except per Unit amounts)

13.

14.

15.

NET CHANGE IN NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL BALANCES
The net change in non-cash working capital balances related to operations consists of the following:

Working capital acquired Working capital
September 30,2005  December 31,2005 Net Change

Accounts receivable . $26,918 $ 28,182 $ (1,264)
Prepaid expenses and deposits 2,076 1,550 526
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (10,896) (14,213) 3,317

$ 18,098 § 15,519 $ 2,579

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of long-term debt approximates its carrying value as the long-term debt bears interest
at floating rates. The fair values of all other financial assets and liabilities approximate their
carrying values.

‘The Fund has long-term floating rate debt which creates an exposure to fluctuations to interest

rates.

Given the Fund’s contractual terms with its customers, it is not exposed to significant currency risk
or commodity risk arising from fluctuations in fuel costs.

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Fund to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of accounts receivable. The Fund performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’
financial condition and, generally, requires no collateral from its customers. Concentration of credit
risk with respect to trade receivables is limited due to the large number of customers comprising the
Fund’s customer base. As of December 31, 2005, the Fund had no significant concentration of
credit risk.

COMMITMENTS
Operating lease commitments

Future minimum payments for operating leases that have initial or remaining terms of one year or
more consisted of the following amounts:

Total 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Thereafter
Premise leases $48,593 $ 6,895 $5939 $5490 $5273 $4929 § 20,065
Equipment leases 15,582 4,342 3,902 3,519 2,224 1,048 546

$64,175 $§11,237 §$9841 $9,009 §7497 §5977 § 20,611
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ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2005
(in thousands of dollars except per Unit amounts)

16. SEGMENTED INFORMATION

The Fund manages its operations in one business segment, which is providing integrated trucking,
courier, air freight and value added transportation and distribution services to consumer product
companies. All operations are conducted in Canada.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2005

A

RIS R

The following management's discussion and analysis ("MD&A ") as of March 3, 2005, is a review of the conso]ida/edﬁézzr{cf:alzcﬁn'gff;ié;dﬁdkﬁds
of operations of ATS Andiauer Income Fund (“the Fund") for the three month period from the commencement of operations on Septenber 30, 2005
to December 31, 2005 and the results of the pre-acquisition operations of the Canadian transportation solutions Business, for the same period in
2004. The consolidated results include the accounts of the Fund, and its subsidiaries, ATS Andlauer Operating Trust ("ATSOT"), ATS Andlauer
Transportation Services GP Inc. (the "GP"), and ATS Andlauer Transportation Services Limited Partnership (“ATS Andiauer LP”). It should be
read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes of the Fund for the three month period ended
December 31, 2005 and with the final prospectus of the Fund dated September 22, 2005. The financial statements of the Fund are prepared in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP ") and are reported in Canadian dollars.

The following discussion contains certain forward looking statements, which are subject to a variety of factors that could cause actual results to
differ materially from those contemplated by these statements. See ' 'Forward Looking Statements '’ for a discussion of the risks, uncertainties and
assumptions relating to those statements. Some of the factors that could cause results or evenis to differ from current expectations include, but are
not limited 1o, the factors described under *'Risk Factors'' This discussion also refers to certain non-GAAP measures to assist in assessing the
Fund's financial performance. Non-GAAP measures do not have standard meanings prescribed by GAAP and are therefore unlikely to be
comparable to similar measures presented by other issuers. See 'Definition of EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Distributable Cash and Non-GAAP
Measures .

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This management’s discussion and analysis contains forward-Jooking statements. All statements other than statements of
historical fact contained in this management’s discussion and analysis are forward-looking statements, including, without
limitation, statements regarding the future financial position, cash distributions, litigation, projected costs, and proposed
investments and plans and objectives of or involving the Fund and the business strategy, proposed acquisitions and budgets of
ATS Andlauer LP. You can identify many of these statements by looking for words such as “*believe’, “‘expects™’, “*will”’,
“intends’’, ‘‘projects’, “‘auticipates’’, “‘estimates’’, *‘continues’ or similar words or the negative thereof. These forward-
looking statements include statements with respect to the amount and timing of the payment of distributions of the Fund. There
can be no assurance that the plans, intentions or expectations upon which these forward-looking statements are based will
occur. Forward looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions, including, but not limited to, those
discussed elsewhere in this management’s discussion and analysis. There can be no assurance that such expectations will prove
to be correct. Some of the factors that could affect future results and could cause results to differ materially from those
expressed in the forward-looking statements contained herein include, but are not limited to, those discussed under ‘Risks
Factors™.

The information contained in this management’s discussion and analysis, including the information set forth under *‘Risk
Factors’’, identifies additional factors that could affect the operating results and performance of the Fund and ATS Andlauer
Lp.

The forward-looking statements contained herein are expressly qualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement. The
forward-looking statements included in this management’s discussion and analysis are made as of the date of this
management’s discussion and analysis and the Fund assumes no obligation to update or revise them to reflect new events or
circumstances except as expressly required by applicable securities law.

FORMATION OF THE FUND

The Fund is an unincorporated open-ended trust governed by the laws of the Province of Ontario pursuant to the Declaration of
Trust dated August 22, 2005. The Fund’s activities are limited to the investing of its resources including its investment in the
securities of its subsidiaries. The Business is carried on by ATS Andlauer LP.

On September 30, 2005, the Fund completed an initial public offering (the “IPO*) of 9,324,200 trust units (*Units™) for $10.00
per Unit, for gross proceeds of $93.2 million. Concurrent with the closing of the IPO, the Fund used the gross proceeds from
the sale of its Units to indirectly acquire an 80.1% interest in ATS Andlauer LP, comprising 9,324,200 Ordinary LP Units, and
its general partner, the GP. ATS Andlauer LP used cash and the issuance of Exchangeable LP Units to acquire certain of the
net assets of the Canadian transportation solutions business (the “Business”), of ATS Andlauer Transportation Services Inc.
(the “Vendor”), for an aggregate purchase price of $121.6 million. The Vendor, controlled by the President and Chief
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Executive Officer of the GP, holds the remaining 19.9% interest in ATS Andlauer LP comprising 2,316,442 Exchangeable LP
Units. The acquisition was accounted for by the purchase method.

ATS Andlauer LP is a leading single source transportation solutions provider in Canada, providing integrated trucking,
courier, air freight and value added transportation and distribution services to consumer product companies. It operates
facilities in 23 centres across Canada and serves approximately 1,400 diversified customers.

BASIS OF MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Fund was established on August 22, 2005 and indirectly acquired the Business of the Vendor through the acquisition of an
indirect 80.1% interest in ATS Andlauer LP on September 30, 2005. Accordingly, the Fund’s year end reporting includes the
results of operations for the three month period from the commencement of operations on September 30, 2005 to December 31,
2005.

To provide more meaningful information to the reader, the following MD&A refers to the consolidated operating results of the
Fund for the three month period ending December 31, 2005 compared to the pre-acquisition operating results of the Business
for the three month period ending December 31, 2004. The pre-acquisition operating results of the Business are unaudited and
readers are cautioned that the operating results presented for the three month period ended December 31, 2004 are not the
results of the Fund. The results have been presented only to provide the reader with additional information to enhance the
usefulness of this MD&A.

SELECTED FINANCIAL AND OPERATING INFORMATION
For the three months ended December 31, 2005 compared to the pre-acquisition results of the Business for the three
months ended December 31, 2004

Three Months Ended
December 31,

2005 2004
Pre-Acquisition

(unaudited)

(§ thousands)
Earnings Statement Highlights
Revenue 51,053 42,843
Gross margin'" 20,913 14,623
Gross margin percentage 40.96% 34.13%
Income before non-controlling interest 7,750 4,380
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA" 7,827 4,161

" Gross margin is a non-GAAP measure that represents the contribution of operating activities to eamings. 1t is considered a key measure by management of the GP
(“Management™) as it refl ects the ability of the Fund to generate eamings necessary to fund overhead costs, capital investment and distributions, Gross margin has been
calculated as follows:

Three Months Ended
December 31,

2005 2004
Pre-Acquisition

(unaudited)
($ thousands)

Revenue 51,053 42,843
Cost of sales 30,140 28,220
Gross margin 20,913 14,623
Gross margin (percentage) = Gross margin/Revenue 40.96% 34.13%




Y EBITDA is a non-GAAP measure that Management considers a key measure as an indicator of the ability of the Fund o meet its capital and financing conunitments.
EBITDA is not a recognized measure under GAAP and does not have a standardized meaning under GAAP. It was necessary to adjust EBITDA of the 2004 pre-
acquisition results to facilitate the comparability with the current period. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other
issuers. See “ Definition of EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA. and Non-GAAP Measures”. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA have been calculated as follows:

Three Months Ended
December 31,

2005 2004
Pre-Acquisition

(unaudited)
($ thousands)

Net income 6,208 2.798
Plus: Net interest : 20 54
Plus: Income taxes — 1,582
Ptus: Depreciation and amortization 1,599 195

7.827 4,629
Less: Non-controlling interest — (578)
Add: Executive compensation and management fees — 110
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA 7,827 4,161
Revenue

Revenue is generated from the provision of trucking, courier, air freight forwarding and value added services to customers.
Customers pay fees to transport goods from one destination to another over a fixed period. Fees are determined and collected
based on the weight and size of the shipment, the mode or modes of transportation used, and the provision of incremental value
added services such as temperature management, appointment deliveries, and returns management services. Revenue is
generally categorized as either ground or air, depending on the primary mode of transport. Revenue is also generated from fuel
surcharges through which fuel price increases are passed through to its customers.

Cost of Goods Sold and Expenses
The following costs are incurred in the delivery of services to customers:

o Linehaul — includes ground and air freight transfers between facilitiecs. A combination of third party carriers, owner-
operators and company drivers are used to facilitate the movement of freight, keeping its costs variable.

»  Pickup and delivery — relates to the pickup and subsequent delivery of customer freight. Owner-operators who own
the equipment used to deliver the freight are used extensively in the provision of such services. In addition, employee
drivers are used for some city work using leased equipment and provide flexibility to add additional rental units or use
third party carriers when necessary.

» Handling costs — relates to dock labour at the various terminals to handle freight. By using contract labour, the
company is able to maintain a cost variable with revenue and allows for additional labour staffing during peak
periods.

In addition, the following costs are incurred:

¢ Terminal expenses, which include salaries, employee benefits, utilities, building rent, maintenance and equipment
expenses.

¢ Selling expenses, which include sales salaries, commissions and travel expenses.

e Administrative expenses, which include executive salaries, information technology, human resources, accounting and
training expenses.



Seasonality of Operations

The activities of the Fund are subject to general demand for freight transportation. Historically, demand has been relatively
stable with the exception of the winter months, in which demand slightly decreases, and the fall months, in which demand
increases. Consequently, the Fund’s activities in the last six months of the yearare usually stronger than the first six months of
the year.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

For the three months ended December 31, 2005 compared to the pre-acquisition results of the Business for the three
months ended December 31, 2004 :

Three Months Ended
December 31,
2005 2004
Pre-Acquisition

(unaudited}
($ thousands)

Revenue 51,0583 42,843
Cost of goods sold 30,140 28,220
Gross margin 20913 14,623
Gross margin % 40.96% 34.13%
Terminal 7,597 06,647
Selling 1,240 1,473
Administration 2,707 1,874
Amortization 1,599 195

7,770 4,434
Interest expense 20 54
Income before non-controlling interest 7,750 4,380
Revenue

Revenue for the three months ended December 31, 2005 was $51.1 million, an increase of $8.2 million or 19.2% over $42.8
million for the same period in 2004. The increase was largely the result of organic growth in all three major customer
categories - entertainment, pharmaceutical and health care and consumer products. In particular, unforeseen weekend activity
in the entertainment vertical caused a spike in volumes during the three month period ending December 31, 2005.

Cost of Sales and Gross Margin

Cost of sales increased from $28.2 million for the three months ending December 31, 2004 to $0.1 million for the three
months ending December 31, 2005; however cost of sales as a percentage of revenue decreased from 65.9% for the three
months ending December 31, 2004 to 59.0% for the three months ending December 301, 2005. This was due in combination
to higher linehaul payloads (pounds per trailer), and improved pickup and delivery costs as a result of an increase in
coincidence of delivery, as well as improved productivity. As a result, gross margin increased from 34.13% for the three
months ended December 31, 2004 t0 40.96% for the same period in 2005.

Terminal Expenses

Terminal expenses increased from $.6 million for the three months ended December 31, 2004 to $7.6 million in the same
period m 2005. The increase was mainly a result of increased building and equipment costs of $0.6 million. The remaining
variance period over period was due to wage and insurance claims increases. Terminal expenses as a percentage of revenue



decreased from 15.5% for the three months ending December 31, 2004 to 14.9% for the three months ending December 31,
2005.

Selling and Administrative :
Sales and marketing expenses decreased from $1.5 million for the three months ended December 31, 2004 to $1.2 million for
the same period in 2005. The decrease in selling costs was due to a decrease in sales commissions as a result of changes in

commission structure. Selling costs as a percentage of revenue decreased from 3.4% for the three months ending December
31, 2004 to 2.4% for the three months ending December 31, 2005.

Administrative expenses increased from 3.9 million for the three months ended December 31, 2004 to $2.7 million in the
same period in 2005 due mainly to increased costs associated with being a public reporting entity of approximately $0.5
million. The remaining variance related to an increase in expenses relating to the provision of temperature management
services. As a percentage of revenue, administrative expenses increased from 4.4% for the three months ending December 31,
2004 to 5.3% for the three months ending December 31, 2005.

Income before Non-controlling Interest

Income before non-controlling interest for the three month period ending December 31, 2005 was $7.8 million compared to
$4.4 million or for the same period in 2004, The increase was due to an improved gross margin in combination with expenses
decreasing as a percentage of revenue period over period.

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA
It was necessary to adjust EBITDA of the 2004 pre-acquisition results to facilitate the comparability with the current period.

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other issuers. See “Definition of
EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, and Non-GAAP Measures™.

EBITDA was $7.8 million for the three months ended December 31, 2005, up from $4.2 million of Adjusted EBITDA in the
same period in 2004, representing growth of 88.1%. The increase was the result of the significant growth in revenue and gross
margin combined with expenses decreasing as a percentage of revenue period over period. As a percentage of revenue,
EBITDA was 15.3% for the three months ended December 31, 2005, compared to an Adjusted EBITDA of 9.7% in the same
period in 2004.

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA for these periods are calculated as follows:

Three Months Ended
December 31,
2005 2004
Pre-Acquisition

(unaudited)
($ thousands)

Net income 6,208 2,798
Add:
Interest 20 54
Income taxes — 1,582
Depreciation and amortization 1,599 195
7,827 4,629
Add: Executive compensation and management fees — 110
Less: Non-controlling interest — (578)
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA , 7,827 4,161

Amortization expenses increased in the three months ended December 31, 2005 mainly due to the amortization of intangible
assets amounting to $1.5 million. The intangible assets were acquired as part of the acquisition of the Business as part of the
[PO process.



Income tax expense was recorded at an effective rate of 36.1% for the three months ended December 31, 2004. The Fund is
taxed as a “mutual fund trust” for income tax purposes. Pursuant to the Declaration of Trust, the trustees of the Fund (the
“Trustees™) intend to distribute or designate all taxable income earned by the Fund to unitholders of the Fund and to deduct
such distributions and designations for income tax purposes. Therefore, there was no income tax provision for the three months
ended December 31, 2005.

DISTRIBUTABLE CASH AND DISTRIBUTIONS

The Fund’s policy is to distribute annually to unitholders available cash from operations after cash required for capital
expenditures, working capital reserve, and other reserves considered advisable by the Trustees. The policy allows the Fund to
make stable monthly distributions to its unitholders based on its estimate of distributable cash for the year. The Fund makes
monthly cash distributions to the unitholders of record on the last business day of each month, payable on or about the 15t day
of the following month.

The following table summarizes the cash distributions for the period:

Units Exchangeable LP Total
Units
(3 thousands except per unit amounts)
Date Date
distribution distribution Declared Paid Declared  Paid Declared  Per Unit Paid
declared paid/payable $ $ 3 3 3 $ $
Regular Distributions

October 19, 2005 November 15, 2005 793 793 197 197 990 0.085 990
November 21, 2005 December 15, 2005 755 755 187 187 942 0.081 942
December 19, 2005 January 15, 2006 755 - 187 - 942 0.081 -
) 2,303 1,548 571 384 2,874 0.247 1,932

Special Distributions '
December 19, 2005 March 31, 2006 3,117 - 775 - 3,892 0.334 -
Teotal Distributions 5,420 1,548 1,346 384 6,766 0.581 1,932

Note: A special non-cash distribution in the form of Units was also declared on December 19, 2005 for unitholders of record on the close of business
December 31, 2005. )

Distributions are paid on Units, and Exchangeable LP Units. As of December 31, 2005 and as of March 3, 2006, the following
Units and Exchangeable LP Units were outstanding:

Units 9,324,200
Exchangeable LP Units 2,316,442
11,640,642

During the period, the Fund approved regular distributions of $0.247 per Unit consistent with the monthly distributions
contemplated in the Fund's TPO prospectus of $0.081 per Unit. However, distributable cash generated through the last three
months of the year, historically the strongest operational quarter of the business, exceeded regular distributions paid at the



annualized rate of $0.081 per month. This excess was in part due to the historically strong final quarter coinciding with the
Fund’s short initial period of operations for income tax purposes.

On December 19, 2005, before the finalization of its aggregate taxable income for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2005,
the Fund announced that in addition to its regular monthly distribution for December that it intended to pay an estimated
special cash distribution of $0.321 per Unit, and a special non-cash distribution in the form of Units with a value of $0.065 per
Unit. The Fund is obligated under its Declaration of Trust to distribute all taxable income earned within a calendar year.

Upon finalization of its taxable income, the Fund increased the special cash distribution to $0.334 per Unit and the special non-
cash distribution in the form of Units remained unchanged. The special distributions will be paid on March 31, 2006 to
unitholders of record on December 31, 2005. The Units to be distributed as part of the special non-cash distribution will be
distributed on a pro rata basis and will be included in unitholders’ income for the 2005 calendar year. Immediately after the
pro rata distribution of Units, the number of outstanding Units will be consalidated, such that each unitholder, following the
consolidation, will hold the same number of Units as before the non-cash distribution, and there will be no change in the total
number of Units outstanding.

It is the Fund’s policy to review the monthly distribution on a periodic basis and to maintain a payout ratio in the range of
80%-90%. The distributions declared by the Fundin 2005 will be treated as 100% taxable income for Canadian income tax
purposes.

Distributable Cash per Unit (Fund Units, and Exchangeable LP Units)

($ thousands except per Unit amounts)

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization 7827
Add: Non-controlling interest 1,542
Less: Net interest paid (16)
Less: Maintenance capital expenditures (220)
Distributable cash 9,133
Distributable cash per Unit 0.785
Cash distributions declared 6,766
Cash distributions declared per Unit 0.581
Payout ratio cash distributions 74%

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

For the period ending December 31, 2005, the Fund has utilized cash from the proceeds of its IPO, cash from operations and
funds under ATS Andlauer LP’s credit facilities to finance the acquisition of the Business of the Vendor, to maintain existing
capacity and to finance equipment leasing arrangements. The following table provides an overview of cash flows for the
period ending December 31, 2005:

Three Months Ended
December 31,
2005

($ thousands)
Net inflow (outflow) of cash related to:

Operating activities 11,548
Investing activities (98,902)
Financing activities 87,618
Increase in cash resources 264




Cash from Operating Activities

Cash from operating activities was $11.5 million for the period ending December 31, 2005. Operating income, adjusted for
non-cash amortization and non-controlling interest expense in excess of distributions paid, contributed $8.9 miltion. Non-cash
working capital changes contributed §2.6 million, primarily due to an increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities from
the net working capital acquired as part of the acquisition of the Business of the Vendor during the [PO.

Cash Used for Investing Activities

Cash used for investing activities was largely a result of the purchase of the Business of the Vendor during the Fund’s IPO
which amounted to $98.4 million (rote 2). As the Fund leases a majority of its transportation assets, capital expenditures
incurred in the period were minimal at $0.5 million.

Cash from Financing Activities

Cash from financing activities was $87.6 million for the period and was comprised largely of the net proceeds from the
issuance of Units on September 30, 2005 of $85.3 million. At the closing of the IPO, $5.6 million was drawn on a $15.0
million revolving credit facility in order to fund the purchase of the Business of the Vendor which was repaid during the
period. An additional $3.9 million was drawn under the credit facility during the period, in the form of a bankers” acceptance
and line of credit to finance operations. Distributions totaling $1.6 million were paid on Fund Units during the period.

The special cash distribution declared by the Fund in the amount of $0.334 per Unit or $3.9 million will be paid on March 31,
2006 to unitholders of record at the close of business on December 31, 2005. Also, approximately $0.5 million will be paid on
March 31, 2006 to fund contributions to the long-term incentive plan developed for certain executive officers and senior
management relating to 2005 financial performance.

Credit Facilities

At the time of its IPO, ATS Andlauer LP established credit facilities with a Canadian chartered bank. These credit facilities
consist of a three year committed $15.0 million révolving credit facility to finance general operating requirements, as well as a
three year committed $4.0 million revolving credit facility to finance leases of operating assets, (collectively the “Credit
Facility ™). Security for the Credit Facility includes a first security interest on substantially all of the assets of the Fund and its
subsidiaries, including accounts receivable. Interest on the Credit Facility varies, depending on certain financial ratios, between
the lender’s Canadian prime rate plus 0% and 0.75% and between the bankers’ acceptance rate plus 1.5% and 2.25%. The
Credit Facility is subject to customary terms and conditions, including limits on incurring additional indebtedness or granting
encumbrances without the consent of the lender and does not require principal repayment until the end of the term. The terms
of the Credit Facility are subject to change from time to time. The Credit Facility may in certain circumstances restrict the
ability of ATS Andlauer LP to pay distributions to the holders of its units, including the Fund, and ot the Fund to pay
distributions to unitholders if the payment would result in a default under the Credit Facility. Under the terms of the Credit

Facility, the Fund is required, amongst other conditions, to meet certain covenants, with which the Fund was in compliance as
at December 31, 2005.

As of December 31, 2005, the Fund has borrowed $3.0 million by way of a bankers’ acceptance at an effective rate of 3.04%,
and has drawn $.9 million under the $15.0 million three year committed revolving credit facility. Lease commitments
resulting from operational assets financed under the $4.0 million three year committed revolving credit facility are included in
operating lease commitments in note /4 of the financial statements.

Management believes that the credit facilities are sufficient to meet the Fund’s working capital requirements.

Capital Expenditures

On September 30, 2005, ATS Andlauer LP indirectly acquired property and equipment totaling $2.0 million from the Vendor.
During the period from October | to December 31, 2005, ATS Andlauer LP incurred $0.5 million in capital expenditures. The
modest levels of maintenance and growth capital spent in the period is consistent with historical levels and is a direct result of
the strategic business decision to lease rather than own equipment and facilities. Approximately $0.2 million of the total
capital expenditures in the period related to maintenance capital expenditures with the remainder comprised of growth capital
expenditures. Maintenance capital expenditures primarily consist of maintenance and refurbishment of existing facilities and
trucks, and growth capital expenditures consist of expenditures undertaken to promote business expansion, primarily consisting
of acquisitions and terminal development. Future capital exp enditures (other than acquisitions) will be funded from cash flow
generated from operations and lease financing.



SUMMARY OF CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

As at December 31, 2005, the Fund did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements other than those contractual obligations of
ATS Andlauer LP disclosed below:

Payments
(8 thousands)
Total 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Thereafter
Premise leases (%) 48,593 6,895 5,939 5,490 5273 4929 20,065
Equipment leases " ¥ 15,582 4342 3,902 3,519 2,204 1,048 546
Total @ 64,175 11,237 9,341 9,009 7497 5977 20611

Notes:

 payments for opefating leases are deducted from cash flow from operating activities.

@ premise leases include minimum lease payment obligations associated with leases for office and terminal space.

“ Equipment leases include minimum lease payment obligations associated with leases for trucks and trailers required for the transportation of freight,
“ Purchase arrangements made in the ordinary course of business have been excluded as they are discretionary.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Transactions with related parties include ATS Andlauer LP’s purchase of the Business of the Vendor, a company controlled by
the President and Chief Executive Officer of the GP. In addition, the Exchangeable LP Units that were issued as part of the
IPO, and included in Note 7 of the financial statements, are held by the Vendor.

Consistent with historical practice, the Fund entered into transactions during the period with related parties that were incurred
in the normal course of business at terms similar with unrelated parties. These transactions are accounted for at their exchange

amount and are expected to continue at similar amounts in the future.

Included in these financial statements are the following transactions and balances as at and for the period ended December 31,
2005 with companies controlled directly or indirectly by the President and Chief Executive Officer or his spouse:

($ thousands)

Revenue
Transportation services 1,230
Cost of goods sold
Transportation services 1,680
Contract labour services 2,204
Expenses (recovery)
Facility and equipment rent 380
Facility rent (262)
Shared services (234)
Accounts receivable 956
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,579



CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

In preparing its financial statements and accounting for the under]ying transactions and balances, the Fund has applied the
accounting policies as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements of the Fund. Preparation of the Fund’s financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. The Fund evaluates estimates and judgments on an ongoing basis including those related to the
determination of reserves for the allowance for doubtful accounts, amortization expense, and evaluation of contingent
liabilities. Estimates are based on historical experience and various other factors believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The more significant accounting estimates are as follows:

Revenue Recognition

Revenue for freight transportation of ATS Andlauer LP is recognized with the completion of services, which is generally at the
time of delivery of the freight.

Accounts Receivable Valuation

ATS Andlauer LP records a valuation allowance covering its accounts receivable. The allowance is composed of both a
provision for revenue adjustments as well as potential future bad debts. Revenue adjustments represent revisions to rates
previously invoiced to customers. The provision for revenue adjustments is established by Management based on both actual
adjustments and a formula based on past rate adjustment experience as a percentage of gross revenue. ATS Andlauer LP also
performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition with the objective of assessing the likelihood that
accounts receivable may not be collectible from customers due to credit risk. Potential credit risk can arise through industry
conditions but it is Management’s opinion that the risk is low. A valuation allowance of $0.6 million was recorded at
December 31, 2005.

Capital Assets and Amortization
Capital assets of ATS Andlauer LP are recorded at acquisition cost. Amortization is provided as follows:

Computer equipment 30% declining balance
Furniture 20% declining balance
Leasehold improvements term of the lease

Pickup and delivery equipment 20% declining balance

Allocation of Purchase Price
The allocation ot fair value of tangible and intangible assets acquired on the acquisition of the Business and the related
amortization periods are dependent on judgements and assumptions which may vary from actua) results.

Stock-based Compensation
The Fund has a long-term incentive plan (the “Plan™) for certain of the executive officers and senior management of the GP.

The Fund uses the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based compensation. Under the Plan, Units purchased on
the open market on behalf of the Plan participants are recorded at cost as a reduction of Unitholders’ equity.

The Fund records a compensation expense over the vesting period based on the Units’ fair value at the time of granting.
Where the fair value of the Units at the time of granting is greater than the Fund’s cost of the Units acquired under the Plan, the
difference will be recorded as contributed surplus. Where the fair value of the Units at the time ot grant is lower than the
Fund’s cost of the Units acquired under the Plan, the difference will be recorded as a reduction to retained earnings.

For the period ended December 31, 2005, no compensation expense was recorded in relation to the Plan as no Units were
granted under the Plan until March 2006 and no Units were purchased on behalf of plan participants.



Financial Instruments

ATS Andlauer LP’s financial instruments consist of cash, accounts receivable, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities and
are shown at fair value. It is Management’s opinion that ATS-Andlauer LP is not exposed to significant interest rate or
currency risks. Financial instruments that potentially subject ATS Andlauer LP to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of accounts receivable. See ‘‘Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations —Critical Accounting Estimates — Accounts receivable valuation’”.

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Information Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The preparation of the MD&A is supported by a set of disclosure controls and procedures under Management’s responsibility.
In 2005 disclosure controls and procedures were designed and implemented, under the supervision of, and with the
participation of the Chief Executive Officer (‘CEO™) and the Chief Financial Officer (‘CFO”) of the GP. Such controls and
procedures were designed to reasonably ensure that information required to be disclosed in reports filed with securities
regulatory authorities is recorded, processed, summarized and reported on a timely basis, and is accumulated and
communicated to the senior management of the GP, including the CEO and the CFO, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure. The Fund’s auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP (“Deloitte™) were asked to review the disclosure
controls and procedures defined by management and to assist management in the identification of disclosure risks associated
with such controls and procedures, with the goal of highlighting and correcting any deficiencies and for continuous
improvement of such controls and procedures in the future. At no time did Deloitte perform independent interviews or
procedures such as walkthroughs to obtain an independent perspective on the completeness or accuracy of any documentation
provided or on the operational effectiveness of the Fund’s disclosure controls and procedures.

In 2005, this control structure was reviewed and the effectiveness of its design and operation was evaluated. This evaluation
was performed under the supervision of, and with the participation of the CEO and the CFO. This evaluation confirmed the
effectiveness of the design and operation of disclosure controls and procedures as at December 31, 2005, The evaluation was
conducted in accordance with the requirements of Multilateral Instrument 52-109 of the Canadian Securities Administrators.

The GP’s management, including the CEO and the CFO, can therefore provide reasonable assurance that material information
relating to the Fund and its subsidiaries is reported to it on a timely basis so that it may provide investors with complete and
reliable information. However, because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, an evaluation of controls can provide
only reasonable, not absolute assurance, that all control issues within the Fund have been detected. The Fund is continually
evolving and enhancing its systems of controls and procedures.

Lastly, this MD&A was reviewed by the Disclosure Officers of the Fund (individuals authorized to communicate with the
public about information concerning the Fund), the Audit and Governance Committee and the Board of Directors of the GP
and the Board ot Trustees of the Fund, all of whom approved it prior to its publication.

RISK FACTORS

General Economic Conditions

The price of fuel, equipment, and other input costs, insurance costs, interest rates, fluctuations in customers’ business cycles
and national and regional economic conditions are economic factors over which the Fund has little or no control. Demand for
transportation services is closely linked to the state of the overall economy. Consequently, a decline in general economic
growth may adversely impact the Fund’s performance.

Reliance on Major Customers; Contract Renewals

A significant proportion of ATS Andlauer LP’s customers are under contract, with most of those contracts being able to be
terminated on short notice. In addition, most of ATS Andlauer LP’s customer contracts are subject to renewal annually. There
can be no assurance that current customers will continue their relationships with ATS Andlauer LP or that contracts that come
up for renewal will be renewed or, if they are renewed, that customers will contract for the same volume amounts to be
transported or that they will pay the same rates and surcharges as they have in the past.
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Use of Third Party Transportation Providers

As an air freight forwarder, ATS Andlauer LP purchases air cargo capacity from aircraft operators. Changes in the availability
or price for air cargo could have a material adverse effect on ATS Andlauer LP’s operations and financial condition thereby
reducing cash available for distribution to unitholders. ATS Andlauer LP routinely purchases linehaul services from truckload
carriers. Changes in the availability or price of such services could have a material adverse effect on ATS Andlauer LP’s
operations and financial condition thereby reducing cash available for distribution to unitholders.

Absence of Operating History as a Public Company

Although Management has substantial experience in the freight transportation industry, it has limited experience operating
ATS Andlauer LP as part of a public entity. To operate effectively, ATS Andlauer LP will be required to continue to
implement changes in certain aspects of its business, improve and expand its management information systems and develop,
manage and train management level and other employees to comply with on-going public company requirements. Failure to
take such actions, or delay in the implementation thereof, could adversely its business, financial condition, liquidity and results
of operations.

Information Technology

ATS Andlauer LP has made significant investments in information technology and relies on its information systems to support
its business model. In the event that irreparable damage was caused to ATS Andlauer LP’s information systems and databases
or the information contained in its information systems was lost, ATS Andlauer LP’s operational ability would be impaired and
its ability to provide service to its customers compromised. In such event, ATS Andlauer LP’s financial condition, results of
operation, and the amount of cash available for distribution to unitholders could be materially adversely affected.

For a discussion of these risks and other risks associated with an investment in Fund Units, see “Risk Factors™ detailed in the
Fund’s final prospectus dated September 22, 2005 available at www.sedar.com

OUTLOOK

The three months ended December 31, 2005 was a successful period for the Fund with revenue and margins posting significant
increases period over period. The Fund remains conservatively financed with a debt-to equity ratio of 0.27:1 at year-end and
$10.9 million of working capital. In addition, the Fund has a $15.0 million credit facility, of which only $3.5 million had been
utilized at December 31, 2005. This provides the Fund with a high degree of flexibility and should allow it to meet ongoing
requirements for capital expenditures, working capital and distributions over the next 12 months.

The Fund exbects to continue to achieve organic growth with the existing customer base and obtain new customers due to its
competitive position in the healthcare industry, in particular its ability to offer temperature management services. However it
does not expect to experience the same level of organic growth relating to the entertainment vertical in the last quarter of 2006
that it experienced in the current three month period ending December 31, 2005. In addition, he Fund & continuously
exploring opportunities to acquire complementary or competing businesses.

DEFINITION OF EBITDA, ADJUSTED EBITDA, DISTRIBUTABLE CASH AND NON-GAAP
MEASURES :

References in this MD&A to:

“EBITDA™ are to net income before provision for interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization. Management
believes that in addition to net income or loss, EBITDA is a useful supplemental measure of cash available for distribution
before debt service, changes in working capital, maintenance capital exp enditures and taxes.

“Adjusted EBITDA™ are to EBITDA adjusted for certain non-recurring items that Management believes facilitate the
comparison of historical periods. Non-recurring items are transactions or events that Management believes are unusual in the
context of a publicly-traded issuer in the transportation services industry and are not expected to reoccur within the foreseeable
future and include management salaries and fees (paid to owner-managers and related parties) and other non-recurring items.

“‘Distributable cash’ are to cash available for distribution to unitholders in accordance with the distribution policies of the
Fund described in the prospectus. Distributable cash of the Fund is a measure generally used by Canadian open-ended trusts as
12



an indicator of financial performance and Management believes that prospective investors may consider the cash distributed by
the Fund relative to the price of the Units when assessing an investment in Units. The Fund’s method of determining
distributable cash is derived from EBITDA, which in turn is derived from net income, a measure recognized under GAAP,
EBITDA has been used as the basis for the calculation of distributable cash as Management believes that that it is comparable
to.cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital. As the Fund intends to distribute in the range of
80%-90% of its available cash on an ongoing basis, Management believes that EBITDA is a useful measures in evaluating the
performance of the Fund. Specifically, Management believes that EBITDA is the appropriate measure from which to make
adjustments to estimate the distributable cash ot the Fund.

EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, and Distributable Cash are measures that are not recognized by generally accepted accounting
principles in Canada (‘*GAAP’") and do not have standardized meanings prescribed by GAAP. Therefore, EBITDA, Adjusted
EBITDA and Distributable Cash may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other issuers. Investors are
cautioned that EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Distributable Cash should not be construed as alternatives to net income or
loss determined in accordance with GAAP as indicators of the Fund’s performance.

““Gross margin’’ is a non-GAAP measure that represents the contribution of operating activities to earnings. 1t is considered

a key measure by Management as it reflects the ability of the Business to generate earnings necessary to fund overhead costs,
capital investment and distributions. It is calculated by deducting cost of goods sold from revenue.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information relative to the Fund including the Fund’s Annual Information Form, may be found on SEDAR at
www.sedar.conl



ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND

JOINT CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT GO Ty
The term 'Fund" refers to ATS Andlauer Income Fund, the term "ATSOT" refers to ATS Andqélliféllf‘f CE
Operating Trust, the term "LP" refers to ATS Andlauer Transportation Services Limited Partnership, the
term "GP" refers to ATS Andlauer Transportation Services GP Inc., the term "GP Board" refers to the
board of directors of the GP, the term "GP Chair" refers to the chair of the GP Board, the term "Fund
Trustees" refers to the trustees of the Fund, the term 'Fund Chair" refers to the Chair of the Fund
Trustees and the term "Administrator” refers to the GP in its capacity as administrator of the Fund
pursuant to the Administration Agreement. The Fund, ATSOT, the GP and the LP and their

subsidiaries are collectively referred to as "ATS Andlauer”.
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ATS Andlauer will adhere to the highest ethical standards in all of its activities, and all of ATS Andlauer's
trustees (including the Fund Trustees), directors, officers, employees and consultants (collectively "ATS
Andlauer Personnel") are expected to maintain these standards.

ATS Andlauer and all ATS Andlauer Personnel shall comply with the letter and spirit of all laws and
regulations applicable to ATS Andlauer's activities. A concern for what s right must underlie all business
decisions.

Ignorance of the law is not, in general, a defence should a law be contravened. Moreover, agreements or
arrangements need not necessarily be in writing to be contrary to the law since it is possible for a
contravention to be inferred from the conduct of the parties. Accordingly, ATS Andlauer Personnel must
diligently ensure that their conduct is not and cannot be interpreted as being in contravention of laws
governing the affairs of ATS Andlauer in any jurisdiction where it conducts its activities.

In view of the ever-increasing complexity of the law affecting business activity, whenever ATS Andlauer
Personnel are in doubt about the application or interpretation of any legal requirement, the advice of the
GP Chair or if that is not satisfactory, ATS Andlauer's legal counsel should be sought.

1. ATS Andlauer believes that ATS Andlaver Personnel must be treated fairly without
discrimination by reason of race, national or ethnic origin, colour, religion, age, sex, sexual
orientation, marital status or physical handicap.

2. No business operation is considered effective or complete without proper attention to safety,
health and the environment.

3. ATS Andlauer Personnel shall not use their status with ATS Andlauer or the Administrator to
obtain personal gain from those doing or seeking to do business with ATS Andlauer.

4. ATS Andlauver Personnel shall not furnish, on behalf of ATS Andlauer, expensive gifts or provide
excessive benefits to other persons. At times, ATS Andlauer's suppliers may offer gifts, inclding
entertainment. While gifts of cash are never acceptable, ATS Andlauer Personnel may accept
nominal gifts on behalf of ATS Andlauer. Acceptable gifts or entertainment are limited to
entertainment and sporting event tickets, dinners with clients, customers or suppliers having a
value of that is reasonable in the circumstances. If in doubt, consult the GP Chair for advice in
this regard.

The direct or indirect use of ATS Andlauer's funds, goods or services as contributions to political
g p
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parties, campaigns or candidates for election to any level of government requires approval of the

GP Board.

5. All dealings between ATS Andlaver Personnel and public officials are to be conducted in a
manner that will not Compromlse the integrity or impugn the reputation of any public official or
ATS Andlauer.

0. ATS Andlauer Personnel who become involved in a situation in which their personal interests

conflict or might conflict with their duties to ATS Andlauer must 1mmed1ate1y report the situation
to the GP Chair.

7. ATS Andlauer Personnel have an obligation to promote the best interests of ATS Andlauer at all
times. They should avoid any action that may involve a conflict of interest with ATS Andlauer.
ATS Andlauer Personnel should not have any undisclosed, unapproved financial or other
business relationships with suppliers, customers or competitors that might impair the
independence of any judgement they may need to make on behalf of ATS Andlauer. Conflicts of
interest would also arise if a trustee, director, officer, employee or consultant, or a member of his
or her family, receives improper personal benefits as a result of his or her position with ATS
Andlauer.

8. Where conflicts of interest arise, ATS Andlauer Personnel must provide full disclosure of the -
circumstances to the GP Board and not be involved in any related decision making process.

9. ATS Andlauer Personne!l must also avoid apparent conflicts of interest, which occur where a
reasonable observer might assume there is a conflict of interest and, therefore, a loss of
objectivity in their dealings on behalf of ATS Andlauer.

10. ATS Andlaver Personnel are responsible for protecting ATS Andlauer's assets and the GP Board,
in conjunction with the Administrator, is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate
internal controls to safeguard ATS Andlauer's assets against loss from unauthorized use or
disposition.

1. The books and records of each of the Fund and ATSOT must reflect in reasonable detail all of its
investment transactions in a timely, fair and accurate manner in order to, among other things,
permit the preparation of accurate Fund financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles and applicable law. All assets and liabilities of each of the Fund
and ATSOT must be recorded as necessary to maintain accountability for them. All investment
transactions must be properly authorized and transactions must be supported by accurate
documentation in reasonable detail and recorded properly. The books and records of each of the
LP and the GP must reflect in reasonable detail all of its business transactions in a timely, fair and
accurate manner in order to, among other things, permit the preparation of accurate Fund
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and applicable
law. All assets and liabilities of each of the LP and the GP must be recorded as necessary to
maintain accountability for them. All business transactions must be properly authorized and
transactions must be supported by accurate documentation in easonable detail and recorded

properly.

12. No information related to ATS Andlauer or ATS Andlauer Personnel may be concealed from

ATS Andlauer's external auditors, the Boards or the Audit Committee. In addition, it is illegal to
fraudulently influence, coerce, manipulate or mislead an external auditor who is auditing ATS
Andlauer's financial statements.
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13.

14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Certain of ATS Andlauer's records, reports, papers, devices, processes, plans, methods and
apparatus are considered by ATS Andlauer to be confidential information, and ATS Andlauer
Personnel are prohibited from revealing such matters except as may be allowed under ATS
Andlauer's Disclosure Policy. Confidential information includes, but is not limited to, technical
information, results, observations, analyses, compilations, evaluations, assessments, business or
commercial data or plans and investor related data. The term "confidential information" relates to
the underlying nature of the information, covering both oral and written information, and is
independent of the medium on which the information is stored. It thus covers information stored
on paper, various magnetic media, computer, microfiche or any other medium.

Subject to any additional obligations or restrictions contained in any agreement between ATS
Andlauer and the applicable party, during the course of employment in the case of employees, the
term of the consulting contract with ATS Andlauer in the case of consultants and during their
term as. trustees, directors or officers in the case of trustees, directors and officers of ATS
Andlauer and for period of one year thereafter, trustees, officers, employees and consultants shall
not use for their own financial gain or disclose for the use of others, confidential information,
obtained as a result of their position with ATS Andlauer.

ATS Andlauer Personnel must strictly adhere to the terms outlined in ATS Andlauer's Joint
Disclosure Policy to ensure compliance with applicable securities laws governing trading in
securities of ATS Andlaver while in possession of material non-public information concerning
ATS Andlaver, and tipping or disclosing material non-public information to outsiders and to
avoid embarrassment by preventing the appearance of improper trading or tipping.

As a publicly traded entity, the Fund has an obligation to comply with the rules relating to
disclosure of material and price sensitive information under the relevant securities legislation and
the rules and guidance of the Toronto Stock Exchange.

In accordance with the Fund's disclosure obligations, all financial communications and reports
must contain full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable disclosure and be delivered in a
manner that facilitates the highest degree of clarity of content and meaning so that readers and
users will be able to quickly and accurately determine their significance and consequence. All
trustees, directors, officers, employees and consultants who are responsible for the preparation of
ATS Andlauver's public disclosure, or who provide information as part of the process, have a
responsibility to ensure that such disclosure is prepared and information is provided honestly,
accurately and in compliance with ATS Andlauer's disclosure controls and procedures.

In accordance with ATS Andlauer's Disclosure Policy, any trustee, director, officer, employee or
consultant in possession of material information must not disclose such information before its
public disclosure and must take steps to ensure that the Fund complies with its timely disclosure
obligations.

Speculation in business, shares and other securities, land or other ventures of any kind on the
basis of confidential information obtained in the course of a trustee's, director's, officer's,
employee's or consultant's duties with ATS Andlauer is prohibited. This includes but is not
limited to shares or securities of any company that ATS Andlauer is evaluating or is studying as a
possible acquisition or joint venture partner or with whom a major contract may be concluded.
Use or disclosure of such information can result in civil or criminal penalties, for both the
individuals involved and ATS Andlauer.
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20. It is the responsibility of ATS Andlauer Personnel to bring to the attention of ATS Andlauer
knowledge of any situation that might adversely affect ATS Andlauer's reputation. ATS Andlauer
Personnel are encouraged to report, verbally, or in writing any evidence of improper practice of
which they are aware. As used here, the term "improper practice" means any illegal, fraudulent,
dishonest, unsafe, negligent or otherwise unethical action by a trustee, director, officer, employee
or consultant.

21. ATS Andlauer and ATS Andlauer's trustees, directors .and officers and ATS Andlauer's
employees and consultants shall comply with copyright law and any other laws applicable to the
use of computer software, hardware and related materials, as well as with any and all contracts
entered into by ATS Andlauer with suppliers or licensers of computer software, hardware and
related materials.

22. Any waiver of this Code for ATS Andlauer Personnel may be made only by the GP Board (in
respect of all ATS Andlauer Personnel other than Fund Trustees) or the Fund Trustees (in respect
of the Fund Trustees. only), as applicable, and may be disclosed as required by law, regulation or
stock exchange requirement. Any amendment of this Code will be disclosed as required by law.

The administration of this Code {including the monitoring of compliance herewith) is the responsibility of
the Administrator. Notwithstanding the foregoing, alleged violations of the Code by a Fund Trustee shall
be referred to the Fund Trustees by the Administrator for their further handling,

ATS Andlauer Personnel are responsible for abiding by this Code. This includes individuals responsible
for the failure to exercise proper supervision and to detect and report a violation by their subordinates.
ATS Andlauer Personnel are encouraged to report violations of this Code to the Chair of the Audit and
Governance Committee of the GP Board pursuant to the Joint Whistleblower Policy adopted by the GP
Board and the Fund Trustees (which provides for the reporting of violations on a confidential basis).
Violations of this Code will result in the Administrator (or the Fund Trustees in the case of a violation of
this Code by a Fund Trustee) taking effective remedial ‘action commensurate with the severity of the
violation. This action may include disciplinary measures up to and including termination in the case of a
trustee, director, employee or officer or termination of the consulting contract in the case of a consultant
and, if warranted, legal proceedings. If determined appropriate, a matter may be referred to the
appropriate authorities.
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SCHEDULE "A"
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT

ATS Andlauer Income Fund (the "Fund")
Joint Code of Business Conduct

All ATS Personnel shall file annually a signed, written certificate, affirming that they have read,
understood and complied with this Code as follows:

I ACKNOWLEDGE that I have read, considered and understand the Code of Business Conduct of the
Fund and I agree to conduct myself in accordance with the Code as it applies to me and my
responstbilities at ATS Andlauer.

I undertake to affirm in writing, at least annually during the term of my employment, that I have read,
understood and complied with the most recent version of the Code of Business Conduct.

Dated this ~ day of 1200

(signature)

(print name)
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FORM 52-109F1
CERTIFICATION OF ANNUAL FILINGS ,

[, Michael Andlauer, President and Chief Executive Oﬁice,ﬁ SO
Transportation Services GP Inc., certify that:

1. I have reviewed the annual filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument

52-109 Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings) of ATS
Andlauer Income Fund, (the issuer) for the period ending December 31, 2005,

2. Based on my knowledge, the annual filings do not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to
make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made,
with respect to the period covered by the annual filings; and

3. Based on my knowledge, the annual financial statements together with the other
financial information included in the annual filings fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date
and for the periods presented in the annual filings.

4. The issuers other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures for the issuer, and we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information
relating to the issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which the annual
filings are being prepared; and

(b) evaluated the effectiveness of the issuer’s disclosure controls and procedures as of
the end of the period covered by the annual filings and have caused the issuer to
disclose in the annual MD&A our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the peniod covered by the
annual filings based on such evaluation

Date: March 30, 2006

“Michael Andlauer”
Michael Andlauer
President and Chief Executive Officer




FORM 52-109F1
CERTIFICATION OF ANNUAL FILINGS

I, Brian Mascarenhas, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of ATS Andlauer
Transportation Services GP Inc., certify that:

1. T have reviewed the annual filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument
52-109 Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings) of ATS
Andlauer Income Fund, (the issuer) for the period ending December 31, 2005,

2. Based on my knowledge, the annual filings do not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a matenial fact required to be stated or that is necessary to
make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made,
with respect to the period covered by the annual filings; and

3. Based on my knowledge, the annual financial statements together with the other
financial information included in the annual filings fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date
and for the periods presented in the annual filings.

4. The issuer’s other certifying officers and 1 are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures for the issuer, and we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information
relating to the issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which the annual
filings are being prepared; and

b evaluated the effectiveness of the issuer’s disclosure controls and procedures as of
the end of the period covered by the annual filings and have caused the issuer to
disclose in the annual MD&A our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by the
annual filings based on such evaluation

Date: March 30, 2006

‘“Brian Mascarenhas”

Brian Mascarenhas
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




FORM 13-502F1

ANNUAL PARTICIPATION FEE FOR REPORTING ISSUERS

Reporting Issuer Name: ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND

Fiscal year end date used to calculate

capitalization: DECEMBER 31, 2005

Market value of listed or quoted securities:

Trust Units {including trust units issuable on exchange of the
exchangeable

securities of a subsidiary of the Fund)

Total number of securities of a class or series outstanding as at
the issuer's most recent fiscal year end

Simple average of the closing price of that class or series as of the
last trading day of each of the months of the fiscal year (See
clauses 2.11(a)(ii)(A) and (B) of the Rule)

Market value of class or series

Market value of other securities:
(See paragraph 2.11(b) of the Rule)

Capitalization
(Add market value of all classes and series of securities)
(A)+(B)=

Participation Fee
(From Appendix A of the Rule, select the participation fee beside
the capitalization calculated above)

11.640.642 (i)

$9.3875_ (i)

(i) X (ii) =

109,276,527 (A)

N/A (B)

109.276.527

15,000



“The entire ATS team is to be applauded for their dedication and accomplishments in 2005.
Operationally we have posted our best results ever and at the head office level have successfully
completed our transition to an income trust. ATSers have worked hard to deliver strong operating results
and deliver value to unitholders. Total cash distributions, including a special cash distribution, for the
three month period ended December 31, 2005 were $0.581 per trust unit representing approximately 60%
of the total annual distribution of $0.975 per trust unit contemplated in our initial public offering”,
commented Michael Andlauer, President and Chief Executive Officer.

Cash flow from operating activities was $11.5 million and available distributable cash was $9.1 million or
$0.785 per Unit (trust wits and exchangeable limited partnership units). Total cash distributions of $6.8
million or $0.581 per Unit were declared in the period, including a special cash distribution of $0.334 per
Unit, resulting in a cash distribution payout ratio of 74%. Also declared in the period was a special non-
cash distribution, in the form of trust units with a value of $0.065 per trust unit.

These gecial distributions are being made because available distributable cash generated through the
fourth quarter, historically the strongest operational quarter of the business, exceeded regular distributions
to be paid at the annualized rate of $0.081 per month. This excess was in part due to the historically
strong fourth quarter coinciding with the Fund’s short initial period of operations for income tax
purposes. The special distributions will be paid on March 31, 2006 to unitholders of record at the close of
business on December 31, 2005.  The special non-cash distribution in the form of trust units will be
distributed on a pro rata basis to unitholders of record on December 31, 2005 and will be included in
unitholders’ income for the 2005 calendar year. Immediately after the pro rata distribution of trust units,
the number of outstanding trust units will be consolidated, such that each unitholder will hold, following
the consolidation, the same number of trust units as before the non-cash distribution, and there will be no
change in the total number of trust units outstanding.

The Fund’s income before non-controlling interest increased by 76.9% to $7.8 million in the current
period, compared with the pre-acquisition income before non-controlling interest of $4.4 million for the

same period 2004. Fully diluted income per unit was $0.67 for the three month period ended December
31, 2005.

The Fund is an open-ended trust that holds, indirectly, securities of ATS Andlaver Transportation
Services Limited Partnership ("ATS Andlauer LP"). ATS Andlauer LP is a leading single source
transportation solutions provider in Canada, providing integrated trucking, courier, air freight and value
added transportation and distribution services to consumer product companies. It operates facilities in 23
centres across Canada and serves approximately 1,400 diversified customers.

The Fund’s units trade on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol! ATS.UN.
The Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis, along with additional information

relating to the Fund, including all public filings, are available on www.sedar.com and on the Fund’s
website at www.atsincomefund.ca.




FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Except for historical information provided herein, this press release may contain information and statements of a forward-looking
nature concerning the future performance of the Fund. These statements are based on suppositions and uncertainties as well as
on management’s evaluation of future events. Such factors may include, without excluding other considerations, fluctuations in
quarterly results, evolution in customer demand for the Fund’s services, the impact of price pressures exerted by competitors, and
general market trends or economic changes. As a result, readers are advised that actual results may differ from expected results.
Readers are cautioned that the foregoing list of factors is not exhaustive. Additional information on these and other factors that
could affect the Fund’s operations or financial results are included in reports on file with Canadian securities regulatory
authorities and may be accessed through the SEDAR website (www.sedar.com) or at the Fund’s website (www.ats.ca).
Furthermore, the forward-looking statements contained in this news release are made as of the date of this news release, and the
Fund undertakes no obligation to update publicly or to revise any of the included forward-looking statements, whether as a result
of new information, future events or otherwise, except as may be expressly required by applicable securities law.

For further information, please contact:

Michael Andlauer
President & Chief Executive Officer

ATS Andlaver Transportation Services GP Inc.

Suite 600, 190 Attwell Dnive
Etobicoke, Ontario MOW 6H8
(416) 798-1379 ext 200

Brian Mascarenhas

Vice President & Chief Financial Officer

ATS Andlauer Transportation Services GP Inc.
Suite 600, 190 Attwell Drive

Etobicoke, Ontario MOW 6HR

{416) 798-1379 ext 200



NEWS RELEASE MARCH 22, 2006

ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND ANNOUNCES RESULTS FOR
YEAR END DECEMBER 31, 2005

Toronto, Ontario —ATS Andlauer Income Fund (the "Fund") (TSX: ATS.UN) announced today results
for the year ending December 31, 2005 which is comprised of the results of operations for the three
month period from the commencement of operations on September 30, 2005 to December 31, 2005.

The Fund was established on August 22, 2005 and indirectly acquired certain of the net assets of the
Canadian transportation solutions business (the Business”) of ATS Andlauver Transportation Services
Inc. (the “Vendor™) through the.acquisition of an indirect 80.1% interest in ATS Andlauer Transportation
Services Limited Partnership (“ATS Andlauer LP*") on September 30, 2005.

To provide more meaningful information to the reader, this press release refers to the consolidated
operating results of the Fund for the three month period ending December 31, 2005 compared to the pre-
acquisition operating results of the Business for the three month period ending December 31, 2004. The
pre-acquisition operating results of the Business are unaudited and readers are cautioned that the
operating results presented for the three month period ended December 31, 2004 are not the results of the
Fund.

Highlights
Three Months Ended
December 31,
2005 2004
Pre-Acquisition
(unaudited)
($ thousands)
Revenue 51,053 42,843
Cost of goods sold 30,140 28,220
Gross margin 20,913 14,623
Gross margin % 40.96% 34.13%
Terminal 7,597 6,647
Selling 1,240 1473
Administration 2,707 1,874
Amortization 1,599 195
7,770 4434
Interest expense 20 54
Income before non-controlling interest 7.750 4,380

The Fund delivered a 19.2% increase in revenues of $51.1 million for the three month pertod ended
December 31, 2005 compared with pre-acquisition revenues of the Business of $42.8 million for the three
month period ended December 31, 2004. Total gross margin was $20.9 million for the period, an increase
of 43.0% from the pre-acquisition gross margin of $14.6 million for the same period in 2004.



CERTIFICATE

TO: The Securities Commission or other Securities Regulatory Authority in each of the
Provinces and Territories of Canada

RE: Annual Undertaking Pursuant to National Policy 41-201 "Income Trusts and Other
Indirect Offerings"

ATS Andlauer Transportation Services GP Inc., in its capacity as the administrator of ATS Andlauer
Income Fund (the "Trust"), hereby certifies for and on behalf of the Trust that the Trust has complied
with the undertaking dated September 22, 2005 given by the Trust in relation to the offering of trust units
by way of a long form initial public offering prospectus of the Trust dated September 22, 2005.

DATED as of March 22, 2006.

ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND,

by its administrator,
ATS Andlauer Transportation Services GP Inec.

By: "Brian Mascarenhas”
Brian Mascarenhas
Vice-President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer
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